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Lett.er of
Transmittal

To

All Shareholders

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms
Bangladesh Bank

Subject: Annual Report 2015 of Union Bank Limited.

Muhtaram

As-salamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah

Reference to the above, we enclose herewith the copy of Annual Report of Union Bank Limited
along with audited consolidated and solo Financial Statements as on 31stDecember 2015. The
Report includes Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes
in Equity and Liquidity Statement along with notes thereon, of Union Bank Limited for the period
ended 31t December 2015.

This is for your kind information and record please.
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Best regards

Yours truly

Ali Hossain Bhuiyan
Senior Principal Officer
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Notice of the
39 Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 3 Annual General Meeting of the Members of Union Bank Limited will be held
on Thursday, December 29, 2016 at 04:00 pm at The Palace Luxury Resort, Bahubal, Habiganj to transact
the following business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

01. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2015 along with the Auditors’ Report and the Directors’ Report thereon.

(] 02. To approve Dividend for the year ended December 31, 2015 as recommended by the Board of Directors.
—
. To elect/re-elect Directors in in accordance with the provision of the Articles of Association of the
Qul—_l 03. To elect/re-el Di in i d ith th isi f the Articl f A iati f th
% i Company and the relevant laws of the regulatory authorities.
=
L ] 04. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the period until the next Annual General Meeting and to fix their
==
= é remuneration.
T
= members are requested to attend the on the date, time and place as mentioned above.
(= All b d d the AGM he d i d pl ioned ab
L Ll
|L=’ 3 By order of the Board of Directors
o<
=2 Sd-
E Date: December 01, 2016 Ali Hossain Bhuiyan
<t Dhaka Senior Principal Officer

NOTES:
a. The Board of Directors has recommended 10% stock dividend for the year ended December 31, 2015.
The Shareholders reserve the right to approve or disapprove it in AGM.

b. The Members (Sponsors) whose names appear in the Register of the Company shall attend the AGM.

c. Any Member (Sponsor) of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting may appoint
a Proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

d. The Proxy Form duly filled in and signed by the Member (Sponsor) and stamped, must be submitted at
the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 (Forty eight) hours before the meeting.

e. Members (Sponsors) are requested to notify the change of address, if any, well in time.

f.  Election of Directors shall be dealt in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company and the relevant rules/circulars of the regulatory authorities.

g. Auditor Appointment, (as per Bangladesh Bank circular No.BCD(P)748/3/546 dated 31.03.1991, they
are eligible for appointment).




Registered Name of the Company
Union Bank Limited

Legal Form

A Schedule Commercial Bank incorporated
on March 7, 2013 as a Public Limited
Company under the Companies Act, 1994
and the Bank Companies Act, 1991.

Registered Office
Bahela Tower
72, Gulshan Avenue

Gulshan-1

Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

E-mail . info@unionbank.com.bd
web : www.unionbank.com.bd

Telephone : +88-02-9859313
SWIFT : UBLDBDDH

Head Office
Bahela Tower
72, Gulshan Avenue

Gulshan-1

Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

E-mail . info@unionbank.com.bd
web : www.unionbank.com.bd

Telephone : +88-02-9859313
SWIFT : UBLDBDDH

Certificate of Incorporation Number
C-107837/13, Dated: March 7, 2013
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Corporate
Protile

Certificate of Commencement of Business Number

Issue No. 34637-43
Dated: March 7, 2013

Bangladesh Bank Approval Number
BRPD (P3) 745(60)/2013-1122
Dated: March 10, 2013

VAT Registration Number
18121026762

Tax Payer's Identification Number
796739852073

External Auditor

K M Hasan & Company

Chartered Accountants

Hometown Apartment (8" & 9" Floor)
87, New Eskaton, Dhaka-1000

Tax Consultant

K M Hasan & Company

Chartered Accountants

Hometown Apartment (8" & 9" Floor)
87, New Eskaton, Dhaka-1000

CORPORATE PROFILE
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A Premise of
Union Bank

e Huge demand of Islamic Banking across the country

e This high population country's economy is growing fast creating demand to establish a quality service
oriented global banking services to the doors of the people.

e The economy of Bangladesh continues to demonstrate satisfactory & steady growth performance
maintaining macro economic stability.

e Unlock the potentials of missing middle of the country who are beyond the coverage of corporate banking
service.

e Focus on rural & micro economic developments.
e Bring the unbanked rural people under the umbrella of banking service.

e Modern Technology based banking as well as environmental banking.

A PREMISE OF UNION BANK
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Vision and
Mission

Vision:
To become socially committed world class financial institution.

Mission:
e Emancipate our poor people from abject poverty by empowering them with smooth banking service.

e Be the leading provider of Islamic Shari'ah compliant banking services in Bangladesh.

e Provide fast, accurate and satisfactory customer service by maintaining corporate & business ethics and
transparency at all levels.

e Ensure technology based professional banking environment with strong capital base.

e Thrust on investment facilitating banking product.

VISION AND MISSION
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Financial Performance
at a Glance

Amount in million Taka

,,,,, 1 Adhorizedcaptal 1000000 1000000
2 Paid - up capital 4,280.00 4,280.00
s hahodersEasy  sitiee  4eedes
,,,,, 4 Towlcapital(Ter-1+Ter-2) 560788 494364
~. 5. Satutory Reserve 23824 7558
() 6 Total Assets 63,059.96 40,951.53
= 7 allebites  s7emso0  asseres
w—l 8 Deposits 55,568.42 34,767.31
. °o Total Investment and Advance 4559287  28277.79
™ 10 Totalcontingentliabiltes 464278 147449
. LI Total Risk Weighted Asset | [ 4224772 | = 3455280
LLl 12 Total Fixed Assets 679.20 411.28
g """ 3 Operating Income 206129 98234
= 4 OpenatngBwendive  1ote4r 52689
= 5o Profit before provision & Tax 104481 45545
o 16 Profit before Tax 788.31 210.55
= 7 Nelpofiaterpovsonatax  4sssi  1ioss
Ll 18 Foreign Exchange Business:
: a) Import Business 5,958.60 1,514.16
=< b) Export Business 15,816.42 8,698.41
a c) Remittance 919.66 2.73
= Cie T NoofowonCamespondest
= 20 Profit Earning Assets 55,788.92 36,497.95
—-—_. o1 Non profit Earning Assets 727104 445358
~ SLNo.  Paiculrs 2015 2014
22 Investment as a % of Total Deposit 82.05% 81.33%
23 Capital Adequacy Ratio 1327% 1431%
""" 24 Dividend:
a) Cash
b) Bonus
c) Right Share
25 Costof Fund 1182% 12.36%
e Netsewvabepershe
e Earning per share (EPS) 7 4 026
28 Price Earnings Ratio (times) -
20 Return on Assets (ROA) 166%  111%
""" 3  No.ofshareholders 28 26
""" 31 Numberof Employees 82 600

32 Number of Branches 44 27
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Shareholqers'
Information

Union Bank Limited
Details of Capital Fund
As on 31t December 2015

Taka In Crore

I. Tier - 1 Capital
a. Common Equity Tier-1 Capital (CET-1)
Paid up Capital 428.00 428.00 ]
Statutory Reserve 23.32 7.56 o
Other Reserve 14.57 14.57 -
Retained Earnings 45.30 12.23 <C
511.20 462.36 —
o'
b. Additional Tier -1 Capital (AT-1) 0.00 || 0.00 =)
0.00 0.00 LL
Total Tier 1 Capital (a + b) 511.20 462.36 E
Il. Tier -2 Capital e
General Provision 49.59 I 32.00 o
49.59 32.00 o
A. Total Regulatory Capital (I-+11) 560.79 494.36 s
B. Total Risk Weighted Assets 4224.77 3455.28 E
C. Minimum Capital Requirement 422.48 345.53 o
D. Surplus/(Deficiency)....(A - C) 138.31 148.84 [~ o
Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 13.27% 14.31% 5,
Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR): _Held Held
a. Common Equity Tier-1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 12.10% 13.38%
b. Tier - 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 12.10% 13.38%
c. Tier - 2 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 1.17% 0.93%

Total (b+c) 13.27% 14.31%
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Board of Directors

Profile
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A Shahidul Alam
g Chairman
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Ahsanul Alam

Vice Chairman
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H_ussain Muhammad Ershad Ashik Ahmed
Director

Director
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Mortuza Siddique Chowdhury
Director

Ms. Marzina Sharmin
Director
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Shahedul Huq Ms. Shahana Ferdous
nominee of Crystal Bridge (Pvt) Ltd. Director
Director
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Rashedul Alam
nominee of Western Designer Ltd.
Director

Arif Ahmed

Director

Ms. Farzana Begum
Director

Showkat Hossain, FCA
representative of Ocean Resorts Ltd.
Director

Mohammad Mostan Billah Adil
Director

Md. Abdul Hamid Miah
Managing Director
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Sponsor
Shareholders

10. Badrun Nessa
Nominee of Lion Securities & Investment Ltd.

12. Khandkar Iftekhar Anmad
Nominee of C&A Fabrics Ltd.

13. Shahedul Hug
Nominee of Crystal Bridge (Pvt) Ltd.

15. Md. Abdul Wahed
Nominee of C&A Accessories Ltd.
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17. Rashedul Alam
Nominee of Western Designer Ltd.

18. Showkat Hossain, FCA
Representative of Ocean Resorts Ltd.

26. Ms. Mehe Zebunnesa Rahman
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
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Committees

Shahidul Alam

Ahsanul Alam

Ms. Marzina Sharmin
Mohammad Mostan Billah Adil

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Showkat Hossain, FCA
Mortuza Siddique Chowdhury
Shahedul Huqg

Arif Ahmed

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Arif Ahmed
Ahsanul Alam
Mohammad Mostan Billah Adil

Chairman
Member
Member

SHARI’AH SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Dr. Abu Reza Md. Nizamuddin Nadwi

Maulana Mohammad Shamsul Hoque Siddeque
Abdul Hai Nadvi

Maulana Mohibbullah Nadvi

Mufti Mohammad Shamsuddin Zia

Md. Mukhlesur Rahman

Mortuza Siddique Chowdhury

Shahedul Huqg

Arif Ahmed

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member Secretary
Observer Member
Observer Member
Observer Member
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Management

Team

Managing Director

Mr.

Md. Abdul Hamid Miah

Head Office

Senior Vice President

Senior Assistant Vice President

Mr. Syed Abdullah Mohammed Saleh

Head Office

Mr. A. B. M. Mokammel Hoque Chowdhury Head Office

Mr. Shah Md. Mahtubuddin Al-Mamun

Mr. Abdul Hannan Khan

Mr.

Faridul Hoque Chowdhury

Mr. Joyanta Kumar Mandal

Mr.
Mr.
- Md. Idris Ali

Md. Mainul Islam Chowdhury
Md. Munirul Islam

- Md. Naimur Rahman
. Mansoor Ahmed
. Md. Abdul Kader

Mr. Abdus Samad Shaheen

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Md. Ahsanullah

Md. Rofiqul Islam
Mohammad Sirajul Kabir
Muhammed Didarul Alam
Niaz Mohammed Khan

Mr. A. N. M. Sadan Jahan

Manager, Gulshan Branch, Dhaka

Company Secretery, Head Office
Manager, Agrabad Branch, Chittagong
Head of Treasury & BOCD, Head Office
Head of HRD & GSD, Head Office
Manager, Hatkhola Branch, Dhaka
Manager, Dilkusha Branch, Dhaka

Att., HRD, Head Office
Head of IAD & RMD (CIB Cell), Head Office
Manager, Panthapath Branch, Dhaka

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Head of MIS & ICCD, Head Office
Manager, Talshahor Branch, B. Baria
In-charge of ID, Head Office

Manager, Khatungonj Branch, Chittagong

Manager, Mirpur Branch, Dhaka
Manager, Mouchak Branch, Gazipur
Manager, Nawabpur Branch, Dhaka

Assistant Vice President

. Delwar Hossain Delu
- Md. Mosaref Hossain
- Mohammed Mahfuzur Rahman
Mr.

Md. Shahidul Islam

Mr. Ahmed Safa

Mr.
Mr.

Mohammad Mafidul Haque
Md. Abul Kalam

Mr. Abdul Kayum

Head of AMLD & Green Banking, Head Office
GSD, Head Office

RMD, Head Office

Manager, Rajshahi Branch, Rajshahi
Manager, Patiya Branch, Chittagong

HRD, Head Office

GSD, Head Office

Manager, Muradpur Branch, Chittagong
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Assistant Vice President

________

Mr.
. Md. Ruhul Amin
Mr.
Mr.
. Iskandar Parvez

M

=

=

=

Md. Shahidul Islam

Didarul Haque Miah
Mohammad Moniruzzaman

. Md. Nurul Islam
. Riyadh Mohammad Chowdhury

Manager, Bogra Branch
In-charge of FAD, Head Office
In-charge of ICT, Head Office
Sebarhat Branch, Noakhali
International Division, Head Office
Att., HRD, Head Office
Khatungonj Branch, Chittagong

First Assistant Vice President

MANAGEMENT TEAM

=S E=
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= = =

= =

= = = 5 = =

. Md. Hedayet Ullah

. Md. Monsur Ahmed

. Hafez Anwar Hossain

. M.Q.M Obaidullah

. Md. Shariful Alam Mondal
. Mohammad Abdul Aziz
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mizanur Rahman

Shah Md. Golam Sarwar Chowdhury
Choudhury Aminur Rahman

S. M. Fakhruddin Omar

Anis Ahmed

Md. Mamnur Rashid

Mohammad Khaled Hossain
Kayes Mahmud

Md. Zahid Hussain

Abu Kawser

Md. Nandit Rahman Tazvi

Md. Rezaul Hoque

Golam Sarowor

Md. Mizanur Rahman

M M Mazharul Islam

Mohammad Shamim Ahmed Akan
Mohammad Nurul Amin
Mohammad Manir Hossain
Mohammad Salequr Rahman

In-charge of Training Institute, Head Office
Manager, Atibazar Branch, Dhaka

Manager, Ashkonabazar Branch, Dhaka
GSD, Head Office

Investment Division, Head Office

Manager, Cox's Bazar Branch, Cox’s Bazar
Manager, Shantirhat Branch, Chittagong
Manager, Ataikula Branch, Pabna

Manager, Zindabazar Branch, Sylhet
Manager, Islampur Branch, Sylhet

Manager, Comilla Branch, Comilla

BOCD, Head Office

Manager, Uttara Branch, Dhaka

Manager, Banani Branch, Dhaka

MD's Secretariat, Head Office

Manager, Operation, Hatkhola Branch, Dhaka
Manager, Bogabari Branch, Ashulia, Dhaka
Manager, Barisal Branch, Barisal

Dilkusha Branch, Dhaka

Mirpur Branch, Dhaka

Manager, Narayangonj Branch, Narayangonj
Manager, Panchaboti Branch, Fatulla, Narayangon;
Manager, Feni Branch, Feni

Manager, Jaksinbazar Branch, Laxmipur
Manager, Lichubagan Branch, Chittagong




Messages




Shahidul Alam
Chairman




Annual Report | 2015

St e TN e T et oS TS e & N TSNS

ren

ST /R DO MR R HSIY AIBTAN o1 9K [P [IFPADTR A
TAPIICR F (AR AR JTS TR | 0> fSOTR 2096 TAY IHRI IR
AIBATATAR AfO@A 3 T SO AT N TorFoA FMR | AL SN
AN FAM SABOF Ty HHAM TTIe IR [0 IZIBET & AT
MRS AT, FEH10] IR FPCTEFOR T AN FOF T Tl ATNTL
T A A (o TFS 3@ |

SIATATY SARF 33 ARADTR |

SR S A SIS B13 (A, ST ST IS S S Hw, Rt (i e
Rfeq I FRIFIINER oG 4@ A TFI @R | IBIOI3 I-el, FAd %5ol, JIFE!
FRFNOT 92 JTT TG AL SIA AT IR | 95T A @R AN IR FHTS
FREIfTor 3 ATgl I WREI JIIF FYOICFI THFFOI 3 CRMIRG-T2 SHIBIA ~Ffer
vmAel, fAEsFe RPN a2 e (@Qgd FIRE |

TS TRER S 206 A3 ([ s o sweia @1 ofes za | IMF 9z World
Economic Outlook sigamt :05¢ et & SIitafss o 4 2 ©.0% =
TS IR ©.8% I DA [FDI P | M3 ] wiLifox qfe A @R
eRIfad LAY R0 SR (FAD MR | 2096 AT JALACCR Tl AXTBHP foed
PRI [ WG W N[O 9 IR AL [ SR 1 A (0 N SRR
oo o TR | 096 M AP 1T AP0 I b .:% A 901 HfSRG |
TR BT .6 % (SO efa oroid |

QLA /L2 WS IFB ANON BFGIS U6 T Tmoy ALSS©
AT AT A | S FERP WO AP AFIOR PRI IR BB
T A3 03¢ AT (T TLFBEAT SIEAT JIPT I CIRAE | RIS e 21
8 N T[T ~RRCR PRE FAPR oG IR I e | ALACH [ AFP0F 53
[E TEIF, W26 T A A R[KMS@ o:]Jfa o 29.4% 972 LI AEI @B
G ARTHS ARG 409> Btz BreT | 93 A= [RISEor Hfad 7ol ¢.-0d
fBfersa Bt |

BIAS ARPT G306 AN 3T /NP ANDGS O Teed PIIFE SrIIn



Annual Report | 2015

R I e e e LRI L R et it

FFeTol Ao PEE | (SeNfad @IReREHE, [RINE 932 ATTS-IFord 3
RAEETH IFE AN FF S o7 4@ @G| 096 A IR
ANITS IR RIAEOR o]fa fBe IWMFE ¢».b% 92 Ld.20% | fToHT 9,
206 O W TS UG 6¢,¢bb .80 e BT aefe [idaes
TN WTIOT 86,652 .04 [T BIFT| 953 FNY [RET AT 3 JHO!
Uo7 TATHE 6,56 . bO [RITEI BT 3 06¢,bdb .83 [Rfcieia BreeT 9 @fRBist
UTOT 535 . b [T BIRAT | 2096 FT ST LT K oK 9,088 .bd fRfera
BRPT JTPT PR [ 59 AR »5 WM TEE AR | 008 A 866 .8¢
fRfeTaa BRPT JATPIR A FAS P 03¢ A JAPT 9% .80% o ARG |

AR TS A (T 84 TR /T RO 3T e fAfNBT o1
APTR FePTWS G AR 2AfS TP TP 3 TG | AR BIfAT 3
B PAT A @ T9 TP T 3 T O I 2 | AN [T (e
IR APOIE AP LA INAFL 3 AP G fAc Tz I &y I S,
T 3 VN ARPIRR g a3 RfSqy =0z 2AfSdre 3o |

036 A T (R RSy A [RE@ @B MMAR FRA Mrorsl 8815 | et &K
ARPER O AN ACEH 096 A 3T 1P [ANBS 7B 245 g >
YA PN RR | IRIGT TS ORI FANER Tiel§ AN BT (e e A 9
A9 JY Joi PR |

© IR TATY AT e [ANBS 7w ARG Ar<GoR oS oo |
AN AT FrI/GOT FEE N AN AN AT I8 Jey@Q oMM
LS| FNTeR oS ARRgol (AR TN 3ENES Soldyd [T NGBS
FIECH oS3 F@&M | CSR-93 W3DIT 2006 A 505 . [NfeTas Bl Ko
31 2T | [J770 I5F B NoT AN I PR, IS, Jis! (o0, ~Hf=[=,
ALHO 9T AW ATOR AT & A e o1 CSR Frefrae s 7@ |

TS CRIKEISIRETR BREL AR TS | AN SR QAN SF IS0
YR TS FANS CRRQISRIIRE AN TR ASTA (A GNIM SIS |
IR MR AR HAN ALPTEIES LM TR SR AR 3 FRE oI
T | N FOEST TR AL JFIAAY, JACH 1L, A MFSABS 9%
IFES: PR, A T W (QGRGIR A< S ToF (PFPNRS 95 HTEANS HFed
RBELA NARMBEE ST TS AT, MBI 3 TP GBI Ty |

RS IR, T AR TN 2 I AR SO O TP e I
IRA|

SR AT




Annual Report | 2015

Message from the
Chairman

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Respected Shareholders

Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah,

It is my privilege to address to the 3@ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Union Bank
Limited. On behalf of the Board of Directors, the Management and the employees of the
Bank, | welcome all of you to this AGM. The Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are already with you and with your
consent | take them as read. At the outset, | thank all of your esteemed presence, your
continued trust, support and patronage extended to the Bank all these years which

enabled us to progress over the years.

| am glad to state that by the grace of the Almighty
Allah we have been maintaining steady growth of
business in all areas of banking activities like
deposit mobilization, investment, foreign trade etc.
and maintaining sustainable position in terms of
liquidity, —capital adequacy, asset quality,
management and profitability. This has been
possible by dint of support and confidence of our
customers on us; foresightness, prudent guidance
and bold leadership of Bank’s Board of Directors
embodied with the efficient management, strong
sense of professionalism and co-ordinated team
work in part of the Bank management.

In the year 2015, the world economy seemed to
struggle retaining the economic growth same as of
previous years. According to World Economic
Outlook by IMF, the global economic growth for
2015 was projected as 3.1 percentage slightly
lower than the actual 3.4 percent growth in 2014.
However, the slow-down of world economy could
not adversely affect our country’s economic growth
trend and been able to remain resilient with 6.5
percent growth of GDP. The year 2015 marked
promising feats for Bangladesh with escalation
from low-income country status to lower-middle

income country as per the World Bank’s
classification. Annual average inflation decreased
to 6.2 percent at the end of 2015.

Banking sector of Bangladesh is one of the major
sectors which contributes significantly to the
national economy. Banks managed to log in profits
for 2015 despite a tough start to the year by the
way of political turmoil for the first few months. The
growth in profit was slim though, owing to lowering
investment rates and  sluggish  business
environment.

As per the latest figure of Bangladesh bank,
investment growth to the private sector by the end
of November of the year 2015 was 13.7 percent.
The total deposit in the banking sector by the end
of November last year was BDT 7.331 trillion. The
amount of disbursement during the same period
was BDT 5.801 trillion.

Despite challenges, Union Bank Limited has
achieved significant success in 2015 in all areas of
operations. In the year 2015, our Bank had good
growth in the field of deposit mobilization,
investment, overall activities in import, export and

Lo ol LN o e I e N ST S R & O LS,
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remittance.The growth of deposit and investment
of our Bank in 2015 were 59.82% and 61.23%
respectively. Total deposit of the Bank as on 31¢
December, 2015 stood at Tk. 55,568.43 million
while total amount of investment of the Bank stood
at Tk. 45,592.87 million. During the year import
volume stood at Tk. 5,958.60 million and export
business was Tk. 15,816.42 million. Foreign
remittance of equivalent Tk. 919.66 million
received during 2,015. The Bank earned a profit
before tax of Tk. 1,044.81 million in 2015 and we
attained first position among the 9 new banks.
Comparing to Tk. 455.54 million profit in 2014, the
profit in 2015 increased 129.40 percent.

As a 4" generation Bank UBL pays utmost
attention and sincere care to the customers. We
are introducing a wide range of products and
services and always competitive in offering
services to the customers and continuously
redesigning our products to meet customers’
demands and satisfaction. We are providing a full
range of banking and financial services to different
segments of clients including individuals, small
and medium sized entrepreneurs and corporate
bodies etc.

At the end of 2015, the total number of branches
stood at 44 in various location of the country. In
2015 UBL has been successful to open 17 new
branches with an aim to give services to all types of
customers. Our Bank also set-up new ATM booths
in different parts of the country.

In its 3 years journey, UBL is always committed to
serve the causes of humanity. We stand beside the
under privileged segment of the society with our
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). We have
already formed the Union Bank Foundation to give
a pace to our commitment to the society. We
donated total of Tk. 109.28 million in 2015 and we
are expanding our CSR activities focusing on
Education, Health, Disaster = management,
Environment, Art & Culture and other sectors
throughout country.

Honorable Shareholders are the source of
inspiration of the Bank. | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all our honorable
shareholders for their immense confidence on us. |
also express my thanks and gratitude to our valued
customers for their patronization and continued
support. We are indebted and grateful to the
Ministry  of  Finance, Bangladesh  Bank,
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission,
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms,

National Board of Revenue and all other
concerned bodies for their continuous guidance,
support & assertive roles. We are also looking
forward to getting their continuous support and
co-operation in future and we renew our promise to
remain disciplined and compliant.

May Almighty Allah bestow His unbound favors
upon all of us.

Allah Hafez.

W

Shahidul Alam
Chairman




Md. Abdul Hamid Miah
Managing Director
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From the Desk of
Managing Director

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim,

All praises to the Almighty Allah, who created us and peace be upon to our beloved Prophet (SM). Honorable
Members of Board of Director, Honorable Shareholders and my colleagues of Union Bank Limited

Assalamualaikum Wa Rahmatullah,

| welcome to you all in the 3@ Annual General meeting of Union Bank Limited. With
relentless strive for business accomplishments and operational excellence, Union
Bank Limited passed another successful year in 2015. | am grateful to the
Almighty Allah and to you for your active support and co-operation. In fact
forethought direction of the Board of Directors, steady effort of executives and
employees, advanced client service and overall support from Government,
Bangladesh Bank and all other regulatory authorities are the key point for this

SUCCESS.

Global and Bangladesh Economy

The Growth of global economy fell short of
expectation in 2015 on the other hand; Bangladesh
economy is uprising with steady GDP Growth.
Controlled inflation, rising foreign reserve, success
in agricultural production, reduction of poverty and
unemployment, improving in living standard,
ensuring versatile healthcare services, ensuring
education for all, infrastructure development, record
electricity production. Consequently, Bangladesh
upgraded to lower middle income country. To retain
this, acceleration in private investment growth is
necessary along with public investment.

Success of Union Bank

Union Bank Limited completed another successful year
facing various obstacles of banking sector. Now |
ampresenting a few statistics of our success in brief:

Expansion of Branches and ATM

Rapid Branch and ATM Booth expansion was one of
major strategic initiatives for increasing the growth of
Union Bank in line with the consistent growth of the
country. During this period we have established 17 new
branches, 09 Branches in Urban area and 08 Branches
in rural area. Therefore, total branches stood 44 at the
end of 2015. To provide quality service we have
established 07 ATM Booth in 2015. We have a plan to
establish more ATM Booth near future. Our endeavor to
deliver banking services at the door step of all,
expansion of agricultural and small investment support,

collection of Remittance, special support to women
entrepreneur, contribution to international business and
expansion of green banking operations will be
continued.

Profit Before Tax

In 2015 Profit before Tax of Union Bank Limite dmounted
to Tk. 1044.81 million. This is 129.4% higher than Tk.
455.45 million from previous year.

Deposit

Deposit is the life blood of Bank, So Bank’s growth
depends on deposit growth. In 2015 Union Bank’s
deposit increased by 59.82% and stood at Tk. 55,568.42
million which was Tk. 34,767.30 million in 2014.
Meanwhile, the deposit accounts stood 73,939 which is
114.46% higher compare to that of the previous year.

Investment

In line with the rising growth of deposit, Union bank
limited achieved success in investment. In 2015 Union
Bank investment increased by 61.23% which stood at
Tk.45,592.86 million. In 2014 Investment was Tk.
28,277.78 million. Number of investment accounts
increased to 2,603. It is mentionable that, Union Bank
limited provides investment of Tk. 357.4 million in SME,
Tk. 411.6 million in Agriculture, Tk.23.5 million in Green
finance and Tk. 7.3 million in women entrepreneur.




International Business and Remittance

Union Bank Limited also achieved success in
international business like other sectors. In 2015, Union
Bank Limited made Tk. 15,816.42 million Export andTk.
5,958.6 million Import. Regarding foreign remittance, we
are not lag behind; during this period we collected Tk.
896.88 million which is a tremendous success for a
newly established bank. At present Union Bank Limited
has agreement with Western Union, Wall Street Finance,
Xpres Money, Ria, Transfast, Al-Ansari, Placid NK
Corporation and First Security Islami Exchange House
Italy remittance house.

Risk Management

Risk is inherent to all business activities. | am delighted
to say that, due to effective risk management, we had no
classified investment in 2014 and at the end of 2015 it
was remain satisfactory. It is noteworthy; CRISL had
assigned Union Bank Limited AA- in long term and ST-3
which denotes adequate safety for timely repayment of
financial obligation.

Information and Communication Technology

Union Bank, as a fourth generation bank, has adopted
latest technology to provide full-fledged centralized and
secured online banking services since its inception. To
operate the day to day banking activities successfully,
bank uses BACH, EFT, RTGS, ATM, POS, Debit Card
with NPSB facility, SMS Banking, SWIFT and foreign
remittance services along with centralized core banking
software Ababil. Besides this, Union Bank is going to
start Internet Banking & Agent Banking services within
short time. In every banking service, Bank is complying
international standard & protocol through using DMZ
(Demilitarized Zone) security zone and high capacity
firewall devices.

Human Resource Development

Competent and self-depended human resource is a
pre-condition for continuous growth and development.
To attain this goal, we have been able to establish a
full-fledged training institute in 2015, equipped with all
modern technological facilities. Union Bank Limited
recruits proper human resources and makes competent
through proper training. Union Bank Training Institute
organized 4 Foundation raining course and 3 Advanced
training course, which trained 215 of bank officials. In
addition, 591 officials received practical knowledge
through 14 workshops and other development program.
Moreover, the effort of human resources development
through BBTA, BIBM and other training institute is
continued.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In 2015 Union Bank Limited Contributed Tk. 109.28
million as corporate social responsibility which includes
donation to honorable prime minister's relief fund,
awarding of scholarship to the needy and meritorious
students, distributing winter cloth among helpless
people, contributing in healthcare sector and
contributing to various social organization etc. We have
distributed 30.44% in Education sector, 6.63%
Healthcare sector, 61% Disaster Management sector
and 1% in Art & cultural development sector of our total
contribution.
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Shari’ah Compliance

Union Bank Limited is committed to stick adherence to
the Shari’ah Principles. According to the guideline of
Bangladesh Bank, Union Bank Limited has a Shari'ah
Supervisory Committee comprised with national famous
islamic thinkers who provides direction to us time to time.
To become Shari’ah complied bank, Union Bank limited
continued its earnest effort.

Plan for 2016

To achieve balanced development, we have declared
2016 as year of diversification of Deposit & Investment.
Retaining the growth of deposit mobilization, investment
and international business, Union Bank Limited focuses
on social and ethical, environment friendly and profitable
business in light with global pace on sustainable
development and green banking effort. We are
committed to deliver quality services, achieving
faithfulness and maintaining quality of assets along with
keeping all our commitments to improve the Bank’s
performance, diversification of investment and highest
standard of corporate governance.

Finally, I, on behalf of the management of the bank,
would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to the
foresight Board of Directors, Honorable shareholders,
Bangladesh Bank and other regulatory agencies,
respected clients and well-wishers for their continuous
support and patronization. We are committed to promote
the capabilities of the bank and developing its operation
and profit in line with the aspirations and ambitions of our
respected shareholders. Union Bank Limited will
emergeas a modern and welfare oriented Islami Bank in
the near future, Ins-sha-Allah.

Allah Hafez

Md. Abdul Hamid Miah
Managing Director

e LN o e I e N ST S R & O LS,

oc
o
—
()
LLI
=
=]
S
=
oS
<T
=
=T
=
L.
o
>
(%)
LLI
[am]
Ll
=
[
=
(=)
oc
Ll




s} -

[ LTl
S B =i g
- i’ - -

-

e
R

Rt e

pe
£/ WL v

e I Ty L
IR
I W W
e i1 R L

it

Oyl ol AT
o : * i 1‘ 'JlJ : ¥ ) . =7 ‘l 1 - 1 5 - I_ ﬁ"l"- _trl‘.'l-r" 3
tl'i#'; "Jl pr f{ ;I 1':;': I .. I .1 ALY & ‘l‘u, J - -.‘:I LY, }i' ._.‘z. ,'

: Wy Al Lk it ) \ - * Sm L L M
r“f""a’? bl f’a 7 S N PRI

i o
! L

1 » L)

_.,-}l ‘.h‘

. -"-_w_lr-|I



REPORTS

e ¥

< bl ag M S o P v, < Py

- - ! by - r - _.' "‘,'I".,‘: Nl “-"‘ r:‘ ll":*'-
| bat, L

‘uuh_ i

#_‘_i’ .:*-;}h "wﬁ

\ u '



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

§

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Esteemed Shareholders

Assalamu Alaikum wa Rahmatullah,

The Board of Directors has the privilege of welcoming you all to the 3 Annual
General Meeting of Union Bank Limited. The Board of Directors take immense
pleasure in presenting the Director’s Report along with the Auditors’ Report and
Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended on 31t December,
2015.

The activities of the Bank and its operational performance in 2015 as compared
to those of 2014 have been presented in this report. In spite of the tough
competition in the banking industry you will be happy to know that Union Bank
Limited has registered significant growth in 2015 in all areas i.e., Deposit,
Investment, Import, Export, Remittance and Profit etc.




activity is projected to gather some pace in 2016.
In advanced economies, the modest recovery that
started in 2014 is projected to strengthen further. In
emerging market and developing economies, the
outlook is projected to improve: in particular,
growth in countries in economic distress in 2015
(including Brazil, Russia, and some countries in
Latin America and in the Middle East), while
remaining weak or negative, is projected to be
higher next year, more than offsetting the expected
gradual slowdown in China.

According to Global Financial Stability Reports
(GFSR) of October 2015, The Financial stability has
improved in advanced economies since April, but
risks continue to rotate toward emerging markets.
The global financial outlook is clouded by a triad of
policy challenges: emerging market vulnerabilities,
legacy issues from the crisis in advanced
economies, and weak systemic market liquidity.
Although many emerging market economies have
enhanced their policy frameworks and resilience to
external shocks, several key economies face
substantial domestic imbalances and lower
growth. Recent market developments such as
slumping commodity prices, China’s bursting
equity bubble and pressure on exchange rates
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GLOBAL ECONOMY

2015 was yet another difficult year for the global
economy. Global growth for 2015 is projected at 3.1
percent, 0.3 percentage point lower than in 2014, and
0.2 percentage point below the forecasts in the October
2015 World Economic Outlook (WEQ) update. Prospects
across the main countries and regions remain uneven.
Relative to last year, the recovery in advanced
economies is expected to pick up slightly, while activity
in emerging market and developing economies is
projected to slow for the fifth year in a row, primarily
reflecting weaker prospects for some large emerging
market economies and oil-exporting countries. In an
environment of declining commodity prices, reduced
capital flows to emerging markets and pressure on their
currencies, and increasing financial market volatility,
downside risks to the outlook have risen, particularly for
emerging market and developing economies.

Prospects across the main countries and regions remain
uneven. Relative to last year, growth in advanced
economies is expected to pick up slightly, while it is
projected to decline in emerging market and developing
economies. With declining commodity prices, depreciating
emerging market currencies, and increasing financial market
volatility, downside risks to the outlook have risen, particularly
for emerging market and developing economies. Global

GDP growth, actual and projected

Percent Dt

10 — High-income countries
8 = Developing countries
6
4
2
0

-2

-4

~ oo

S © O = = = = = = = = —
=1 =1 o O O O O o o o
N N N N N N NN NN NN

Sources: Haver Analytics; CPB Netherlands Bureau for Economic Policy Analysis; World Bank.
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underscore these challenges. The prospect of the
U.S. Federal Reserve gradually raising interest
rates points to an unprecedented adjustment in the
global financial system as financial conditions and
risk premiums “normalize” from historically low
levels alongside rising policy rates and a modest
cyclical recovery.
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While Asia's growth has recently disappointed, the
region is expected to grow at a steady 5.4 percent
in 2015-16, remaining the global growth leader.
Asia's growth should benefit from relatively strong
labor markets and disposable income growth
along with the ongoing gradual recovery in major
advanced economies. Across most major Asian
economies, lower commodity prices should help
consumption. Negative risks to growth dominate,
especially the possibility of a sharper slowdown in
China or larger spillovers from the changing
composition of China's demand. In addition,
further U.S. dollar strength accompanied by a
sudden tightening of global financial conditions,
weaker growth in Japan, and weaker regional
potential growth could also dim Asia's growth
prospects. High leverage could amplify shocks,
and lower commodity prices will also hurt
corporate investment in key commodity-producing
sectors. All in all, despite its resilient outlook, Asia
is facing a challenging economic environment.
This calls for carefully calibrated macroeconomic
policies and a renewed impetus on structural
reforms to facilitate investment and improve
economic  efficiency,  bolstering  economic
resilience, and potential growth.

countries. The report finds that monetary and fiscal
policy settings are broadly appropriate, but
boosting resilience and potential growth remain
top priorities, with structural reforms continuing to
play a big role. The report also explores Asia’s role
in global value chains and the factors affecting
financial integration within Asia.

BANGLADESH ECONOMY

Bangladesh’s fiscal year 2014-15 (FY2015) is
closing with a number of macroeconomic
advantages including lower inflation, declining
interest rate, stable exchange rate, manageable
fiscal deficit, positive balance of payment and
augmented foreign exchange reserves. The low
level of global commodity prices including that of
oil has also provided some respite in terms of
resources needed to meet subsidy demands.
Some of the fault lines of the elapsing fiscal year
included unachieved revenue targets, low flow of
foreign assistance, sluggish exports to the US
market, failure to ensure incentive price to the rice
farmers. Acceleration in private investment
remained an elusive target. Efforts to bridge the
infrastructure gap did not experience much
discernible success. Admittedly, all these

Overview of the World Economic Outlook

GDP at constant prices % change Projections

2012 J2013 J2014 2015 | 2016

World 34 33 34 31 36

Advanced Economies 2 11 18 2 22

USA 22 15 24 26 28

EuroArea 08 03 09 15 16
Other Advanced

) 1.7 21 28 22 24
Economies

Emerging Market and

; . 52 50 46 40 45
Developing Economies

China 77 77 73 68 63
India 51 69 73 73 15
Bangladesh 63 60 63 65 68

Sanrcor IMEWarld Eranamic Mitlank (Nrtahar IN16Y

Domestic savings and Investment

Percent of GDP

FY06
FYo7
FY08
FY09
12
Y13
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FY15

=

FY10

m Domestic savings M |nvestment

Source: Bangladesh Bank Annual Report 2015

The economic outlook for Asia and Pacific is stable
and robust, with growth expected to hold steady at
5.6 percent in 2015, easing slightly to 5.5 percent
in 2016, according to the latest Regional Economic
Outlook for Asia and Pacific, published on May 7,
2015. Although Asia will remain the global growth
leader, vulnerabilities associated with increased
domestic and foreign debt are rising. Potential
growth is likely to slow, reflecting weaker
productivity gains, and the effects of aging
populations and infrastructure bottlenecks in some

opportunities and challenges are going to define
the benchmarks for the next fiscal year FY2016.
The upcoming fiscal year is also unique as it will
coincide with the period when the member states
of the United Nations will finalize the Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) which are likely to
inform the global development policies over the
next one and half decade. Interestingly, the launch
of the global agenda will also overlap with the initial
year of the next mid-term national development
plan of Bangladesh, i.e. the Seventh Five Year
Plan.




The Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS)
recently established a provisional estimate of 6.5
per cent for gross domestic product (GDP) growth
in fiscal year 2015. This was 0.8 of a percentage
point lower than the target of 7.3 per cent in the
FY2015. Many analysts, including those from the
World Bank and Asian Development Bank,
expected economic growth in FY2015 to be
between 5.6 and 6.1 per cent due to political
turmoil in the third quarter of the fiscal year and
trends of associated macroeconomic correlates.
Of the 6.5 per cent overall provisional growth
estimate for FY2015 — agriculture contributed 0.5
per cent (compared to 0.7 per cent in FY2014 and
0.4 per cent in FY2013), industry’s contribution is
estimated to be 2.7 per cent (compared to 2.3 per
cent in FY2014 and 2.6 per cent in FY2013), and
the contribution of the services sector is estimated
to be 3.0 per cent (compared to 2.9 percent in
FY2014 but 3.4 per cent in FY2012). Over the past

National CPl inflation
(12 month average : base FY06=100)

Percent

Y12 FY13 Y14 FY15
m General = Food = Non-food

Source: Bangladesh Bank Annual Report 2015

five years, the average increase in the GDP growth
rate was 0.01 of a percentage point per year

Manufacturing is estimated to have achieved a
significantly high growth of 10.3 per centin FY2015
in real terms despite the severe disruption of the
supply chain during the aforementioned political
turmoil. The services sector’s estimated growth
rate of 5.8 per cent in FY2015 is a surprise. The
industry sector, mainly driven by manufacturing
growth, is estimated to have largely contributed to
the additional growth of 0.45 of a percentage point
in FY2015. A more disaggregated analysis is
necessary to determine how the manufacturing
sector could achieve such growth, which
represents a moderate share of between 19 and 20
per cent in GDP. The manufacturing sector is
composed of two Quantum Indexes of Industrial
Production (QIPs), Large and medium scale and
small scale. Both QIPs are estimated to have
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achieved 10-11 per cent growth despite the fact
that the small-scale QIP has a comparatively
smaller share of about 3.5 per cent in total GDP.

BANKING SECTOR

Banking sector is a highly contributed sector in
national economy. Despite of the tough start to the
year, banking sector has managed to do well in
2015. Banks managed to log in profits for 2015
despite political turmoil for the first few months. The
growth in profit was slim though, owing to lowering
investment rates and  sluggish  business
environment. As per the latest figure of Bangladesh
bank, investment growth to the private sector by
the end of November of the year 2015 was 13.7
percent. The total deposit in the banking sector by
the end of November last year was BDT 7.331
trillion. The amount of disbursement during the
same period was BDT 5.801 trillion. Bangladesh
Bank has taken several measures in the recent
past to put in place good corporate governance in
banks. These include a 'fit and proper" test for
appointment of chief executive officers of PCBs,
specifying the constitution of audit committee of
the board, enhanced disclosure requirements, etc.
In continuation of the above reforms, the roles and
functions of the board and management have been
redefined and clarified with a view to specifying the
powers of the management and restricting the
intervention of directors in day-to-day management
of the bank.

ISLAMIC BANKING SCENARIO IN BANGLADESH

Islamic banking system has been introduced in
Bangladesh since 1983. In FY15, out of 56 banks in
Bangladesh, 08 Public Commercial Banks
operated as full-fledged Islamic banks and 16
conventional banks were involved in Islamic
banking through Islamic banking branches. The
Islamic banks have continued to show strong
growth since its inception, as reflected by the
increased market share of the Islamic banking in
terms of assets, financing and deposits of the total
banking system. Total deposits of the Islamic
banks and lIslamic banking branches of the
conventional banks stood at Taka 1417.3 billion at
the end of December 2014 which accounted for
20.3 percent of total deposits. Total credit of the
Islamic banks and the Islamic banking branches of
the conventional banks stood at Taka 1195.4 billion
at the end of December 2014 which accounted for
22.2 percent of total credit of the banking system of
the country.
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With the vision of Providing global opportunities to
the clients, Union Bank Limited was formed on 1¢
April, 2013. Union Bank Limited started operation
as Shari’ah based bank in the private sector on 20
May, 2013 by opening our Gulshan Branch. It has
an authorized capital of Tk. 10,000 million, paid up
capital of Tk. 4,280 million and divided into 428
million shares of Tk. 10 each. It renders all types of
commercial banking services within the Bank
Companies Act, 1991 and 2013 (Amendment). The
bank is managed by thirteen members of Board of
Directors.

Islamic banking is now spread not only Asia region
but also over the entire world both Muslim and
non-Muslim countries, as a viable entity and
financial intermediary. The second half of the
twentieth century witnessed a major shifting of
thinking in devising banking policy and framework
on the basis of the “Shari’ah”.

The bank provides high quality customer services
through the integration of the latest banking
technology and also Shari’ah based products. Last
year our Bank was succeeded to open 17 new
branches at various commercially important
locations in urban and rural area. Now the total 44
branches are operation whereas 23 are urban
branches and 21 are rural Branches. In
accordance with our Vision and Mission, we are
trying hard to provide spectrum of services
whether the clients are individual, small
entrepreneurs or Industrial firms. Our Bank made
an agreement with one of the leading Vendor in the
Banking Software Sectors named ABABIL to
ensure fast, accurate, best effective customer
services and online banking facilities for our
customers. Our main goal is providing the physical
banking facilities to all of the rural customers door
to door and bringing them under the umbrella of
banking service. Now in-a-days we all know that all
Commercial Bank is providing overseas facilities.
Our Bank has been dealing foreign Remittance
through NOSTRO account with different Banks of
different countries in the world.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS / BANK'S
PERFORMANCE IN 2015

Union Bank Ltd was able to make an operating
profit of BDT 1044.81 million as on 31 December,
2015.The net profit was a result of strong
performance across all the business lines. UBL’s
personal banking strategy with Sharia’h based

product and services have enabled the bank to
diversify its customer base and increase market
share. At the same time the Bank continued to stay
close to its corporate and commercial clients
particularly the family owned businesses which
contribute to agricultural industry to ensure that
UBL remains their preferred banking partner in the
coming years. Bank was able to make an operating
profit of BDT 1044.81 million as on 31 December
2015 that is 129.40 percent increases against BDT
455.45 million of the previous year. At the same
time, total deposit of the Bank is BDT 55,568.43
million which is 59.83 percent increases against
BDT 34,767.31 million of the previous year and
total investment is BDT 45,592.87 million against
BDT 28,277.79 million of the previous year which is
61.23 percent increase. Total Asset of the bank is-
BDT 63,059.96 million as on 31 December 2015
against BDT 40,951.53 million of the previous year.
During 2015, the Bank handled BDT 15,816.42
million of Export business and BDT 5,958.60 million
of Import business. The Bank also handled foreign
remittance of BDT 919.66 million during this year.

FINANCIAL PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Union bank Ltd. has been operating a number of
popular and innovative financial products from
time to time considering the benefit of depositors,
clients and Bank.

Principal Deposit Products of the Bank are as
follows:

Al-Wadiah Current Deposit Account
Mudaraba Saving Deposit Account
Mudaraba Saving Salary Account
Mudaraba Student Saving (Udvash)Account
Mudaraba Short Notice Deposit Account
Mudaraba Term Deposit Account

Present SchemeProducts of the bank are:

Pension Scheme (Obolombon)
MudarabaMillionaire Saving Scheme (Lackpoti)
Mudaraba Monthly Saving Scheme
MudarabaMarriage Saving Scheme (Sohozatri)
MudarabaHajj Saving Scheme (Hajj)
MudarabaMuhor Saving Scheme (Denmohor)
CrorepotySanchayaProkalpa

Mudaraba Monthly Profit Scheme(Prerona)
Mudaraba Double Benefit Deposit Scheme (Somriddhi)

Investment Products:
e Bai-Murabaha (Hypo)

e Bai-Istisma (Pre shipment Investment)
e Bai-Salam

e Bai-Muajjal Investment

e Quard Against MTDR

Services:




e ATM Banking
e SMS Banking

INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION
TECHNOLOGY DIVISION

From the inception of banking operation dated on
20th May, 2013 Union Bank Limited started it's
journey through a full phased centralized online
banking system depending on a well equipped
structured ICT System.

In this regard, ICT personnel is giving the best
effort with utmost sincerity with proper & effective
guideline by the Management considering the
security and compliance issue since before
starting the banking operation to till now.

Based on that as a fourth generation bank, Union
Bank Limited adopts the maximum technological
advantages over the modern banking business
arena which is still on going.

As a result, gradually, Union Bank Limited is
providing most of the modern technological facility
to it's valuable customer abide by the defined
guideline & compliance issues of Bangladesh
Bank. ICT division is contributing here by providing
the maximum technological support in every steps
with co-operation and collaboration with others
division along with Management approval of Union
Bank. In many cases ICT division takes the
leadership to introduce some technological
advantages for it's client.

Considering all, Overall ICT activites &
performance along with achievements are
described as under for more clarification:

1. Implementation of Core Banking Solution (CBS)

2. Implementation & being operational BACH
System

3. Implementation & being operational Tier-iii

Data Center

Introduced the full automated of BACH

Implementation & being operational the EFT

Introduced Seven (07) ATM across the country

& Debit Card facility with POS transaction

7. Being live & operational the Foreign Trade
module under CBS

8. Introduced automated SWIFT & Remittance
Service through CBS

9. Online CIB reporting System

10. Auto SMS noatification & Push-Pull Service

11. Auto Time attendance System

12. Successfully completed Forty Four (44) Branch
Opening Task

13. Introduced the centrally network & Internet

o oA
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Connectivity,
14. World renowned Antivirus means Mcafee &
Kaspersky.

15. Provident Fund Software Implementation
16.NPSB Joining under Bangladesh Bank
Payment System
17. Implementation of Auto Backup & Recovery
system & migrate on new core system
18. Achievement of ISO 9001:2008 certification
19. In-House Software
a. GoAML Reporting Tools
b. Website

Also, below mentioned software are going to be

implemented and being operational within short

time.

i. Full Automated HRIS Software

i. ICT Asset Management Software

iii. Trouble Ticketing or problem log management
software.

Besides this, all types of ICT operational support,
maintenance task & CBS customization is being
provided on 24/7 basis. The details reports of all
activities are described as below:

1. Implementation of Core Banking Solution (CBS):
As per the approval from Board of Directors of
Union Bank Limited in its meeting dated on 1st
April 2013 the Core Banking Solution (CBS) was
selected to procure from Millenium Information
Solution Limited namely “Ababil” belongs with
General Banking Module, Foreign Trade Module,
ATM, BACH,EFT, Treasury, Internet Banking, SWIFT
along with others necessary modules.

ICT Division implemented & being operational the
General Banking Module at the very early stage to
start the banking journey by opening it's first
branch i.e. Gulshan Branch dated on 20yh May,
2013.

Later on, gradually others module implementation
& being operational tasks were going on and in
parallel branch support & software customization
tasks were also in progress.

By the co-operation and assistance of FAD and
others division along with Management support till
now Foreign Trade, ATM, BACH, EFT, SWIFT,
Remittance, SMS Banking, Investment, CIB,
Reconciliation & Settlement, etc modules are
successfully implemented and operational.
Though the customization tasks are still ongoing
which is a continuous process and ICT Division is
successfully doing that as per the requirements of
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different divisions along with Management
approval.

Hope within short time Internet Banking and
Treasury module will also be live and operational
as testing phases tasks are already done.

Besides this, the daily basis support along with
month end and year end also has successfully
done by ICT Division.

2. Implementation & being operational BACH
System:

After being live & operational of GB Module under
CBS, ICT Division successfully completed the
BACH testing task as per the recommendation and
guideline along with perfect compliance of
Bangladesh Bank policy within the stipulated time
frame.

Based on that, Bangladesh Bank provided the
BACH operation license to Union Bank.

Afterwards, by the assistance of Management of
Union Bank, ICT Division successfully started the
BACH Live operation and till now this BACH
system is effectively running under the supervision
of ICT Division.

3. Implementation & being operational Tier-lll Data
Center:

By getting the Management & Board approval ICT
Division implemented a well equipped structured
Data Center in it's Head Office through the properly
maintaining the Open Tendering procedure.

This Data center is still running without any
interruption on 24/7 basis contains the world
standard Cooling System, Surveillance System,
Fire Suppression System, redundant Power
system, water & smoke detection system, along
with all renowned and user friendly monitoring
System.

Also, ICT Division implemented the 150 KVA
dedicated diesel Generator with full auto switching
technology (during the failure period of Main
Generator) by the approval from Management.

Besides this, ICT Division is doing properly
maintenance task to keep smooth and
uninterrupted operation of Data Center with
effective monitoring by the physical appearance at
everyday including all Govt. Holiday.

4. Introduced the automation of BACH:

After being live & operational of BACH System ICT
Division successfully completed the automation
task between the BACH software & CBS by the
proper guideline & assistance of FAD.

So that, the fees & charges, reconciliation &
settlement along with report against BACH system
is generating in full automated way. As a result
daily BACH operation becomes faster, errorless &
reduce the business man hour on regular basis.

5. Implementation & being operational the EFT:
Implementation & being operational the EFT
system is another remarkable milestone for ICT
Division of Union Bank which has also been done
by the guideline, assistance and properly
maintained the compliance issue of Bangladesh
Bank.

The automation process of EFT operation is under
process. Hope within short time frame ICT Division
will complete this task as usual.

6. Introduced Seven (07) ATM across the country &
Debit Card facility with POS transaction

After getting the approval of Management & Board,
ICT Division has successfully introduced the Debit
Card facility through shared ATM service by joining
in Q-Cash Network.

As a result the customer of Union Bank can avalil
the Debit card facility through others twenty seven
(27) banks ATM Machine under Q-Cash Network.

Besides this, the card holder of Union Bank can
also avail the POS facility in most of the renowned
places under Q-Cash Network.

Though, right now there are Seven (07) ATM
Machine has been established & operational in
different places across the country.

In this regard, ICT Division is working with General
Services Division to implement more ATM in
different places across the country.

Besides this, regular support of card holder, Card
Requisition and delivery, settlement account
maintain  with  Trust Bank, Reconciliation &
Settlement task, Money load in Machine, Dispute
Management, Fees & Charge calculation are
perfectly monitoring & managing by ICT Division
with the collaboration of FAD, Branch & ITCL.

7. Being live & operational the Foreign Trade



module:
ICT Division successfully completed the live &
operational task of Foreign Trade Module by the
proper guideline and requirements of International
Division.

Also, regular support & customization is being
continue by the assistance of CBS vendor by
proper testing in test server as per the requirement
of Branches & ID personnel.

8. Introducing of SWIFT & Remittance Service:

By getting the approval from Management along
with the recommendation of SWIFT India ICT
Division complete all the necessary tasks as per
the requirements of International Division to
become operational the SWIFT.

From the very first day of SWIFT inauguration ICT
Division is providing all thenecessary technical
support like server management both live &
backup, Operating System management, take
care the net connectivity, Update the Antivirus
even in any case of migration issue ICT concerned
personnel works with ID as per the requirements.

Besides this, ICT Division has provided all types of
necessary support to ID for arrangement the
remittance facility in all branches like prepare the
computer with the authentic internet connectivity
through proper web link within stipulated time
frame.

9. CIB reporting System:

ICT Division has done the effectively interfacing of
CIB reporting system between CBS & Bangladesh
Bank CIB software. On this issue, ICT Division took
necessary steps (by the approval of Management)
to complete the task like agreement signing
between Bangladesh Bank & Union Bank,
registration process along with others relevant
perquisite tasks.

Basically, from the very early stage ICT Division
was performing the responsibility of CIB cell i.e.
CIB enquiry, reporting and summation as per the
branch requirement on regular basis.

Later on, after successfully being operational it has
been handed over to Investment Division by the
approval of Management. But till now all types of
technical & operational support (if necessary) is
being provided by ICT Division.

10. Auto SMS notification & Push-Pull Service:
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ICT Division has successfully introduced the Auto
SMS notification & Push-Pull Service by the
approval of Management. This service becomes
popular in the shortest time frame and adds a huge
value of Bank’s reputation.

By wusing this service clients can notified
automatically regarding his transaction whenever
the transaction occurred above Tk.5000.00
through Debit Card or any instrument. Besides this,
Client can check his balance through SMS service
written by “BAL ACC NO” using the short code
“6969".

By using this enquiry from customer Bank can earn
Tk. 0.20 per SMS.

11. Auto Time attendance System:

As per the instruction from Management and
guideline of HRD, ICT Division has successfully
installed & implemented the Auto Time attendance
System in Head Office. This system is perfectly
running and operational for effective attendance of
employee by measuring the respective thumb
impression of each employee.

After being operational this system, ICT Division is
providing all types of support regarding the smooth
operation of machine and report generation along
with it's Database as & when required basis with
the collaboration of HRD.

12. Branch opening Task:

ICT Division is providing the very active support to

open all new branches i.e. Twenty Seven (27) since

the very early stage by properly doing the following
tasks:

a. Collect the Branch code & Routing No from
Bangladesh Bank

b. Establish the LAN & WAN in each branch

c. New branch create in CBS and mapping it to
other branch along with Head Office

d. Provide a short & effective hand on training in
new branch people at branch premises just
before the every new branch opening.

e. Active participation for first time account
opening, Vault management, authorization
process define, BACH operation, EFT
Transaction, cash close, overall monitoring for
successful branch close, day open along with
day close.

13. Introduced the centrally network & Internet
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Connectivity, Antivirus etc.

ICT Division has successful developed and
maintaining the central Antivirus protection System
along with Central Internet Service through Head
Office  Data Center by effective security
measurement and duly filled up the internet access
form from respective divisional or Branch Head.
Also, developed and maintain the secured central
network connectivity between all branches
including all divisions of Head Office considering
the very minimal downtime.

14. Provident Fund Software Implementation:

ICT Division has successfully implemented the
Provident Fund Software as per the approval of
Management and requirement of FAD. This
software is effectively running and operational till
now.

ICT Division is providing all types of necessary
support on this issue like related Hardware
Management, Operating System & Antivirus
Management etc.

15. NPSB Joining:

By getting the approval of Management and to
comply the Bangladesh Bank guideline ICT
Division successfully completed the task of joining
under National Payment System Of Bangladesh
(NPSB) in stipulated time frame which was defined
by the Bangladesh Bank.

Under this system, all debit card holder of Union
Bank Limited is being facilitate to make the
successful ATM transaction through any bank ATM
and vice versa for all other bank of Bangladesh
which was a mandatory project for joining this
platform under close supervision & monitoring of
Bangladesh Bank.

16. Implementation of Auto Backup & Recovery
system & migrate on new core system:

Very recently, ICT Division has successfully
implemented the Auto Back up & Recovery System
through world renowned IBM RISC processor
based server.

As aresult, Data is being stored at automated way
in storage system along with in Tape Drive on
everyday as per the defined scheduled time i.e.
every morning at 06:30 A.M. which is a major
concern and mandatory compliance issue of
Bangladesh Bank ICT Policy.

Besides this, similar type of system has already
been to ready deploy for Disaster Recovery Site.
After establishing the Bank’s Disaster Recovery

Site this system will be allocated over there.

Moreover, ICT Division has also been migrated the
whole network infrastructure by implementing the
new Core Routing & Core Switching devices along
with highly secured Firewall through world reputed
CISCO Networking devices.

As a result from now on, Union Bank is capable to
make secure financial transaction like Internet
Banking.

Here is to be mentioned that, this network
Infrastructure, Auto Backup-Recovery and Storage
System along with newly implemented servers are
established considering the Five (05) years
projected timeline which is a huge effective
milestone for Union Bank Limited.

17. Achievement of ISO 9001:2008 certification:
By getting the approval of Management ICT
Division took an initiative to achieve the SO
Certification over the Data Center, Network, Data
Management and related support services to
branch & Head Office.

After giving two (02) months at a stress effort ICT
Division has successfully qualified the ISO Audit
and achieve the 1SO 9001:2008 certification.

Based on that Union Bank also won the
“International Quality Summit award 2013” in New
York.

Besides this, ICT Division has already developed
and implemented some important & effective
software which are very indeed. If Union Bank
would like to procure those software then a huge
amount of money involvement was mandatory as
procurement purpose as well as yearly
maintenance charge.

The developed Software are as follows:

a. Website:Official Website (i.e.
www.unionbank.com.bd ) developed, being
operational and maintenance as regular basis.

b. GoAML Reporting Tools: ICT Division has
successfully developed and implemented the
Anti  Money Laundering Software called
“GoAML” within the stipulated time frame
according to the direct guideline and
supervision of Bangladesh Bank.

Here is to be mentioned that this software is
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directly interfacing with CBS. So, ICT Division tried to make the development task by our CBS Vendor
called Millenium Information Solution Limited. But considering the costing issue i.e. almost Tk. 10 Lac
(price asking by vendor) ICT Division took initiative to develop it. By the proper guideline, supervision &
monitoring of Bangladesh Bank ICT Division has successfully completed the project and being
operational on time which is still running smoothly.

Moreover, ICT Division is going to implement some very essential software after getting proper approval &
authorization from Management

Those mentionable software are s follows:

a. Full Automated HRIS Software

b. ICT Asset Management Software

c. Trouble Ticketing or problem log management software.

Also, some more important services are going to introduced through ICT division within near future (as the
relevant testing tasks are on going). They are:

1. Internet Banking Facility
2. VISA Debit Facility
3. Online Payment Facility

Above mentioned all activities, performance and achievements are come out after a long, continuous and
restless journey of ICT Division since the opening of Bank.
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BRANCH EXPANSION
Name of Name of Name of Name of
the Branch the Division the District Thana Upazilla
o Gulshan Branch Dhaka ______ __ Dhaka . Guishan | Urban
02 Dilkusha Branch Dhaka Dhaka Motiheel Urban
03 Hatkhola Branch Dhaka Dhaka Motiheel Urban
04 Lichubagan Branch Chittagong Chittagong Rangunia | Rural__
05 Sathibari Branch Rangpur Rangpur Mithapukur | Rural
06 Mouchak Branch Dhaka Gazipur Kaliakoir | Rural
07 Shantirhat Branch Chittagong Chittagong Patiya Rural
08 Bogabari Branch Dhaka Dhaka Ashulia | Rural
(09 ____KhatungonjBranch ____ Chittagong ____ Chittagong ____ Kotwaly _________ Urban
A0 Zindabazar Branch Syhet Syhet SylhetSadar | Urban
A Ashkhona Bazar Branch _ Dhaka Dhaka Dakkinkhan Urban
12 Panthapath Branch Dhaka ________ Dhaka Kalabagan | Urban
T SheberhatBranch Chitagong Noakhali Senbag | Rural
14 BadarkhaliBranch Chitagong CoxsBazar ___ Chakaria | Rural
15 Islampur Branch Sylhet Sylhet Sylhet Sadar (Shahporan) Rural
16, Pahartali Branch Chittagong Chittagong Raojan | Rural
= 17 BogmBranch  Rashah  Boga  BogaSadar  Urban
S 18 KhunaBranch Khuna Khuina Khuina Sadar Urban
i 19 SarkarhatBranch Chittagong Chitagong Hathazari | Rural
(== 20 Agrabad Branch Chittagong Chittagong Double Moring Urban
7 21 Lalmai Branch Chittagong Comila ComillaSadar | Rural
g 22 ComillaBranch Chittagong Comilla Comilla Sadar Urban |
[ 23 Talsahar Branch Chittagong Bramnbaria Ashugonj | Rural
o 24, HnilaBranch Chittagong Coxs Bazar Teknaf | Rural
e 357" Coxsbazar Branch  Chiagong  Coxs Bazar Cox's Bazar Sadar | Urban
(=] 26 Uttara Branch Dhaka Dhaka Uttara Urban
7. Muradpur Branch Chittagong Chittagong Panchliash | Urban |
28 BananiBranch Dhaka Dhaka Banani | Urban |
29, D.T. Road Eidgah Branch Chittagong Chitagong Pahartoli Urban
30, Pabna Branch Rajshahi Pabna Pabna Sadar Urban
31 Rajshahi Branch Rajshahi Rajshahi Bowalia | Urban
32, Patiya Branch Chittagong Chitagong Patya Urban
(33 ___JoksinBazar Branch ___ Chittagong ____ Laxmipur_______LaxmipurSadar ___ Rural__
84 Munshirhat Branch _ Chittagong Comilla_ __~____ Chowddogram | Rural_
35 Bahubol Branch Sylhet . Hapigonj Bahubol | Rural__
36 Mawna Branch Dhaka_ Gazipur. . Sreepur | Rural
S Panchapoti Branch Dhaka ________ Narayangonj ~__ Fatlla | Rural
38 Narayangonj Branch Dhaka ________ Narayangonj ~__Narayangonj Sadar__ Urban
39 Miar Bazar Branch Chittagong Chandpur Kachua Rural
40, Bazar Hasnabad Branch Dhaka Norsingdi Raipura | Rural
(41._____NanupurBranch_______ Chittagong _____Chittagong _____Fatickchari _______ Rural__
A2 Mirpur Branch Dhaka_________ Dhaka ________ Mirpur Urban
43 Feni Branch Chittagong Feni Feni Sadar Urban




INTERNAL CONTROL & COMPLIANCE

Internal Control and Compliance Division has been
established since the very beginning of the Bank.
Now Internal Control and Compliance Division
consist of three wings following:

i. Compliance Wing
ii. Monitoring Wing and
iii. Audit/Inspection Wing

Internal Control refers to the mechanism in place
on a permanent basis to control the activities in an
organization. In absence of it, risks resulting in
unexpected losses caused by faulty internal
processes, human errors, frauds & forgery,
technology failure and documentary lapses may
surface.

Operational risk may arise from error and fraud due
to lack of proper internal control & compliance.
Good controls gear up professional competence,
compliance of legal requirements, sound reporting
system and resistance to fraud & forgery.

Internal Control & Compliance is not only for
getting things done but also to ensure that those
are done properly. Internal Control & Compliance
plays a pivotal role in building up culture of
transparency & accountability.

Modern bank management and supervision mainly
focus on risk factors in banking. UBL has taken
all-out efforts to mitigate all sorts of risks as per
guidelines issued by the Central Bank.

As a part of robust risk management policy, the
bank has formulated a comprehensive Investment
Risk Management Policy to address investment
risks. To mitigate operational risk, money
laundering and  terrorist  financing  risk,
circumvention or over- riding the internal control
procedures, Internal Audit, Board Audit committee
and IC&C Division are carrying out regular audit &
inspection of the functions of the branches and
divisions of Head Office.

The bank has set up Internal Control & Compliance
(IC&C) Division at Head Office to ensure that the
internal control processes are in place. As per
instruction of Bangladesh Bank, the Audit
Committee of the Board has been constituted to
assist the board in fulfilling the objectives,
strategies and overall business plans set by the
board for effective functioning of the bank. The
committee reviews the financial reporting process,
financial risks, the audit process, health report of
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the bank and the bank’s process for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations and its own
code of business conduct. In the year 2015, 04
meetings of the Audit Committee were held. ‘Risk
Based Internal Audit (RBIA) has been introduced
by the Bank to assess the business risk as well as
control risk associated with the branches, and
determines how much follow up, monitoring &
periodicity of internal audit would be required to
bring a particular branch back to normalcy, if it is
found that the performance of the branch is not
satisfactory, and which may pose a potential threat
for the bank.

Each year the IC&C Division sets out an Audit Plan
(internal) for the year, which is approved by the
Managing Director and placed before the Audit
Committee of the Board for concurrence. In 2015
IC&C Division conducted Comprehensive Audit in
27 Branches, Special Audit in 06 Branches and 02
divisions/departments at Head Office of the Bank.

The Bank has already prepared the Risk
Assessment Matrix of various banking functions
and trying to incorporate the same in the
Department Control Function Checklist (DCFCL)
and Quarterly Operation Report (QOR). The
branches and divisions will follow these attaching
due importance to high risk and medium risk
functions. The Bank also prepared Internal Control
& Compliance manual to strengthen internal
control functions.

Internal Control & Compliance Division of UBL is an
Integral part of Bank Management and a
foundation for safe & sound operation. ICCD is
thoroughly guided by the motto “Prevention is
better than cure”. The array of ICCD activities can
be categorized as per following order:

Performance Objective: To accelerate compliance
and effectiveness  of
involvements.

Information Objective : To ensure dependability,
efficiency and  time
worthiness of financial

and management
information.

Compliance Objective : To adhere to regularity
framework including
applicable laws and
regulations.
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It, intensively, follows-up compliance of audit/
inspections reports conducted by the ICC Division,
Bangladesh Bank and External Auditors. The
Division monitors the banking activities, specially
the sensitive areas of Foreign Exchange, Finance &
Accounts and Investments.

The IC&C Division submit summary report (twice a
year) on audit findings and corrective action taken
is placed in a meeting of the Audit Committee of

the Board for reviewing and necessary suggestion.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is the deliberate acceptance of
risk for profit making. It requires informed decisions
on the tradeoff between risk and reward, and uses
various financial and other tools to maximize risk
adjusted returns within pre-established limits.

Risk Management's main objectives are to identify

and measuring the risk in a specific framework and
advise mitigation there against. Risk Management

Supervisory Review Process (SRP) team of the
bank. We also formed a committee by the Board
Members named “Board Risk Committee”.  All
these committees are looking after the
implementation of integrated risk management
systems of the bank. Also that, it is supported by
an independent risk management division headed
by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) to ensures the
implementation of process and performance of
these functions and that the risks are managed
within the pre-defined and tolerable levels through
effective monitoring of the three main areas of risks
namely, credit risk, market risk and operational risk,
across the Bank. Our risk management framework
remains compliant with the relevant directives and
regulations by the Bangladesh Bank.

To strengthen global capital and liquidity rules with
the goal of promoting a more resilient banking
sector, the Basel committee on banking
supervision issued “Basel-lll: A global regulatory
framework for more resilient banks and banking
systems” in December 2010.

Pillar | Pillar I Pillar 1l
Pillar | Pillar 1l Pillar It P = e
Mirirmium Supervisory Desclosurn Capital & Liquidity Supervisory Review Disclowure &
Capital Rivview & Market Requirements Process for Market Discipling
Maragerment and
Capital Marning

have to minimize the adverse effect of a possible
financial loss through identification of potential
sources of loss, measuring the financial
consequences of a loss, using tools to minimize
actual losses or their financial consequences.

Union Bank Limited has put in place unified risk
management architecture to attain global best
practices for effective implementation of risk
management initiatives in consistence with the
Basel Il framework. In compliance with the
instruction of Bangladesh Bank, a separate Risk
Management Committee was formed with top level
executives named “All Risk Committee (ARC)” and

e Commencement of Basel Il Implementation
process in Bangladesh: January 2015

e Initiation of Full Implementation of Basel-Ill in
Bangladesh: January 2019.

The objective of the Basel-lll was to improve the
banking sector’s ability to absorb shocks arising
from financial and economic stress, whatever the
source, thus reducing the risk of spillover from the
financial sector to the real economy. We are now
pointing out the main objective of the capital
framework:



e Strengthening the capital framework;

e Enhancing risk coverage;

e Supplementing the risk-based  capital
requirement with a leverage ratio;

e Reducing procyclicality and  promoting
countercyclical buffers;

e Addressing systemic risk and
interconnectedness;

e Introducing a global liquidity standard;

e Transitional arrangements.

Risk Management Division’s main activities are
preparation of various reports, policies & risk
based report which is required to submit before the
Board as mentioned:

e Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP); including an evaluation of the
bank’ preferred risk profile, the actual risk
identified, the means by which the bank will be
mitigated, and what risks will be covered by
capital

e Key figures from the credit portfolio, it includes
credit quality indicators  focusing on
unauthorized excess and overdue payments,
the number of upgrades & downgrades in the
classification system;

e Banks current equity, interest rate risk and
foreign exchange risk position i.e. market risk.

e FEqual or exceeding 10% exposures of the
bank’s capital base;

e Industry analysis for those in which are
concentrated,

e Liquidity gap & different time buckets;

e Review the risk policies, including a
consideration of whether any revisions are
required,

e A thorough analysis of the bank’s risk profile,
including identification and description of risks
and an update on the risk management;

e Total analysis of classified investment,
provisions, area concentration, growth of Asset
& Liability products, movement of classification
& recovery positions.

TREASURY OPERATIONS AND FUND
MANAGEMENT

Treasury Division maintains liquidity, based on
historical requirements, anticipated funding
requirements from operation, current liquidity
position and collection from financing available
sources of funds and risks and returns. Union Bank
Limited’s Treasury is fully concentrated on fund
management and maintaining adequate cash to
meet day-to-day requirements. It is responsible to
maintain Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) and
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Statutory  Liquidity Requirement (SLR) with
Bangladesh Bank. Treasury also deals with funding
operation for managing the liquidity, exchange
positions, foreign exchange dealings, islami
money market operation etc. Thus the Treasury
Division of UBL essentially deals with liquidity
management and from an organizational point of
view, is considered as a service center. At present,
the functions of treasury have expanded
considerably. Treasury Division also ensures
Balance Sheet Risk Management and oversees the
asset-liability position and recommends and
implements appropriate measures to mitigate
liquidity risk.

ASSET LIABILITY COMMITTEE (ALCO)

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) s
constituted with the senior management of the
bank and headed by the Managing Director and
supported by Asset Liability Management (ALM)
Desk. This is a decision making unit responsible for
balance sheet planning from  risk-return
perspective including the strategic management of
profit rate risk and liquidity risk being within the
limits. The Committee meets at least once in a
month to review economic, market status, outlook
and liquidity position of the bank. ALCO also
assesses pricing of assets and liabilities, maturity
wise grouping of assets and liabilities, liquidity
contingency funding plan in order to manage the
Balance Sheet Risk in a prudent way. The
Committee also reviews transfer pricing, Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (LCR), Net Stable Funding Ratio
(NSFR), Maximum Cumulative Outflow (MCO),
other liquidity ratios, sensitivity of asset liabilities
etc.

The Asset Liability Committee of the bank monitors
balance sheet risk, liquidity risk, Investment
Deposit Ratio (IDR), deposit mix, investment mix,
gap analysis etc. The primary objectives of the
ALCO  are liquidity =~ management, fund
management and assets liability matching. The
committee also monitors and averts significant
volatility in Net Investment Income (NII), investment
value and exchange earnings. In every ALCO
meeting, the committee reviews action taken in
previous ALCO meeting, economic and market
status and outlook, liquidity risk related to Balance
Sheet, profit rate structure etc. Special ALCO
meeting is arranged as and when any contingent
situation arises.

TRl O e T e N RS R & O TS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT




R I e e e LRI L R et e

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Annual Report | 2015

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING AND TERRORIST
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Money Laundering is an act of converting property
from the proceeds of an offence into licit property
under the form of conversion or transfer, the
concealment or disguise of its true nature,
acquisition, and its possession or utilization , using
the banking and financial system, the security
trading system, legal companies and other
specialized professions. These activities are
widespread and have negative effect on the
national, regional and the world economics.

Money laundering has a major impact on a
country’s economy as a whole, impeding the
social, economic, political, and cultural
development of societies worldwide. Both money
laundering and terrorist financing can weaken
individual financial institution, and they are also a
threat to a country’s overall financial sector
reputation. Combating money laundering and
terrorist financing is, therefore, a key element in
promoting a strong, sound and stable financial
sector.

Union Bank Ltd. is vigilant against money
laundering and terrorist financing. For successful
prevention of these illegal activities, a full —fledged
division named Anti Money Laundering Division
(AMLD) has been formed under close supervision
of higher authorities. The bank has formulated “Anti
Money Laundering Policy” vetted by the higher
authorities of the bank. Circulars and circular
letters from Bangladesh Bank are circulated to all
branches. All the branches are advised to strictly
follow the orders and instruction mentioned the
circulars and circular letters. For constant vigilance
against money laundering, every branch has a
“Branch Anti Money Laundering Compliance
Officer (BAMLCQO)” and AMLD initiated periodic
branch visit for looking after the activities relating to
Anti Money Laundering.

Moreover, the bank is in process to formulate Anti
Money Laundering Risk Assessment guideline as
per directives of BFIU.

GREEN BANKING FOR SAFE ENVIRONMENT:

Green Banking is a common concept in the world
and global warming is a great issue in protection of
hygienic society. There is a high possibility of
playing significant role of Green Banking in global
warming issue. Green Banking indicates
endorsing environment friendly practices and
reducing carbon footprint from banking activities.

Main objectives of green banking are to ensure the
use of organizational resources infavour of the
environment and society.

Being a part of financial corporate house of the
country, Union Bank Limited is well concerned
about the enormous loss of biodiversity, climate
change and damage occurred in environment. We
would focus on environmental issues at the center
of banking activities.

Our bank has already come forward for policy
formulation, environmental risk rating, green
financing etc. Moreover, CSR activities for green
events and green projects, in house environment
management etc. are being considered actively.
The bank has formed a strong Green Banking unit
to look after the activities related to green banking
and formulated a green office guide.

The Managers of the branches are being motivated
and encouraged to put their best effort for boosting
up investment in green projects.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Human resources always consider an integral part
of a successful Business Strategy. Successful
organizations realize the importance of well-trained
and motivated employees to achieve the
company's financial goals. Successful HR
departments realize the importance of keeping
employees' focus on the company's financial goals
while providing opportunities for employee growth
and advancement. Employees and management
must both realize that a cooperative, not
adversarial, relationship is vital to a company's
success.

Union Bank Ltd. being a service based financial
institute, always give emphasis on the growth &
development of its manpower to provide quality
services of its clients. It believes that the factors
which help the Bank to survive and differentiate it
from other banks are closely interlinked with the
quality of services and satisfaction of clients and
these depend on the qualification of employees,
efficiency & effectiveness of their works. As our
human resources give the organization a
significant competitive edge, we continue our
policy of recruiting the best possible professionals
and implement programs to develop & retain high
quality employees for facing challenges of 21¢
Century. The bank is making equal opportunity for
new talents in its process of recruitment and
selection. It is continuing its efforts towards the



development of its manpower by providing
required training, workshop, seminar etc. at home
and abroad to make them well equipped to provide
quality services to its customs. The Bank also
arranges priority-based training and workshop to
make its employees compliant to its regulatory
body as well as help them its employees for career
development.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended 10%
stock Dividend for the year ended December 31,
2015.

RETIREMENT & RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In the 39 Annual General Meeting, retirement/
re-election of the directors of the Bank will be as
per the companies Act, 1994, Bank Company
(Amendment) Act, 2013 and Articles of Association
of the Bank.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The present Auditor K M Hasan & Company,
Chartered Accounts appointed by the Board of
Directors has completed the last (2015) year as
Auditor. Board of Directors has recommanded
Syful Shamsul Alam & Co as Auditor for the year
2016.

FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE BANK

As banking business and industry growth depends
on lot of internal and external factors, it is not
always possible to predict the growth and way
forward upfront. We are expecting that policy taken
by Bangladesh Bank to strengthen the quality of
bank’s assets will continue in 2016. To comply with
Basel lll Requirement, we take proper initiatives to
strengthen our capital base as per guidelines of
Bangladesh Bank. Customer credit rating will be
the top priority in case of investment. Non-Profit
based income i.e. income from ancillary services
will be given due attention to remain stable in terms
of income generation and providing continuous
value addition for the shareholders. We have a
nurtured and superb quality of human capital
along with a prudent management to lead them
toward goal.
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e Opening of new Branches to important location
of the country;

e Expansion of business network at home and

abroad;

Priority Banking;

Internet Banking;

Modernization of the Training Institute;

Innovation  and introduction  of  new

liability/asset products;

e Expansion of ATM network.

APPRECIATION

Thanks to almighty Allah for the Business success
of the Bank in 2015. | would like to thank my Board
colleagues for their continued support and on their
behalf to express my thanks to Managing Director,
officials and also all staffs of Union Bank Ltd.

The UBL Board and management are confident
that the bank is well-positioned to continue its
growth journey in the coming years. This can be
achieved through an unwavering focus on
enhancing the bank’s customer service and
product proposition, adopting sound asset and
liability management, embracing market best
practices and practicing prudent risk management
and good governance.

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my
sincerest gratitude and appreciation to UBL
shareholders and clients for their trust and support.
And | would also like to thanks Bangladesh Bank,
Register of Joint Stock Companies and Firms and
all other concerned who have supported us and
extended to us their valuable co-operation.

May Almighty Allah grant his infinite mercy upon
us.

Ameen.
On behalf of the Board of Directors

W

Shahidul Alam
Chairman
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Report of the

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board of Director of Union Bank Limited has been constituted to serve as a watchdog
on behalf of the Board of Directors and carries oversight responsibilities. The Board of Directors sets out the overall
business plan and formulates policies that the Management is responsible for implementation. The Audit
Committee, on behalf of the Board, strives to ensure effective implementation of the process/ procedures set out in
the Business Plans and Policies.

Composition of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is comprised of the following four members:

Sl Name Status in the Board Status in the Audit Committee
1 Showkat Hossain, FCA Director Chairman
2 Mortuza Siddique Chowdhury ~ Director | Member
3 __ShahedulHuq _________ Director _________ Member
4 Arif Ahmed Director Member

Roles and Responsibilities of Audit Committee:
Beside any other responsibilities, which may assign from time to time by the Board, the Audit Committee is
responsible for the following matters:

Internal Control

e Evaluate whether management is setting the appropriate compliance culture by communicating the importance
of internal control and the management of risk and ensuring that all employees have understanding of their roles
and responsibilities.

e Consider whether internal control strategies/structure recommended by Internal & External Auditors time to time
have been implemented by the management.

e Review the corrective measures taken by the management as regards the reports relating to fraud-forgery,
deficiencies in internal control or other and inspectors of the regulatory authority and inform the Board on a
regular basis.

e Review Management Letters/Letter regarding weakness of Internal Control issued by statutory auditors.

e Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles, internal control risk management process, appointing of
external auditors and its’ performance.

Financial Reporting

e Review along with the management, the annual, half yearly and quarterly financial statement submission to the
Board for approval and determine whether they are complete and consistent with the accounting standards set
by the regulatory authority.

e Meet with management and the external auditors to review the financial statements before their finalization.

Internal Audit

e Evaluate whether Internal Audit functions operate independently.

e Review the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit plan.

e Review the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit functions.

e Review the findings and recommendations made by internal auditors for removing the regularities are duly
complied by the management in running the affairs of the Bank.

External Audit

e Review the auditing performance of the external auditors and audit report.

¢ Review the findings and recommendations made by the internal auditors for removing the detected irregularities
and running the affairs of the Bank are duly considered by the management.

e Make recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment of the external auditors for conducting audit
works of the Bank.
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Compliance with existing laws and Regulations
e Review whether the laws and regulations framed by the regulatory authorities (Bangladesh Bank, BSEC and
other bodies) and internal regulations approved by the Board are being complied with.

Other Responsibilities

e Place compliance report before the Board on quarterly basis regarding regularization of the errors & omissions,
fraud and forgeries and other irregularities and inspectors of regulatory authorities ;

e Perform other oversight functions as requested by the Board and evaluate the committee’s own performance on
a regular basis.

Meeting of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Bank held four meetings during the year 2015 and had detail discussions and review
sessions with Head of Internal Control & Compliance, External Auditors etc., regarding their findings, observations
and remedial suggestions on issue of the bank affairs that need improvement. The Audit Committee instructed
management to follow those remedial suggestions and monitored those accordingly.

Dates of Audit Meetings held during the year 2015 are:

Meeting Date of Meeting Held
__7th Audit Committee Meeting ~~ 26-022015
_8th Audit Committee Meeting 11062015
_9th Audit Committee Meeting ~~~~~~ 19-08-2015
10th Audit Committee Meeting 19-12-2015

Activities in 2015:

e Reviewed and examined the Annual Financial Statements, 2014 prepared by the Management and audited by

the external auditors K. M. Hasan & Co. Chartered Accountants and recommended these to place before the

Board of Directors for consideration.

Reviewed Risk Based Audit Policy.

Reviewed Admonitory/Reproving Measures to add in ICC Manual as a Para.

Reviewed draft copy of Internal Audit Charter.

Reviewed summary report of Comprehensive Audit report and Surprise Audit Report and Compliance of both

comprehensive and surprise audit report audited by Internal Audit during the year and recommended to submit

it to the Board Meeting.

e Reviewed Compliance report Bangladesh Bank's Comprehensive Audit report of Head Office as on 31-12-2013
and recommended to submit it to the Board Meeting.

¢ Reviewed Annual Health Report-2014.

e Reviewed Review of Overall Performance of Internal Control and Compliance Division and Issuance of
Certificate on the Effectiveness of the Internal Control System of the Bank for the year 2014 by MANCOM.

e Reviewed Financial Report of the Bank as on 31 March, 2015 and recommended to place it to the Board
Meeting.

e Reviewed summary report of Comprehensive Audit report and Surprise Audit Report and Compliance of both
comprehensive and surprise audit report audited by Internal Audit up to 30-06-2015 and recommended to
submit it to the Board Meeting.

e Reviewed Compliance report Bangladesh Bank's Comprehensive Audit report of Head Office as on 31-12-2014
and recommended to place it to the Board Meeting.

e Reviewed Financial Report of the Bank as on 30 June, 2014 and recommended to place it to the Board Meeting.
Reviewed Financial Report of the Bank as on 30 September, 2015 and recommended to place it to the Board
Meeting.

e Reviewed Self-Assessment of Anti-Fraud Internal Controland recommended to place it to the Board Meeting.
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Acknowledgement
The Audit Committee expresses its sincere thanks to the Members of the Board, Management and the Auditors for
their excellent support while carrying out and discharging their duties and responsibilities effectively and smoothly.

-

Showkat Hossain, FCA
Chairman
Audit Committee
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Report of
SHARI'AH
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Alhamdu Lillahi Rabbil Alamin,
Wassalatu Wassalamu Ala Syedil Ambia-E Wal Mursaleen Wa'Ala Alihi Wa Ashabihi Ajmaeen.

Union Bank is one and only 4" generation Islamic Bank. It has started its journey in 2013 with the commitment
of operating its all activities according to Shari'ah principles. An independent Shari'ah Supervisory
committee, consisting of renowned Islamic Scholars is providing necessary directions so that Bank’s
activities are conducted in accordance with Sharia’h principles.

The responsibility of Union Bank Shari’ah Supervisory Committee is to form an independent opinion, based
on their review of the operations of the bank. On the other hand, the management is responsible for ensuring
that the bank conducts its business in accordance with Islamic Shari’ah Rules and Principles.

In 2015, Shari'ah Supervisory Committee has conducted 3 meetings. Moreover 7 meetings has been held by
the Sub-Committee which is formed by the Shari’ah Supervisory Committee. In the meantime, Committee has
approved percentage of profit for distribution to Mudarabah depositor, transfer of Tk. 76 Lac only to Union
Bank Foundation from Zakat fund, and Bai Murabaha Investment Manual. Besides committee has provided
necessary directions to the Bank Management analyzing Bank’s different activities in the light of Shari'ah
principles. The Committee has also approved the Profit and loss accounts and balance sheet of 2015
financial year in the light of Shari’ah Principles.
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To examine all the transaction of Bank and to review those in the light of Shari'ah, the issue of appointing
necessary Muraqibs is under process.

To conduct Union Bank’s entire activities in comply with Shari'ah, the Shari’ah Supervisory Committee
continues its supervision and providing necessary directions through Shari'ah Secretariat.

May Allah give us tawfique to achieve His satisfaction through the implementation of Shari’ah in every sphere
of our life including those to Islamic Banking.

et

AN
Md. Mukhlesur Rahman Prof. Dr. Abu Reza Muhammad Nezamuddin Nadwi MP
Member Secretary Chairman

Shariah Supervisory Committee Shariah Supervisory Committee
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ale  December 19, 2015
& ' Royal Tullp Sea Pear| Beach flesort & Spa
X Inani, Cox's Bazar

2" Annual General Meeting held on 19" December, 2015 at Royal Tulip Sea Pearl Beach Resort
& Spa, Inani, Cox'sbazar.

“ MANAGE®S' CONFERENCE-2015 7"
10
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Managers’ Conference - 2015.
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Mr. Md. Abdul Hamid I\/I|ah Managing Director of Unlon Bank Ltd is seen to dellverlng a speech
at Half Yearly Managers’ Conference -2015.
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Opening of Banani Branch, Dhaka.
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Opening of Banpara Branch, Natore.
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Opening of Mawna Branch, Gazipur.




Annual Report | 2015

T et S RSN A R T T S

—

k;' B -
- T e
732 Seae™ 2’1’

Opening of Narayangonj Branch, Narayangon;.
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Opening of Pabna Branch-, Pabna
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pening of DT Road Eidgaon Branch, Chittagong.
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Md. Abdul Hamid Miah,
Managing Director of Union
~ Bank Ltd. inaugurated the ATM
. Booth at Banani Branch
premises.

Md. Abdul Hamid Miah,
Managing Director of Union
Bank Ltd. inaugurated the
ATM Booth at Mirpur Branch
premises.
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Concluding Ceremony
of

Participants  of  Foundation
Course with Chief Guest &
Special Guests.

NBAN

aAsSE

Participants receiving certificate |
on workshop on Prevention of s
Money Laundering  Terrorist
Financing.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The modern concept of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is evolving
gradually despite several hindrances. Driving forces behind this evolution is
pressure from various stakeholders (Importers, Environmentalists) while slow
progress is attributed to lack of good governance, absence of strong labor
unions, consumer forums and above all lack of understanding by business
houses, specifically non-exporting ones, that CSR is not charity but is rather an
instrumental PR investment. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is gaining fast
global acceptance as a standard to assume environmentally sustainable and
socially equitable business practices.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ECONOMICAL ETHICAL ECOLOGICAL
RESPONSIBILITY RESPONSIBILITY RESPONSIBILITY




The role of business world-wide and specifically in
the developed economies has evolved from
classical 'profit maximizing' approach to a 'social
responsibly' approach, where businesses are not
only responsible to its stockholders but also to all of
its stakeholders in a broader inclusive sense. With
increased globalization, local businesses are being
integrated with the global economy than ever hence
pressure is mounting on local businesses to
converge on international standards of socially
responsible business.

As a member of the global economy, Bangladesh is
also aware of the need to take positive initiative to
establish an image of environmentally and socially
responsible businesses. CSR as a concept is being
gradually interwoven into the psyche of local
business, however, the process is slow and only in
its infancy. In most of the cases, CSR practices are
not particularly framed in the context of seeing to in
that the money being given as corporate donations
had been part of a sustaining community
development effort.

The banking sector of Bangladesh has been
actively participating in various social activities.
However, these efforts were hardly recognized and
labeled as CSR activities since most of the financial
institutions have not integrated CSR in their routine
operation, rather these were in the form of
occasional charity or promotional activities.
Bangladesh Bank has taken initiatives in respect of
formalizing CSR in the banking sector of
Bangladesh and issued a directive to the banks
and financial institutions on June 01, 2008 in this
regard. It defined the strategic objective for CSR
engagement, provided some priority areas with a
suggestion to foster CSR in their client businesses,
and suggested a first time CSR program indicating
some likely action plans.

Bangladesh Bank will monitor CSR adoption and
CSR performance of banks and financial
institutions, as an additional dimension of their
management performance. Bangladesh Bank also
had the opportunity to provide a sense of direction
to the CSR agenda of the banking sector when it
suggested that, banks which are taking measures
for rehabilitating, agriculture, fisheries, livestock,
and protecting environment, will be considered as
more compliant of Corporate Social Responsibility
besides providing relief to the people affected in
natural calamities like 'Sidr' and 'Aila’. The banking
community has responded sensibly to the call for
CSR and sustainable social development. We are
also observing a gradual but qualitative change in
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the CSR action programs undertaken by banks. For
example:

e Disaster relief and rehabilitation became the
segment where the highest number of banks
participated to help case the sufferings of the
affected people. In the current context, there is
a desired move from the traditionally popular
fields of education or health.

e Several banks introduced micro-finance for the
target groups, such as poor farmers, landless
peasants, women entrepreneurs, rootless slum
people, handicapped people, etc.

e More and more banks have taken long-term or
renewable scholarship programs for
under-privileged but meritorious students for the
persuasion of their studies, instead of providing
one-time  recognition awards to good
performers.

e Some banks choose to provide continued
financial support for maintaining operating
costs of health care organizations.

Without a 'governance framework', businesses may
face substantial difficulties in finding and
maintaining appropriate boundaries for their CSR
interventions, and they may find themselves
pressured into activities that are beyond their core
competence and represent a financial drain on
business rather than a sensible CSR investment.
The initiative of Management and Resources
Development Initiative (MRDI) aiming at proper
utilization of CSR funds by means of seeking
commitment from the leaders of trade and industry
to  undertaken target-oriented actions  for
sustainable social development is appreciable.

MRDI has right pointed out that as an alternative
development funds, CSR can contribute to poverty
reduction and supplement government's efforts
towards achieving the millennium development
goals. In a developing country like ours with modest
resources, it is important that we deploy our
resources most usefully, and hence, we should
make an effort to have an overall national policy on
CSR that starts from building understanding of CSR
incentives and pressure points and improving
strategic interactions and alignment between
public policy goals and the CSR-related activities of
business.

As a fourth generation scheduled commercial Bank
we are intensively focusing on CSR activities.
Expenditure on CSR activities gradually increasing
each and every year of our Bank. Bangladesh Bank
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY




Annual Report | 2015

- A J’D|-

L=

R I e e e LRI L R et et L e

has declared new guidelines for CSR activities. We are proceeding based on this direction.

In 2015 we have spentan amount of Tk.10,92,81,860.00 (Taka Ten Crore Ninety Two Lac Eighty One
Thousand Eight Hundred Sixty) only in different sectors. CSR expenditure on different sectors is given here.

Amount n TK)

.. Bdueation 3,32,95,000.00
L Realth .. 72,47,00000
__._._ DisasterManagement ... 6,66,54,860.00
Cultural welfare 10,00,000.00
~ Income generating activities for the underprivileged population 15,000.00
~ Infrastructure improvement in remote/underprivileged areas ! 50,000.00
~ Others 10,20,000.00
- TotalAmount 10928186000

We are also adding here some photographs on CSR activities of Union Bank Ltd. for the year 2015 with
captions.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY




Annual Report | 2015

it N ST R A T L A

Mr. Shahidul Alam, Chairman of Union Bank Ltd. handing over a cheque to Honorable Prime
Minister Sheikh Hasina for Prime Minister’s Relief Fund as the part of CSR activities.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Mr. Shahidul Alam, Chairman of Union Bank Ltd. handing over blanket to Honorable Prime Minister
Sheikh Hasina for Prime Minister’s Relief Fund as the part of CSR activities.
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Mr. Md. Abdul Hamid Miah, Managing Director of Union Bank Ltd. handing over blanket to
Bangladesh Bank for less fortunate people.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Mr. Md. Abdul Hamid Miah, Managing Director of Union Bank Ltd. distributing blanket to the less
fortunate cold affected people during last winter as the part of CSR activities.
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Mr. Md. Abdul Hamid Miah, Managing Director of Union Bank Ltd. handing over a cheque to Mr. Md.
Sazzad Hossain for his kidney transplant treatment as a part of CSR activities.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY




" w‘& e w2 l




_M’”
MARKET DISGIPLINE:

~ DISECOSURES ON
SED CAPITAL (BASEL-II)
AS ON 31.12.2015



Annual Report | 2015

R I e e e LRI L R et et w2 e e B i i T r'ibl".’

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015

—]
<
=
o
<<
o
Faay -]
=
53
@B
<o
=D
(7]
o
—
o
7]
=)

L

Market Discipline:
Disclosures on Risk Based Capital
(Basel-Ill) as on 31t December 2015

Background:

The detailed qualitative and quantitative disclosures of Union Bank are provided in accordance with
Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy by Bangladesh Bank. The purpose of these requirements is to
complement minimum capital requirement and Supervisory review process. These disclosures are intended
for more transparent and more disciplined financial market where the participants can assess key information
about the Bank's exposure to various risks.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) issued “Basel IlI: A global regulatory framework for
more resilient banks and banking systems” in December 2010. The objective of the reforms was to improve
the banking sector’s ability to absorb shocks arising from financial and economic stress, whatever the
source, thus reducing the risk of spillover from the financial sector to the real economy.

The disclosures of the Bank under Basel-lll requirements based on the position as of 31.12.2015 are
presented as per the guidelines of Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular No.18 dated 21.12.2014 on
“Guideline on Risk Based Capital Adequacy on Banks”. These disclosures are intended for stake holders to
access key information about the Bank's exposure to various risks and to provide a consistent &
understandable framework for easy comparison among peer banks operating in the market.

Validation & Consistency:

The disclosures (qualitative and quantitative) under the revised Risk Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA)
framework as advised by Bangladesh Bank, is based on the audited financial position of the bank as of 31
December 2015.

Scope of Application:
This disclosure builds on the directive on Disclosure of information by banking institutions, to provide detailed
guidance on the public disclosures of information by banks under Pillar 3 of Basel lll requirements.

Disclosure framework:

According to the revised Risk Based Capital Adequacy Guidelines the Bank requires general qualitative
disclosure for each separate risk area (e.g. Investment, market, operational, banking book interest rate risk,
equity). The Bank must describe their risk management objectives and policies, including:

Strategies and processes;

The structure and organization of the relevant risk management function;

The scope and nature of risk reporting and/or measurement systems;

Policies for hedging and/or mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing
effectiveness of hedges/mitigations.




The following components set out in tabular form are the disclosure requirements:

AETIOTMMOO®>

Scope of Application
Capital Structure
Capital Adequacy
Credit Risk

Equities: Disclosures for Banking Book Positions

Interest (Profit) Rate Risk in Banking Book (IRRBB)
Market Risk
Operational risk
Liquidity Ratio
Leverage Ratio
Remuneration

1) Scope of Application

Qualitative disclosure

a)

The name of the top corporate entity
in the group to which this guidelines
applies.

Union Bank Limited
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An outline of differences in the basis
of consolidation for accounting and
regulatory purposes, with a brief
description of the entities within the
group (a) that are fully consolidated;
(b) that are given a deduction
treatment; and (c) that are neither
consolidated nor deducted (e.g.
where the investment is risk
weighted).

Union Bank Limited (UNBL) was incorporated on
07.03.2013 as a 4th generation private
commercial bankand started its banking
business under the license issued by
Bangladesh Bank. Presently the Bank has 44
(Forty Four) branches with fully online facility.
Considering huge demand of Shariah Based
Banking across the country as well as growing
demand of quality service in banking we found
enormous respond of our Banking service. To
unlock the potentials of missing middle income
group who are beyond the coverage of corporate
banking service and to focus on rural& micro
economic developments we devolved our
product & service in line with this. Modern
Technology as well as environmental issues was
also considered.

At present we are following the accounting on
solo basis with no deduction as we have no
subsidiaries.

Any restrictions, or other major
impediments, on transfer of funds or
regulatory capital within the group.

Not Applicable

The aggregate amount of surplus
capital of insurance subsidiaries
(whether deducted or subjected to
an alternative method) included in
the capital of the consolidated

group.

Not Applicable

TLN e O T e N ST R & N L S,

MARKET DISCIPLINE:
msm&yﬁﬁs ON RISK BASED CAPITAL
( -1lI) AS ON 31.12.2015
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2) Capital Structure
Qualitative disclosure

a) Summary information on the terms and TThe capital of bank shall be classified into two tiers.
conditions of the main features of all The total regulatory capital will consist of sum of the
capital instruments, especially in the following categories:

case of capital instruments eligible for
inclusion in CET -1, Additional Tier 1 or 1) Tier 1 Capital (going-concern capital)
Tier 2. a) Common Equity Tier 1

b) Additional Tier 1

2) Tier 2 Capital (gone-concern capital)

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET-1) Capital:
a) Paid up share capital,
b) Non-repayable share premium account,
c) Statutory Reserve,
d) General Reserve,
e) Dividend equalization reserve,
f)  Retained earnings
g) Minority interest in subsidiaries.

Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital:
a) Instruments issued by the banks that meet
the qualifying criteria for AT1;
b) Minority Interest ie. AT1 issued by
consolidated subsidiaries to third parties (for
consolidated reporting only);

Tier-2 Capital:
a) General Provisions;
b) Subordinated debt / Instruments issued by
the banks that meet the qualifying criteria for Tier
2 capital;
c) Minority Interest ie. Tier-2 issued by
consolidated subsidiaries to third parties.

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015
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Quantitative disclosure: As on 31.12.2015

b) | The amount of regulatory capital, with separate disclosure of: Fig. in Crore
Solo Consolidated
CET-1 Capital:
|. Paid up capital 428.00 -
II. Non repayable share premium account 0.00 -
IIl. Statutory reserve 23.32 -
IV. General reserve 14.57 -
V. Retained earnings 45.30 -
VI. Dividend equalization reserve 0.00 -
VIII. Minority interest in subsidiaries 0.00 -
Sub-Total: 511.20 -
Additional Tier 1 Capital: 0.00
Total Tier-1 Capital: 511.20
The total amount of Tier 2 Capital (General Provision) 49.59 -
c) Regulatory Adjustments/Deductions from capital 0.00 -
d) | Total eligible capital 560.79 -
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3) Capital Adequacy
Qualitative disclosure
a) A summary discussion of the bank’s - Bangladesh Bank adopted Basel-1 for credit risk
approach to assessing the adequacy through BRPD circular No. 01 dated January 08,
of its capital to support current and 1996.

future activities.
As per Section 13(2) of the Bank Companies Act
1991and instruction contained in BRPD circular
No. 35 dated 29 December 2010 Bangladesh
Bank published Guidelines on“Risk based Capital
Adequacy” (revised regulatory capital frame work
in line with Basel I1);

Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy
(RBCA) for banks’ (revised regulatory capital
framework in line with Basel — IlI) has been
introduced from January 01, 2009 parallel to
existing BRPD circular no. 10, dated November 25,
2002. At the end of parallel run period, Basel-ll
regime has been started and the guidelines on
RBCA have come fully into force from January 01,
2010.

To implement Basel-lll, Bangladesh Bank has
published a Roadmap through BRPD circular no-
07 dated March 31, 2014; subsequently, issued a
guidelines.

Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised regulatory
capital framework for bank in line with Basel Ill) on
21st December 2014. Basel Il capital regulations
would be fully implemented as on January 01,
2019.

MARKET DISCIPLINE:
msm&yﬁﬁs ON RISK BASED CAPITAL
( -1lI) AS ON 31.12.2015

Union bank is able to maintain Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) at 13.27% on
SOLO basis against the regulatory minimum level
of 10.00%. Tier-l capital adequacy ratio under
“Solo” basis is 12.10% against the minimum
regulatory requirement of 6%.
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Qualitative disclosure
Particulars Fig. in Crore
Solo Consolidated
b) Capital requirement for credit risk 396.74 -
c) Capital requirement for market risk 8.51 -
d) Capital requirement for operational risk 17.28 -

e) Total and Tier 1 capital ratio: - -
e For the consolidated group; and -
Minimum capital requirement 422 .48 -

Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) 4224.77 -
Total and Tier-1 Capital Ratio: -
e Total CRAR 13.27% -
° Tier-1 CAR 12.10% -
° Tier-2 CAR 1.17% -
f) | Capital Conservation Buffer As per BB guidelines on risk

based capital adequacy,
CapitalConservation Buffer is
not required for the year 2015.

a) Available Capital under Pillar 2 Requirement Yet not calculated -
4) Investment (Credit) Risk
Qualitative disclosure

a) The General Qualitative disclosure requiremeht with respect to investment (credit) risk, including:

i) Definitions of past due and impaired As per Bangladesh Bank guidelines, any Investment
(foraccounting purposes): if notrepaid within the fixed expiry date will be treated
as Past Due/Overdue.

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015

e Any Continuous Loan if not repaid/renewed within
the fixed expiry date for repayment or after the
demand by the bank will be treated as past
due/overdue from the following day of the expiry
date.
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e Any Demand Loan if not repaid within the fixed
expiry date for repayment or after the demand by
the bank will be treated as past due/overdue from
the following day of the expiry date.

e In case of any installment(s) or part of
installment(s) of a Fixed Term Loan is not repaid
within the fixed expiry date, the amount of unpaid
installment(s) will be treated as past due/overdue
from the following day of the expiry date.

e The Short-term Agricultural and Micro-Credit if not
repaid within the fixed expiry date for repayment
will be considered past due/overdue after six
months of the expiry date.
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The investments are classified as follows:

Continuous & Demand Loans are classified as:

e Sub-standard - if past due for 3 months or more,
but less than 6 months;

e Doubtful - if past due for 6 months or more, but less
than 9 months;

e Bad/Loss - if past due for 9 months or more.

Fixed Term Loans amounting up to 10 lacs are

classified as:

e Sub-standard - if the defaulted installment is equal
to or more than the amount of installment (s) due
within 6 (Six)months;

e Doubtful - if the defaulted installment is equal to or
more than the amount of installment (s) due within
9 (Nine)months;

e Bad/Loss - if the defaulted installment is equal to or
more than the amount of installment (s) due within
12 (Twelve)months.

Fixed Term Loans for more than 10 lacs are classified

as:

e Sub-standard - if the defaulted installment is equal
to or more than the amount of installment (s) due
within 3 (Three)months;

e Doubtful - if the defaulted installment is equal to or
more than the amount of installment (s) due within
6 (Six) months;

e Bad/Loss - if the defaulted installment is equal to or
more than the amount of installment (s) due within
9 (Nine)months.
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(BASEL-IIT) AS ON 31.12.2015

Short-term Agricultural and Micro Credit are

classified as:

e Sub-standard - if the irregular status continues
after a period of 12 (twelve) months;

e Doubtful - if the irregular status continues after a
period of 36 (thirty-six) months;

e Bad/Loss - if the irregular status continues after a
period of 60 (sixty) months.

A continuous credit, demand loan or term loan which
remains overdue for a period of 60 days or more is
classified as a “Special Mention Account (SMA)”.
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ii) Description of approaches followed for specific and general allowance and statistical methods:

Loans Classification
Sub Standard Doubtful

Bad & Loss

Type of Facility Overdue Provision i Provision Overdue Provision
Overdue Period
Period (%) (%) Period (%)
Continuous Loan 3 months or more 6 months or more 9 months
but less than 20% but less than 50% or more 100%
6 months 9 months
3 months or more 6 months or more 9 months
Demand Loan but less than 20% but less than 50% or more 100%
6 months 9 months
Fixed Term Loan 3 months or more 6 months or more 9 months
more than Tk. 10 lac but less than 20% butless than 50% or more 100%
6 months 9 months
Fixed Term Loan 6 months or more 9 months or more 12 months
up to Tk. 10 lac but less than 20% but less than 50% or more 100%
9 months 12 months
Short Term 12 months or more 36 months or more 60 months
Agricultural & but less than 5.0% but less than 5.0% or more 100%
Micro Credit 36 months 60 months

Unclassified general loans and advances 1%
Unclassified small and medium enterprise 0.25%
Loans to BHs/MBs/SDs against shares etc. 2%
Unclassified loans for housing finance and on loans for professionals 2%
Unclassified consumer financing other than housing financing and loans for professionals 5%
Short term agri credit and micro credit 2.50%
Off balance sheet exposures 1%

Specific provision on:

Substandard loans and advances other than short term agri credit and micro credit 20%
Doubtful loans and advances other than short term agri credit and micro credit 50%
Bad/loss loans and advances 100%
Substandard short term agri credit and micro credit 5%

Doubtful short term agri credit and micro credit 5%
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ii) | Decision of the Bank’sinvestment Risk is inherent in all aspects of a commercial
(Credit)RiskManagementPolicy; operation; however for Banks and financial
institutions, investment (credit) risk is an essential
factor that needs to be managed. Investment (credit)
risk is the possibility that a borrower or counter party
will fail to meet its obligations in accordance with
agreed terms. Investment (Credit) risk, therefore,
arises from the bank’s dealings with or lending to
corporate, individuals, and other banks or financial
institutions. To manage investment (credit) risk Union
Bank follows “Bangladesh bank’s Circulated Credit
Risk Management guidelines”.

b) Qualitative disclosure

Total gross credit risk exposures broken down by major types of credit exposure: Bangladesh Bank
guidelines on Basel Ill, stipulated to segregate bank’s asset portfolio into different categories, and the below
table shows our gross exposure in each asset category;

r?:» HEHCHRE (Fili:?: il:::e) =
a. Cash 37.33 E 10
b. Claims on Bangladesh Government and Bangladesh Bank 691.04 w§§
C. Claims on Banks & NBFls =2
i) Original maturity over 3 months 812.46 % :g
ii) Original maturity less than 3 months 674.46 g‘é,g
d. Claims on Corporate =3 ;
Different Risk Weights 1366.32 E E =
Unrated 1019.75 =22
e. Claims on SME ge
Different Risk Weights 589.78 2
Unrated (small enterprise  &<BDT 3.00m) 12.29
Unrated (small enterprise having > BDT 3.00m &Medium Enterprise) 54.09
f. Claims under Credit Risk Mitigation [From Work Sheet 1(a) of revised RBCA Guidelines]:
i)Corporate 309.79
ii)Retail & Small 90.44
iiilConsumer finance 11.26
iv)Residential real estate 0.16
g. Claims categorized as retail portfolio (excluding SME, Consumer Finance and Staff loan ) upto 1 crore 0.00
h. Consumer finance 2.34
i. Claims fully secured by residential property 3.14
j. Claims fully secured by commercial real estate 280.96
K. Investments in premises, plant and equipment and all other fixed assets 67.92
l. All other assets
i) Staff loan/investment 15.50
ii) Other assets (not specified above) [Net of specific provision, if any] 225.26
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Qualitative disclosure

c) | Geographical distribution of + Division-wise Exposure

exposures, broken down in significant ) investment BDT in crore
areas by major types of credit 1 Dhaka 2,691.28
exposure. 2 Chittagong 1,855.74
3. Khulna 1.43
4. Rajshahi 3.21
5 Sylhet 4.00
6 Rangpur 3.63
Total 4,559.29
Industry-wise Exposure

d) | Industry or counterparty type =L investment BDT in crore
dlstrlbytlon of exppsures, broken down 1. Agriculture 46.85
by major types of investment exposure 5 RMG 5190
3. Textile 283.96
4. Ship building 8.65
5. Other Manufacturing industry 112.24
6. SME Investment 79.70
7. Construction 4.45
- 8. Transport, Storage & Communication 4.72
E 9. Trade Service 3,566.38
& ::_: 10. Commercial real estate financing 274.88
o a 11.  Residential real estate financing 3.14

Y o 12, Consumer Investment (credit) 2211

% AT 13. Capital Market 43.86

o ) Others 56.45

% = Total 4,559.20

(%)

M= e) | Residual contractual maturity Sl. Particulars S

~ = . BDT in crore

L= breakdown of the whole portfolio,

‘E‘: c e broken down by major types of 1. Repayable on Demand 55.51
nZ investment (credit) exposure. 2. Upto 1 month 143.01
3 (=) 3. Over 1 month but not more than 3 months 565.26
g 4, Over 3 months but not more than 1 year 3,440.09
= 5. More than 1year but less than 5 year 330.84

6. Over 5 years 24.58
Total 4,559.29
f) By major industry or counterparty type:
i)  Amount ofimpaired investment | The amount of classified investment of the bank is as
(loans) and if available, past due | under:
investment/ loans, provided separately; Sl Particulars Fig. in Crore
1. SS 0.04
2. DF 0.05
3. B/L 0.00
Total - 0.09
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Qualitative disclosure
i) Specific and general provisions; Specific and general provisions were made on the
amount of classified and unclassified investments/loans
and advances, off-balance sheet exposures and
off-shore banking units, interest on receivable,
diminution in  value of investment and other
assets-suspense of the Bank according to the
Bangladesh Bank guidelines.
Particulars Fig. in Crore
Provision required: Provisions as on 31.12.2015
Unclassified Investments 46.87
Classified Investment 0.03
Off-balance sheet 4.64
Total 51.54
Q) Gross Non Performing Assets (NPAs):
Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) to Outstanding i
Investment/loans and advances. =
o n
Particulars Fig.in Crore S =
Opening balance 0.00 mE:
Movement of Non Performing Assets Addition during the year 0.09 = é’ =
(NPAS). Reduction during the year 0.00 <n_-; x ;
Closing balance 0.09 g = 8
L=
Particulars Fig.in Crore = ] =
- Opening balance 0.00 ‘E‘ %‘:5
Movement of specific provisions for | provisions made during the period 0.03 ae=
NPAs. Write-off 0.00 =
Write-back of excess provisions 0.00 ‘é’
Closing Balance 0.03

Note: Bank maintained Tk. 52.95crore for provision of investment.
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5) Equities: Disclosures for Banking Book Positions
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a)

Qualitative disclosure

The general qualitative disclosures requirement with respect to equity risk, including

Differentiation between holdings on
which capital gains are expected and
those taken under other objectives
including for relationship and strategic
reasons;

Equity price risk is the risk of losses causes by
changes in equity prices. These losses cloud arise
because of changes in the value of listed shares held
directly by the bank; changes in the value of listed
shares held by bank subsidiary; changes in the value
of listed shares used as collateral for loans a bank or
a bank subsidiary, whether or not the loan was made
for the purpose of buying the shares; and changes in
the value of unlisted shares. Equity price risk associ-
ated with equities could be systematic or unsystem-
atic. The former refers to sensivity of portfolio’s value
to change in overall level of equity price, while the
later is associated with ice velocity that is determined
by firm specific characteristics.

Discussion of important policies
covering the valuation and accounting
of equity holdings in the banking book.
This includes  the  accounting
techniques and valuation
methodologies used, including key
assumptions and practices affecting
valuation as well as significant changes
in these practices

From an accounting perspective in Bangladesh,
equity risk is “one-sided” equity securities must be
held at the lower of cost or market value. If market
value drops below cost, banks are required to from
loss allowances or “provisions” on the liability side of
the balance sheet, by means of an expense on the
profit & loss statement. However, if market values rise
above cost there is no corresponding income
recorded unless the securities are sold.

The equity markets are traditionally volatile with a
high-risk, high-returns profile. As such investors in the
equity market have to plan and strategize to reduce
their risks and increase their returns. Equity invest-
ments must therefore go hand in hand with a good
risk management plan in place. In an uncertain
marketplace like the present, investor cannot afford to
place all hope in only one thing. Therefore, it is very
important to protect the total investment value by
means of diversification.Investments in shares of
Union Bank are made with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the
management of their own affairs, not for speculation,
but for investment, considering the probable safety of
capital as well as the probable income to be derived.
The Bank recognizes that no investment is totally free
from risk and that occasional measured losses are
inevitable in a diversified portfolio and will be consid-
ered within the context of the overall portfolio’s return,
provided that adequate diversification has been
implemented and that the sale of a security is in the
best interest of the Bank.

The Management of Union Bank has constituted an
Investment Committee / team comprising of members
from the senior executives of the bank who have
sound experiences and knowledge on Capital Market
activities.
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b) Quantitative Disclosures: BDT in crore
b) Value disclosed in the balance sheet of At Cost At Market
investments, as well as the fair value of those Value
investments; for quoted securities, a 40.62 35.92
comparison to publicly quoted share values
where the share price is materially different
from fair value.
c) The cumulative realized gains (losses) arising
from sales and liquidations in the reporting (31 0.05
December 2015) period.
d) Total unrealized gains (losses) (4.70)

e Total latent revaluation gains (losses) Not applicable

e Any amounts of the above included in Tier 2 capital. Not applicable

e) Capital requirements broken down by appropriate equity groupings,
consistent with the bank’s methodology, as well as the aggregate
amounts and the type of equity investments subject to any
supervisory provisions regarding regulatory capital requirements

6) Interest (Profit) Rate Risk in Banking Book (IRRBB)

Qualitative disclosure

Not applicable

a) The general qualitative disclosure Market risk is the potential losses in the on-balance
requirement including the nature of sheet and off-balance sheet positions of a bank,
IRRBB and key assumptions, including steams from adverse movement in market rates or
assumptions regarding loan prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
prepayments and  behavior  of equity prices, credit spreads and/or commodity
non-maturity deposits, and frequency prices.

of IRRBB measurement.

MARKET DISCIPLINE:
msm&yﬁﬁs ON RISK BASED CAPITAL
( -1lI) AS ON 31.12.2015

Banks may be expressed to market risk in variety of
ways:

e May be explicit in portfolios of securities/equities
and instruments that are actively traded;

e May be explicit such as interest rate risk due to
mismatch of assets and liabilities;

e May arise from activities categorized as
off-balance sheet items.

Sources of Interest rate risk are:

¢ Re-pricing risk;
e Yield curve risk;
e Basis risk;
e Optionality
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Sound interest rate risk management involves the
application of following basic elements in the
management of assets, liabilities and OBS
instruments:

e Appropriate board and senior management
oversight;

e Adequate risk management policies and
procedures;

e Appropriate risk management, monitoring and
control function;

e Comprehensive internal controls and independent
audits.

As with other risk factor categories, interest rate risk
should be monitored on a consolidated,
comprehensive basis, to include interest rate
exposures in subsidiaries. At the same time, banks
should fully recognize any legal distinctions and
possible obstacles to cash flow movements among
affiliates and adjust their risk management process
accordingly. While consolidation may provide a
comprehensive measure in respect of interest rate
risk, it may also underestimate risk when positions in
one affiliate are used to offset positions in another
affiliate. This is because a conventional accounting
consolidation may allow theatrical offsets between
such positions from which a bank may not in practice
be able to benefit because of legal or operational
constraints. Management should recognize the
potential for consolidated measures to understate
risks in such circumstances.

b)

The increase (decline) in earnings or
economic value (or relevant measure
used by management) for upward and
downward rate shocks according to
management’s method for measuring
IRRBB, broken down by currency (as
relevant)

Assumed change in Profit Rate 1% 2% 3%
Net investment income impact

<12 months 4.55 9.11 13.66
Capital after-shock 565.34 569.90 574.45
CAR after-shock (%) 13.38 13.49 13.60

Change in CAR after-shock (%)  0.11 022 032
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7. Market Risk
Qualitative disclosure
a) i) Views of Board of Directors Banks may be exposed to market risk in variety of
(BOD)on trading/investment ways. Market risk exposure:
activities.

e May be explicit in portfolios of securities/equities
and instruments that are actively traded;

e May be explicit such as interest rate risk due to
mismatch of assets and liabilities;

e May arise from activities categorized as
off-balance sheet items.

Effective board and senior management oversight of
the bank’s overall market risk exposure is a
foundation of risk management process. For its part,
the board is responsible to:

a) Define bank's overall risk appetite in relation to
market risk;

b) Ensure that bank's overall market risk exposure is
maintained at prudent levels and consistent with
the available capital;

c) Ensure that senior management as well as
individuals ~ responsible  for  market  risk
management possesses sound expertise and
knowledge to accomplish the risk management
function;

d) Ensure that the bank implements sound
fundamental principles that facilitate the
identification, measurement, monitoring and
control of market risk;

e) Ensure that adequate resources (technical as well
as human) are devoted to market risk
management;

f) Review and approve market risk policies based on
recommendations by the bank's senior
management;

g) Review periodically, but at least once a year, the
market risk management program, policy,
techniques, procedures and information systems
referred to in that policy;

h) Outline the content and frequency of management
market risk (for each type of risk) reports to the
Board;

i) Ensure that an independent inspection/audit
function reviews the credit operations, foreign
exchange operations and securities portfolio
management functions to ensure that the bank's
market risk management policies and procedures
are appropriate and are being adhered to; and

j) Review specially the trends in securities portfolio
quality and value.
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7. Market Risk
Qualitative disclosure
Standardized approach has been used to measure
ii) Methods used to measure Market the market risk. The total capital requirement in
risk. respect of market risk is the aggregate capital

requirement calculated for each of the risk
sub-categories. For each risk category minimum
capital requirement is measured in terms of two
separately calculated capital charges for ‘specific
risk’ and ‘general market risk’ under Basel-lll.

The Treasury Division manages market risk covering
iii) Market Risk Management system. Liquidity, profit rate and foreign exchange risk with
oversightfrom  Assets Liability ~ Management
Committee (ALCO) comprising SeniorExecutives of
the Bank. ALCO is chaired by the Managing Director
& CEO of the Bank. ALCO meets at least once in a

month.
The bank has put its Asset Liability Management
iv)Policies and processes for mitigat- policy by setting various risk limits for effective
ing market risk. management of market risk and ensuring that the

operations are in line with bank’s expectation of return
to market risk through proper Asset Liability
Management. The policies also deal withthe reporting
framework for effective monitoring of market risk.

The ALM Policy specifically deals with liquidity risk
management and profit rate risk management
framework. Liquidity risk is managed through Gap &
Duration analysis, based on residual
maturity/behavioral pattern of assets and liabilities, as
prescribed by the Bangladesh Bank. The Bank has
put in place mechanism of Liquidity Contingency
Plan. Prudential (Tolerance) limits are prescribed for
different residual maturity time buckets for efficient
Asset Liability Management. Liquidity profile of the
Bank is evaluated through various liquidity
ratios/indicators.

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015
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Foreign Exchange risk is the risk or chance of loss
due to unexpected movement of market price of the
currencies of different countries or the price of the
assets denominated by foreign currencies. For
effective and efficient management of Foreign
Exchange Risk, the Bank has a well-developed and
well-structured Foreign Exchange Risk Manual and
an international standard Dealing Room Manual.
Various limits are set to monitor and mitigate the
Foreign Exchange risk such as, Net Open Position
(NOP) limits (Day limit / Overnight limit), deal-wise
cut-loss limits, Stop-loss limit, Profit / Loss in respect
of cross currency trading etc. and exception

@ reporting is regularly carried out.
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Qualitative disclosure
b) | The capital requirements for: Solo Consolidated

Particulars Fig. in Crore

Profit rate risk 0.00 -

Equity position risk 7.18 -

Foreign exchange risk 1.33 -

Commodity risk 0.00 -

Total Capital Requirement 8.51 -

8 Operational Risk
Qualitative disclosure
a) i) View of BOD on system to reduce Operational Risk is defined as the risk of unexpected
Operational Risk losses due to physical catastrophe, technical failure

and human error in in the operation of a bank,
including fraud, failure of management.

a) Establish tolerance level and set strategic direction
in relation to operational risk. Such a strategy
should be based on the requirements and
obligation to the stakeholders of the bank;

b) Approve the implementation of a bank-wide
framework to explicitly manage operational risk as
a distinct risk to the bank's safety and soundness;

c) Provide senior management clear guidance and
direction regarding the principles underlying the
framework and approve the corresponding
policies developed by senior management;

d) Establish a management structure capable of
implementing the bank's operational risk
management framework specifying clear lines of
management responsibility, accountability and
reporting; and

e) Review the operational risk management
framework regularly to ensure that the bank is
managing the operational risks. This review
process should also aim to assess industry best
practice in operational risk management
appropriate for the bank's activities, systems and
processes.

MARKET DISCIPLINE:
msm&yﬁﬁs ON RISK BASED CAPITAL
( -1lI) AS ON 31.12.2015

ii) Performance gap of executives and Bank has a policy to provide competitive package

staffs and best working environment to attract and retain the
most talented people available in the industry. Bank’s
strong brand image plays an important role in
employee motivation. As a result, there is no
significant performance gap.




Annual Report | 2015

R I e e e LRI L R et et

iii) Potential external events The potential external events that may pose the bank
in to operational risks are as follows.

1. External Fraud: Acts by a third party, of a type
intended to defraud, misappropriate property or
circumvent the law. Examples include robbery,
forgery, and damage from computer hacking.

2. Taxation Risk: Sudden changes in tax laws and
regulation that hamper the profitability of a bank.

3. Legal Risk: Legal risk is the risk of the Bank’s losses
in cases of:

i) Incompliance of the Bank with the requirements
of the legal regulations;

i) Making legal mistakes in carrying out activities;

iii) Imperfection of the legal system iv) Violation of
legal regulations, terms and conditions of
concluded agreements by the counterparties.

4. Damage of physical asset: Loss or damage to
physical assets from natural disaster or other
events. Example includes terrorism, vandalism,
earthquakes, fires, floods etc.

5. Business disruption and system failures: Disruption
of business or system failures. Examples include
telecommunication problems, utility outages etc.

6. Execution, delivery and process management:
Failed transaction processing or process
management, and relations  with  trade
counterparties and vendors. Examples include,
non-client counterparty mis-performance, vendor
disputes etc.

iv) Policies and processes for mitigating The bank should put in place an operational risk
operational risk management policy. The policy at minimum, include:

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015

e The strategy given by the board of the bank;

e The systems and procedures to institute effective
operational risk management framework;

e The structure of operational risk management
function and the roles and responsibilities of
individuals involved.
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v) Approach for calculating capital | The capital charge for operational risk is a fixed

charge for operational risk percentage, denoted by a (alpha) of average positive
annual gross income of the bank over the past three
years. Figures for any year in which annual gross
income is negative or zero, should be excluded from
both the numerator and denominator when
calculating the average. The capital charge may be
expressed as follows:

K=[(Gl 1+ GI2 + GI3) x a]/n
Where-

K = the capital charge under the Basic Indicate or
Approach

Gl = only positive annual gross income over the
previous three years(i.e., negative or zero gross
income if any shall be excluded)

a = 15 percent

n = number of the previous three years for which
gross income is positive.

Gross Income (Gl) is defined as “Net Investment

—
=<
=
o n

: <<
Income” plus “Net non- Investment Income”. It is Co
intended that this measures hold: g e o
i. Be gross of any provisions; S&-
i. Be gross of operating expenses, including fees o : ™
paid to out sourcing service providers ztﬁg
iii. Exclude realized profits/ losses from the sale of =] “z: 2
securities held to maturity in the banking book; o o~
iv. Exclude extra ordinary or irregular items; § =
v. Exclude income derived from insurance. S
2L
Om
— ~—
(&)
Qualitative disclosure ‘é’
BDT in crore
b)  The capital requirements for operational risk 17.23
Capital Charge for Operational Risk-Basic Indicator Approach
Year Gross Income (Gl) Average Gross Income (AGl) Capital Charge =15% of AGI
2013 40.16
2014 98.23 114.86 17.23

2015 206.13
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9) Liquidity Ratio
Qualitative disclosure

a) Views of Board of Directors (BOD) on The BOD should have the overall responsibility for
system to reduce liquidity Risk management of liquidity risk. Generally, the
responsibilities of the board include:

a) Providing guidance on the level of appetite for
liquidity risk;

b) Appointing senior managers who have ability to
manage liquidity risk and delegate to them the
required authority to accomplish the job;

c) Continuously monitoring the bank's performance
and overall liquidity risk profile through reviewing
various reports; and

d) Ensuring that senior management takes the steps
necessary to identify measure, monitor and control
liquidity risk.

Method used to measure Liquidity risk The liquidity risk strategy defined by Board should
enunciate specific policies on particular aspects of
liquidity risk management, such as:

a) Composition of assets and liabilities: The strategy
should outline the mix of assets and liabilities to
maintain liquidity. Liquidity risk management and
asset/liability management should be integrated to
avoid high costs associated with having to rapidly
reconfigure the asset liability profile from maximum
profitability to increased liquidity.

b) Diversification and stability of liabilities: A funding
concentration exists when a single decision or a
single factor has the potential to result in a
significant and sudden withdrawal of funds. Since
such a situation could lead to an increased risk, the
Board and senior management should specify
guidance relating to funding sources and ensure
that the bank has diversified sources of funding
day-to-day liquidity requirements.

c) Managing liquidity in different currencies: The
bank should have a strategy on how to manage
liquidity in different currencies.

d) Dealing with liquidity disruptions:The bank should
put in place a strategy onhow to deal with the
potential for both temporary and long-term liquidity
disruptions. The interbank market can be important
source of liquidity. However, the strategy should
take into account the fact that in crisis situations
access to interbank market could be difficult as
well as costly.

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015
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Liquidity risk management system In Union Bank, at the management level, the liquidity
risk is primarily managed by the Treasury Division
under oversight of ALCO which is headed by the
Managing Director along with other senior
management.

Treasury Division upon reviewing the overall funding
requirements on daily basis sets their strategy to
maintain acomfortable/adequate liquidity position
taking into consideration of Bank's approved credit
deposit ratio, liquid assets to total assets
ratio,asset-liability maturity profile, Bank's
earning/profitability as well as overall market behavior
and sentiment etc. Apart from Risk Management
Division also monitors & measures the liquidity risk in
line with the Basel Ill liquidity measurement tools,
namely, LCR, NSFR, and Leverage Ratio. RMD
addresses the key issues and strategies to maintain
the Basel Il liquidity ratios to the respective
division(s) on regular interval.

Policies and process for mitigating risk The bank should include in liquidity risk management
policy;

a) Develop and implement procedures and practices
that translate the Board's goals, objectives, and
risk appetite into operating standards that are well
understood by bank personnel and consistent with
the board's intent;

b) Adhere to the lines of authority and responsibility
that the Board has approved for managing liquidity
risk;

c) Oversee the implementation and maintenance of
management information and other systems that
identify, measure, monitor, and control the bank's
liquidity risk;

d) Develop and recommend liquidity and funding
policies for approval by the Board and implement
the liquidity and funding policies;

e) Develop lines of communication to ensure the
timely dissemination of the liquidity and funding
policies and procedures to all individuals involved
in the liquidity management and funding risk
management process;

f) Ensure that liquidity is managed and controlled
within the liquidity management and funding
management programs;

g) Ensure the development and implementation of
appropriate reporting systems with respect to the
content, format and frequency of information
concerning the bank's liquidity position, in order to
permit the effective analysis, sound and prudent
management and control of existing and potential
liquidity needs;
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Quantitative Disclosure BDT in Million/Percentage
b) Components Amount
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) 280.93%
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) 150.77%
Stocks of high quality liquid assets 702.37
Total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days 250.02
Available amount of stable funding 5,520.11
Required amount of stable funding 3,661.17

10) Leverage Ratio

Qualitative disclosure

a) Views of BOD on system to reduce | The BOD should have the overall responsibility is to
excessive leverage monitor overall activities of the bank. The Board
should decide the strategy, policies and procedures
of the bank to manage leverage ratio in accordance
with the risk tolerance/limits as per the guidelines. The
risk tolerance should be clearly understood at all
levels of management. The Board should also ensure
that it understands the nature of the leverage ratio.
BOD must periodically reviews information necessary
to maintain  this understanding, establishes
executive-level lines of authority and responsibility for
managing the bank’s leverage ratio. Bank’s top
management should be responsible for ensuring
adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the Board
as well as implementing the risk management
strategy of the bank in line with bank’s decided risk
management objectives and risk tolerance.

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015

Policies and processes for managing | The Leverage Ratio (LR) playing a key role in avoiding
excessive on and off-balance sheet such adverse developments in the future. The LR is a
leverage non-risk-based capital measure and is defined as Tier
1 capital over a bank’s total exposure measure, which
consists of both on and off-balance-sheet items. It is
widely expected that the LR will become a Pillar 1
requirement for banks under Basel IIl.
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Approach for calculating exposure At its highest level, the leverage ratio can be
summarized as a measure of capital as a proportion
of total adjusted assets. More specifically, it has been
defined as the average of the monthly leverage ratio
over the quarter based on Tier 1 capital (the capital
measure) and total exposure (the exposure measure).
The minimum ratio is currently calibrated at 3%.
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Quantitative Disclosure

BDT in Million/Percentage

b) Components Amount

Tire 1 Capital (after related deductions)
Total Exposure (after related deductions)

Leverage Ratio =

Bangladesh Bank Requirement >3%
Leverage Ratio 7.97%
On balance sheet exposure 6,304.77
Off balance sheet exposure 109.35
Total exposer 6,414.12

11) Remuneration

Qualitative disclosure

a)

Information relating to the bodies that
oversee remuneration. Disclosures
should include:

Name, composition and mandate of the
main body overseeing remuneration.

External consultants whose advice has
been sought, the body by which they
were commissioned, and in what areas
of the remuneration process.

A description of the scope of the bank’s
remuneration policy (eg by regions,
business lines), including the extent to
which it is applicable to foreign
subsidiaries and branches.

A description of the types of employees
considered as material risk takers and
as senior managers, including the
number of employees in each group.

Union Bank’s remuneration policies are in place to

provide assurance that remuneration decisions:

* Are aligned to the Bank’s strategy.

e Aid the attraction and retention of talent.

e Are market-relevant and affordable.

e Are internally equitable, consistent and
transparent.

e Encourage behavior that supports Bank’s long
term financial soundness and risk management
objectives.

e Ensure the independence of risk and control
personnel in the performance of their functions is
not compromised.

e Are compliant with corporate governance
requirements.

Union Bank’s Remuneration Committee comprises of
the Board of Directors and the Management
Committee who oversees the remuneration for all
employees. The Management Committee of the Bank
makes recommendations to the Board of Directors on
the remuneration policy of the Bank.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee include

general governance matters which include:

e Conducting regular reviews and making
recommendations to the Board on the Bank’s
Remuneration Policy. This must include an
assessment of the Remuneration Policy’s
effectiveness and compliance.

e Making annual recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of Directors of the Board and the
CEO.

At present there are no External consultants whose
advice has been sought for the remuneration
process.
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Union Bank Ltd. Remuneration Committee oversees
remuneration for Senior Managements and all other
employees. For the purposes of this remuneration
disclosure, a Senior Management includes:

e Managing Director.

e Additional Managing Director.

e Deputy Managing Director.

e Board Secretary.

e Head of HRD.

¢ Risk & Compliance Manager.

The Bank has 02 (Two) group of material Risk Takers
at present i.e., Senior Management and Branch
Managers. The total no. of Senior Management is 14
and the total no. of Branch Managers is 44.

made.

(BASEL-III) AS ON 31.12.2015
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Disclosures should include:
An overview of the key features and
objectives of remuneration policy.

b) Information relating to the design and
structure of remuneration processes.

Whether the remuneration committee
reviewed the firm’s remuneration policy
during the past year, and if so, an
overview of any changes that were

A discussion of how the bank ensures
that risk and compliance employees
are remunerated independently of the
businesses they oversee.

The key features and objectives of the Remuneration

policy are as follows:

e Attract and retain capable, motivated Employees.

e Attract Senior Executives with appropriate
knowledge and experience, with ability to drive
growth while maintaining stability and financial
soundness.

e Encourage behavior that supports long term
financial soundness and the risk management
framework.

e Ensure Remuneration arrangements are, and
remain, compliant with Corporate Governance
requirements.

In determining Remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee uses the following information supplied
through the Remuneration surveys:

e |ndustry comparative remuneration data across all
positions, including Directors.

e Remuneration benchmarking for organizations of
similar Asset Size.

account in the

bank takes into

measure  (values
disclosed).

c) Description of the ways
current and future risks are taken into
remuneration
processes. Disclosures should include:
An overview of the key risks that the
when
implementing remuneration measures.

in which

An overview of the nature and type of
the key measures used to take account
of these risks; including risks difficult to
not

The strategic planning process identifies all key
strategic risks and examines the Board’s risk in each
area. Part of each  Executive Managers Key
Performance Areas include reference to ensuring
risks of this nature that impact on their operations are
kept within Board tolerance levels at all times. If risks
fall outside nominated Board risk tolerance levels the
Executive Manager must design an action plan that
successfully implements controls aimed at mitigating
risk to acceptable levels.

Current and future risks relating to operational risks
follow the same approach as above. Executive
Managers are responsible for ensuring key
operational risks remain within Board approved
tolerance levels.

Whilst this is a key performance area for Executive
Manager, achievement of satisfactory results is linked
to financial incentives/ bonuses in some cases.
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Description of the ways in which the
bank seeks to link performance during
a performance measurement period
with levels of remuneration. Disclosures
should include:

An overview of main performance
metrics for bank, top-level business
lines and individuals.

A discussion of how amounts of
individual remuneration are linked to
bank-wide and individual performance.

A discussion of the measures the bank
will in general implement to adjust
remuneration in  the event that
performance metrics are weak

The Board sets the Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) whileapproving the business target/budget for
each year for the Bank and business lines/segments.
The management setsthe appropriate tools,
techniques and strategic planning(with  due
concurrence/approval of the Board)
towardsachieving those targets. The most common
KPIs are theachievement of loan, deposit and profit
target with thethreshold of NPL ratio, cost-income
ratio, cost of fund,yield on loans, provision coverage
ratio, capital to riskweighted asset ratio (CRAR), ROE,
ROA, liquidity position(maintenance of CRR and SLR)
etc.

The remuneration of each employee is paid based on
her/his individual performance evaluated as per set
criteria. And,accordingly, the aggregate amount of
remuneration of the Bank as a whole is linked/
impacted to the same extent.

The Bank follows remuneration process as per set
criteriawith no in general adjustment in the event of
weakperformance metrics/scorecard.

Description of the ways in which the
bank seek to adjust remuneration to

take account of longer-term
performance.  Disclosures  should
include:

A discussion of the bank’s policy on
deferral and vesting of variable
remuneration and, if the fraction of
variable remuneration that is deferred
differs across employees or groups of
employees, a description of the factors
that determine the fraction and their
relative importance.

A discussion of the bank’s policy and
criteria for  adjusting  deferred
remuneration before vesting and (if
permitted by national law) after vesting
through claw back arrangements.

The Bank pays variable remuneration i.e. annual
incrementbased on the yearly performance rating on
cash basis with the monthly pay. While the value of
longer term variable part of remuneration i.e. the
amount of provident fund, gratuity fund are made
provision on aggregate/individual employeebasis;
actual payment is made upon retirement,
resignationetc. as the case may be, as per rule.
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f)

Description of the different forms of
variable remuneration that the bank
utilizes and the rationale for using these
different forms. Disclosures should
include:

An overview of the forms of variable
remuneration offered (ie cash, shares
and share-linked instruments and other
forms

A discussion of the use of the different
forms of variable remuneration and, if
the mix of different forms of variable
remuneration differs across employees
or groups of employees), a description
the factors that determine the mix and
their relative importance.

Variable pay means the compensation as fixed by the
Board on recommendation of the Management, which
is based on the performance appraisal of an
employee in that role, that is, how well they
accomplish their goals. It may be paid as:

e Performance Linked Incentives to those
employees who are eligible for incentives.

e Ex-gratia for other employees who are not eligible
for Performance linked Incentives.

e Different awards based on
performance & achievement.

e Employee/Manager of the Month/Quarter award.

e Reimbursement/ award for brilliant academic/
professional achievement.

e | eave Fare Assistance (LFA)

extra-ordinary

a variable remuneration award during
the financial year.

Number and total amount of
guaranteed bonuses awarded during
the financial year.

Number and total amount of sign-on
awards made during the financial year.

Number and total amount of severance
payments made during the financial
year

Q) Number of meetings held by the main Not Applicable
body overseeing remuneration during
the financial year and remuneration
paid to its member.
h) Number of employees having received | Total No. of 07 employees have received a variable

remuneration award during the 2014/2015 Financial
Year.

Total no. & amount of 238 guaranteed bonuses
awarded during the 2014/2015 Financial Year.

There were no sign-on awards made during the
financial year.

There was no severance payment made during the
2014/2015 Financial Year.

Total amount of outstanding deferred
remuneration, split into cash, shares
and share-linked instruments and other
forms.

Total amount of deferred remuneration
paid out in the financial year.

There was no outstanding deferred remuneration,
split into cash, shares, share-linked Instruments and
other forms.
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Breakdown of amount of remuneration

awards for the financial year to show:

- Fixed and variable.

- Deferred and non-deferred.

- Different forms used (cash, shares
and share linked instruments, other
forms).

Not Applicable

Quantitative information about
employees’ exposure to implicit (eg
fluctuations in the value of shares or
performance units) and  explicit
adjustments (egclaw backs or similar
reversals or downward revaluations of
awards) of deferred remuneration and
retained remuneration:

Total amount of outstanding deferred
remuneration and retained
remuneration exposed to ex post
explicit and/or implicit adjustments.

Total amount of reductions during the
financial year due to ex post explicit
adjustments.

Total amount of reductions during the
financial year due to ex post implicit
adjustments.

Not Applicable
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Union Bank Limited (the “bank”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2015 and profit and loss account, statements of
changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the bank that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements of the bank that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The
Bank Company (Amendment) Act, 2013 and the Bangladesh Bank Regulations require the
management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management functions of
the Bank. The management is also required to make a self-assessment on the effectives of
anti-fraud internal controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements of the Bank based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Bank are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements of the Bank. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
of the Bank, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the
Bank that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements of the Bank.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Bank give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Bank as at 31 December 2015, and financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the Bank
Company (Amendment) Act, 2013 and rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also
report the following:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanation, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;
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b) To the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under the
Auditor's Responsibility section in forming the above opinion on the financial statements of the
Bank and considering the reports of the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud internal
controls and instances of fraud and forgeries as stated under the Management’s Responsibility
for the Financial Statements and Internal Control:

i) internal audit, internal control and risk management arrangements of the Bank as disclosed
in Note 2 of the financial statements appeared to be materially adequate;

i) nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity or
administrative error and exception or anything detrimental committed by employees of the
Bank;

c) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far
as it appeared from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the
purposes of our audit have been received from branches not visited by us;

d) The balance sheet and profit and loss account of the Bank dealt with by the report are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

e) The financial statements of the Bank have been drawn up in conformity with Bank Companies
Act, 1991 and in accordance with the accounting rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh
Bank and the financial statements conform to the prescribed standards set in the accounting
regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank after consultation with the professional accounting
bodies of Bangladesh;

f) The financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2015 and the profit for the year then ended
have been properly reflected in the financial statements and the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards(BFRSs);

g) Adequate provisions have been made for Investments which are, in our opinion, doubtful of
recovery;

h) The records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and
consolidated in the financial statements;

AUDITORS’ REPORT

i) The expenditures incurred during the year were for the purposes of the business of the Bank;
j) The information and explanation required by us have been received and found satisfactory;

k) Adequate capital of the bank as required by law, has been maintained during the period under
audit;

I)  We have reviewed over 80% of the Risk Weighted Assets of the Bank; and
m) We have spent approximately 2,520 person hours for the audit of books and accounts of the

Lﬂm@cﬁm@

Place: Dhaka K. M. Hasan & Co.
Date: 29 February 2016 Chartered Accountants
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UNION BANK LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Taka Taka

PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Cash 3 4,328,454,716 2,947,255,480
Cash in hand (Including foreign currencies) 3.1 373,322,352 182,258,022
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) 3.2 3,955,132,364 2,764,997,458
(Including foreign currencies)
Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions 4 7,089,867,254 6,780,123,150
In Bangladesh 4.A 6,834,554,162 6,755,752,963
Outside Bangladesh 4B 255,313,092 24,370,187
Placement with Banks and other Financial Institutions - -
Investments in Shares and Securities 5 3,106,187,398 1,440,040,651
Government 2,700,000,000 1,400,000,000
Others 406,187,398 40,040,651
Investments 6 45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234
General Investment (Bai-Murabaha, Bai-Muajjal, HPSM etc.) 6.A 37,548,628,509 22,097,263,399
Bills Purchased and Discounted 6.B 8,044,240,754 6,180,523,835
Fixed Assets Including Premises, Furniture & Fixtures
Other Assets 7 679,198,080 411,280,682
Non-banking Assets 8 2,263,384,368 1,095,042,270
Total Assets - -
63,059,961,079 40,951,529,467
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilities
Placement from Banks and other Financial Institutions
9 - -
Deposits and Other Accounts
Al-Wadia Current Accounts and Other Deposit Accounts
Bills Payable 10 55,568,427,147 34,767,309,800
Mudaraba Savings Bank Deposits 10.1 2,860,229,073 1,624,214,086
Mudaraba Term Deposits including other Banks 10.2 59,264,040 171,196,226
Mudaraba Deposits under Schemes 10.3 923,535,744 283,401,329
10.4 45,296,112,256 30,163,305,765
10.5 6,429,286,034 2,525,192,394
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Capital/Shareholders’ Equity 11 2,379,576,074 1,560,575,508
Paid-up Capital 57,948,003,221 36,327,885,308
Statutory Reserve
Other Reserve 12 4,280,000,000 4,280,000,000
Retained Earnings 13 233,241,638 75,578,898
Total Shareholders’ Equity 14 145,749,665 145,749,665
15 452,966,555 122,315,596
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 5,111,957,858 4,623,644,159
63,059,961,079 40,951,529,467
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UNION BANK LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Taka Taka

OFF- BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Contingent Liabilities

Acceptances and Endorsements 2,012,432,593 273,600,000
Letters of Guarantee 16 612,755,013 606,973,300
Irrevocable Letters of Credit 17 1,785,325,197 446,172,018
Bills for Collection 18 232,272,000 147,748,000
Other Contingent Liabilities - -

Total 4,642,784,803 1,474,493,318

Other Commitments

Documentary credits and short term trade related transactions = =
Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed - -
Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting facilities - -
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines & other commitments = =
Total - -

Total Off -Balance Sheet ltems Including
Contingent Liabilities 4,642,784,803 1,474,493,318

BALANCE SHEET

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

@Qf’y’(i A L /— J}‘J‘

Managing Director Director Director Chairman

Signed in terms of our per separate report of even date

Place: Dhaka K. M. HASE@)

Date: 29 February 2016 Chartered Accountants
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UNION BANK LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
LELS] LELE]

Investment Income

Profit paid on Deposits

Net Investment Income

Income from Investment in Shares and Securities
Commission, Exchange and Brokerage

Other Operating Income

Total Operating Income

Less: Operating Expenses

Salary and Allowances

Rent, Taxes, Insurances, Electricity etc.

Legal Expenses

Postage, Stamps, Telecommunication etc.
Stationery, Printings, Advertisements etc.
Managing Director's Salary and Fees

Directors' Fees

Sharia'h Supervisory Committee's Fees and expenses
Auditors' Fees

Depreciation and Repair of Bank's Assets

Zakat Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Profit before Provision and Tax

Provisions for Classified Investments

Provisions for Unclassified Investments including off-B/S items
Provisions for diminution in value of Investments in Shares
Total Provisions

Total Profit/(Loss) before Tax

Provision for Taxation

Current tax

Deferred tax

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax for the year
Retained Earnings brought forward from Previous Year

Appropriations:

Statutory Reserve
Retained Earnings

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

>{ _

Managing Director Director

19
20

21

22
23

34

6,163,131,029 3,366,101,694
(4,213,350,665) || (2,444,287,200)
1,949,780,364 921,814,494
13,052,070 19,060,545
85,111,934 16,362,482
13,342,014 25,103,103
111,506,018 60,526,130
2,061,286,382 982,340,624
466,672,261 212,570,623
166,492,896 97,772,175
573,589 448,100
12,601,836 6,646,148
34,926,334 39,407,318
8,800,000 8,800,000
5,521,150 4,049,059
278,300 34,500
200,000 200,000
127,828,491 68,595,331
6,000,000 4,625,000
186,577,826 83,740,789
1,016,472,683 526,889,043
1,044,813,699 455,451,581
7,000,000 -
208,500,000 244,900,000
47,000,000 -

256,500,000 244,900,000
788,313,699 210,551,581
310,751,039 100,447,573
(10,751,939) (447 573)
300,000,000 100,000,000
488,313,699 110,551,581
122,315,596 53,674,331
610,629,295 164,425,912
157,662,740 42,110,316
452,966,555 122,315,596
610,629,295 164,425,912
1.14 0.26

Lottt

Director

Signed in terms of our per separate report of even date

Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka
Date: 29 February 2016

A

Chairman
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Taka LELS]

. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Tt kN ST e £ T TS S

Investments income receipts 6,497,505,983 3,355,747,173
Profit paid on deposit (3,806,347,406) (1,870,781,618)
Fee and Commission receipts 85,111,934 16,362,482
Dividend receipts 393,800 347,800
Payments to employees (419,388,629) (237,308,670)
Payments to suppliers (34,926,334) (39,407,318)
Income tax paid (222,680,138) (133,245,653)
Receipts from other operating activities 35 13,342,014 25,103,103
Payments for other operating activities 36 (413,628,927) (210,155,376)
Operating Profit before changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities 1,699,382,297 906,661,923
Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities

(Increase)/ Decrease Investments to Customers (17,315,082,029)  (20,968,966,506)
(Increase)/ Decrease of Other Assets 37 (1,256,626,705) (86,436,481)
Increase/ (Decrease) Deposits from Customers 20,801,117,347 22,602,111,089
Increase/ (Decrease) of Other Liabilities 38 (211,338,264) 254,810,447
Cash Flow from Operating Assets and Liabilities 2,018,070,349 1,801,518,549
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 3,717,452,646 2,708,180,472

. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Payments to Investment in Shares and Securities

(1,666,146,747)

(1,109,555,913)

Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment (360,362,559) (380,945,713)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (2,026,509,306) (1,490,501,626)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital - -

Increase/(Decrease) in Other reserve - =

Increase/(Decrease) in Placement from Banks & Fl o o

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities - -
D. Net Increase/(Decrease) of Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 1,690,943,340 1,217,678,846
E. Add/(Less): Effect of Exchange Rate on Cash & Cash Equivalents S S
F. Beginning Cash & Cash Equivalents 9,727,378,630 8,509,699,784
G. Ending Cash & Cash Equivalents (D+E+F) 11,418,321,970 9,727,378,630

The above closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include:

Cash in hand (Including Foreign Currencies) 373,322,352 182,258,022

Balance with Bangladesh Bank, other Banks & Fl 11,044,999,618 9,545,120,608

11,418,321,970 9,727,378,630

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

4

A

Kloonsiir:

Director

Managing Director Director Chairman

Signed in terms of our per separate report of even date

s B oo

Chartered Accountants

Place: Dhaka
Date: 29 February 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1 THE BANK AND ITS ACTIVITIES

1.1 Status of the Bank

Union Bank Limited (UBL) was incorporated (No. C-107837/13) in Bangladesh on 07 March 2013 as a
banking company under Companies Act 1994 to carry on Sharia’h based scheduled commercial banking
business. It obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 10 March 2013 to commence its business (Ref:
BRPD (P-3)/745(60)/2013-1153). Presently the Bank carries banking activities through its forty four (44)
branches in the country. The Bank has no overseas branches as at 31 December 2015.

The registered office of the Bank is located at Bahela Tower, 72 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212.

1.2 Principal Activities
All kinds of commercial banking services are provided by the Bank to the customers following the principles
of Islamic Sharia’h, the provisions of the Bank Company Act, 1991 and Bangladesh Bank’s directives.

The bank renders commercial banking services to all types of customers. The range of services offered by
the bank includes accepting deposit, making investment, discounting bills, conducting domestic and
international money transfer, carrying out foreign exchange transactions in addition to international money
transfers, and offering other customer services such as safe keeping, collections and issuing guarantees,
acceptances and letters of credit. Core business of the bank includes deposit mobilization and investing
activities comprising short-term, long-term, import and export financing. Financing activities are extended to
different sectors of the economy that could be grouped into several sectors including Rural & agriculture,
Garments & Textiles, Jute, Cement & Bricks, Tannery, Steel & Engineering, Food & Beverage, Chemical &
Pharmaceuticals, Printing & Packaging, Glass & Ceramics and Miscellaneous.

At a glance, the principal activities of the bank are:

(a) To facilitate and handle all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers authorized by
Bangladesh Bank.

(b) To handle the export and import trade of Bangladesh

(c) Totake part in international banking etc.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis of Accounting

Statements of Compliance

The financial statements of the Bank are made up to 31 December 2015 and are prepared under the
historical cost convention on a going concern basis and in accordance with the “ First Schedule Section
38(4) of the Bank Companies Act, 1991, BRPD Circular # 14 dated 25 June 2003, BRPD Circular # 15 dated
09 November 2009, Other Bangladesh bank Circulars, Bangladesh Accounting Standards and Bangladesh
Financial Reporting Standards, The Companies Act 1994, The Bank Company Act, 1991, Income Tax
Ordinance 1984, the AAOIFI and other laws and rules applicable in Bangladesh.

2.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of UBL represent Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement which comprise of the financial information/ transaction of all
branches. All significant inter-branches transactions are eliminated on preparation of these financial
statements.

2.3 Use of estimates and Judgements

In the preparation of the financial statements management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
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2.4 Accruals and Deferrals

Accruals and deferrals have been made as per the guidance of IAS # 1. Presentation of Financial
Statements. In order to meet their objectives, financial statements except for Cash Flow Statement and
related information are prepared on accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis, the effects of transactions
and other events are recognized when they occur (and not when cash or its equivalent is received or paid)
and they are recorded in accounts and reported in the financial statements of the year to which they relate.

2.5 Revenue Recognition
The revenues during the year are recognized on an accrual basis, which comply with the conditions of
revenue recognition as provided in IAS # 18: Revenue.

2.5.1 Income from Investments
e Income from investments has been accounted for on accrual basis except investment under
Musharaka, Mudaraba and Bai-Salam. Income in case of Musharaka is accounted for on realization
basis. The bank does not charge any rent during the gestation/interim period of investment under hire
purchase, but it fixes the rent of the assets at a higher price in such a way to cover its expected rate
of return. Such income is recognized on realization basis.

¢ Income was calculated on daily product basis and charged periodically.

2.5.2 Income from Investments in Securities

¢ Investment in shares and securities are stated at cost. Provisions have been made against probable
losses on the basis of year end reviewed by the management and in compliance with Bangladesh
Bank circulars.

e As per BAS-18 “Revenue” dividend income from investments in shares is recognized when the
“Bank’s” right to receive dividend is established. Bank recognized dividend income when:
|. Itis probable that economic benefits, associated with transaction will flow to the entity; and
[I. The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

¢ Gain on sale of shares transferred to other income on realization basis.

e Profit on investment in Bangladesh Govt. Islamic Investment Bond is recognized on accrual basis.

2.5.3 Commission Income
Commission and discount on Bills Purchased and Discounted are recognized at the time of realization.
Commission charged to customers on letter of credit and guarantees are credited to income at the time of
effecting the transactions.

2.5.4 Profit/Rent/Compensation Suspense Account
Profit/rent/compensation accrued on classified investments are suspended and accounted for as per
circulars issued by the Bangladesh Bank. Moreover, income which are irregular (doubtful) as per Sharia’h are
not included in the distributable income of the Bank.

Compensation on unclassified overdue Bai-Murabaha investments is charged as per Islamic Sharia’h such
compensation is not shown as income of the Bank.

Profit received from the balances held with foreign banks and foreign currency charging account with
Bangladesh Bank are also not credited to regular income since it is not permissible as per Sharia’h.

2.5.5 Profit paid and other expenses
In terms of the provision of IAS # 1. Presentation of Financial Statements, profit paid and other expenses are
recognized on accrual basis.

2.5.6 Dividend Payments

Interim dividend is recognized when they are paid to shareholders. Final dividend is recognized when it is
approved by the shareholders. The proposed dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 has not been
recognized as a liability in the balance sheet in accordance with the IAS # 10: Events After the Balance Sheet
Date.

Dividend payable to the Bank’s shareholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from the shareholders’
equity in the period in which the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.
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2.6 Foreign Currency Transactions

2.6.1 Foreign Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity of the bank are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which entity operates i.e. functional currency. The financial statements of
the bank are presented in Taka which is bank’s functional and presentation currency.

2.6.2 Foreign Currency Translations

Foreign currency transactions are converted into equivalent Taka currency at the ruling exchange rates on
the respective dates of such transactions as per IAS # 21. Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as at 31
December 2015 have been converted into Taka currency at the average of the prevailing buying and selling
rates of the concerned foreign currencies at that date except "balances with other banks and financial
institutions" which have been converted as per directives of Bangladesh Bank vide its circular no BRPD(R)
717/2004-959 dated 21 November 2004.

2.6.3 Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts disclosed in these financial statements are
translated at contracted rates. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of
guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in Taka terms at the rates of exchange ruling on
the balance sheet date. The outstanding balances for the same as at 31 December 2015 have been shown
in the Balance Sheet under Off-Balance Sheet items.

Exchange rates with major foreign currencies as on 31 December 2015 were as:

Currency Name Exchange Rate (TK)
US$ 78.8500
Euro 86.1239
Yen 0.6645
ACU 78.8500
GBP 116.8766
CHF 80.1227
SGD 58.7098
AUD 57.6851
CAD 56.8482

2.6.4 Translation gains and losses

As par provision of IAS # 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, foreign currency
transactions are translated into Taka at rates prevailing on the dates of such transactions. The resulting
exchange transaction gains and losses arising through foreign currency buying and selling transactions
effected on different dates of the year have been adjusted by debiting /crediting exchange gain or loss
account.

2.7 Assets and their basis of valuation

2.7.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

As per provision of IAS # 7 Cash Flow Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions for the purpose
of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than 90 days maturity
from the date of acquisition including: cash and balances with central banks, treasury bills, and other eligible
bills, amounts due from other banks and dealing securities other than those which are not available to finance
the UBL day to day operations.
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2.7.2 Investments

a) Investments are stated in the balance Sheet at the net amount excluding unearned income and profit
receivable.
b) Provision for Investments Impairment:

As per instructions contained in Bangladesh Bank BCD circular no 34, dated November 16 1989, BCD
circular no 20, dated 27 December 1994, BCD circular no 12, dated September 4, 1995, BRPD circular no
16, dated December 6, 1998, BRPD circular no 09, dated May 2001, BRPD circular no 5, dated June 5, 2006,
BRPD circular no 14, dated September 23, 2012, BRPD circular no 19, dated December 27, 2012, BRPD
circular no. 16, dated November 18, 2014 and BRPD circular no. 08, dated August 02, 2015 respectively
specific provisions are made against non performing investments are at the following rates:

Provision on Substandard Investments 20%
Provision on Doubtful Investments 50%
Provision on Bad & Loss Investments 100%

As per instruction of BRPD circular no 16, 09, 08, 05, 14 and 19 dated December 6, 1998, May 14, 2001,
October 2005, June 5, 2006, September 23, 2012 and December 27, 2012 respectively an amount has been
set aside up of the total unclassified investments as on the balance sheet date at the following rates:

General Provision on:
e All Unclassified Investments of Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) 0.25%

e All Unclassified Investments (Other than investments under
consumer Financing, Investment to Brokerage House, Merchant Banks,
Stock Dealers etc., Special Mention Account as well as SME Financing) 1%

e Unclassified Consumer Financing (Other than Housing Finance and
Investment for Professionals to set up business) 5%

e Unclassified Consumer Financing (For Investments to Housing Finance and
Investment for Professionals to set up business under Consumer Financing Scheme.) 2%

e Unclassified Investment to Brokerage House, Merchant Banks, Stock dealers,
etc Housing Finance and Investment for Professionals to set up business under

Consumer Financing Scheme 2%
e Special Mention Account (SMA) Investments 5%
e (Off-Balance Sheet Exposure 1%

Provision for Short-term agricultural and Micro-Credits:
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e All unclassified credits (irregular & regular) 2.5%
e C(Classified as “Sub-Standard” & “Doubtful” 5%
e C(Classified as “Bad/Loss” 100%

d) When an investment is deemed to be uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for
impairments. Subsequent recoveries of such investments are credited to the income statement.

e) Investment are normally written off, when there is no chance of recovery of these amounts in accordance
with BRPD Circular no. 2, Dated 13 January 2003 and BRPD Circular no. 15, Dated 23 September 2012
respectively. A separate Investment Monitoring and Recovery Division (IMRD) have been set up at the
Head Office, which monitors investment written off and legal action through the Money Court. The process
of write-offs does not undermine or affect the amount claimed against the borrower by the bank.
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2.7.3 Valuation Method
Considerable value of Investments has been considered as follows:

Particulars Valuation Method
Bangladesh Government Islamic InvestmentBonds ~~ CostPrice
Shares Cost Price

2.7.4. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7.5 Property , Plant and Equipment
All property and equipment are classified and grouped on the basis of their nature as required in as per
provision of IAS # 16: Property, Plant and Equipment.

The major categories of property and equipment held by the bank are furniture and fixtures, office
equipments, motor vehicles and books.

As guided in paragraph 30 of IAS # 16 Property Plant and Equipment: all property and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The opening and closing carrying amounts of all property
and equipment are presented including the amount of additions, disposals and depreciation charged during
the year as required by paragraph 73 (a-e)of IAS # 16. Maintenance expenses that does not increase the
value of assets is charged to profit & loss account.

Depreciation on Property , Plant and Equipment

As required in paragraph 43 of IAS # 16 Property Plant and Equipment depreciation has been charged on
property and equipment at the following rates using reducing balance method, except on office equipment,
motor vehicles and building on which straight-line method is applied.

Nature of Assets Rate of Depreciation Method of Depreciation
_Furniture and Fixtures 10% . Reducing Balance Method
Office Equipments 20% Reducing Balance Method except

Computer Equipment where
used Straight Line Method.

Books 20% Reducing Balance Method

Depreciation on addition to fixed assets is charged in compliance with International Accounting Standard
(IAS) # 16.

2.8 Liabilities and Provision

2.8.1 Taxation
Tax expenses represent the sum of the tax which are payable during the current period.

2.8.1.1 Current Tax

Provision for corporate current income tax has been made @ 40% as prescribed in the Finance Act 2015 of
the accounting profit made by the Bank after considering some of the add backs to income and
disallowances of expenditure as per income tax laws in compliance with IAS # 12: Income Taxes.

2.8.1.2 Deferred Tax
As per IAS # 12 Deferred Tax Asset are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect
of deductable temporary differences. Deferred Tax Liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in
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future periods in respect of taxable temporary differences. Deferred Tax Assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences of timing differences arising between the carrying values of assets, liabilities,
income and expenditure and their respective tax bases. Deferred Tax is provided using the liability method
for all temporary difference arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying value for
financial reporting purposes. The tax rate @ 40% prevailing at the balance sheet date is used to determine
deferred tax.

2.8.2 Retirement Benefits of Employees

Required in IAS # 19: Employee Benefit, provident fund and gratuity benefits are given to eligible staff of the
bank in accordance with the locally registered rules and the entity shall disclose the amount recognized as
an expense for defined contribution plan.

2.8.2.1 Provident Fund

Provident fund benefits are given to staffs of UBL in accordance with the locally registered Provident Fund
Rules. The employees' provident fund is administered by a Board of Trustees and is funded by contributions
of employees and the Bank at predetermined rates in equal proportion. These contributions are invested
separately from the assets of UBL and the profit on such contributions credited to the members’ account. The
Fund is recognized by the National Board of Revenue vide their letter # PFR(UBL)/LTU/2013-2014/1057(1-3)
dated 30/04/2014.

2.8.2.2 Gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, under which an
employee is entitled to the benefits if his/her length of service is at least six (06) years. Actual valuation of
gratuity scheme had been made to assess the adequacy of the liabilities provided for the scheme as per IAS
# 19 “Employee Benefits”.

2.8.2.3 Social Security Benevolent Fund
The Bank operates a social security benevolent fund by all employees’ contribution for the sake of death nd
disability of employees.

2.8.3 Deposits and Other Accounts
Deposit include non-profit bearing deposits, saving deposits, term deposits etc. They are brought to ccount
at the gross value of the outstanding balance. Profit paid is charged to the Income Statement.

2.8.4 Contingent Liabilities, Commitments and Other Off-Balance Sheet items
As required in IAS # 37, Contingent Liabilities, commitments and other Off-Balance Sheet items are
presented in details in the financial statements.
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2.8.5 Sharing of Investment Income

In case of investments, Mudaraba fund gets preference over cost free fund. The investment income earned
through deployment of Mudaraba fund is shared by the bank and the Mudaraba depositors at the
pre-determined ratio fixed by the bank.

2.8.6 Zakat

Zakat is paid by the bank at the rate of 2.58% (instead of 2.50% as the bank maintains its account following
Gregorian year) on the closing balances of share premium, statutory reserve, general reserve and exchange
equalization account. Payment of zakat on paid up capital and deposits is the responsibility of the
shareholders and depositor’s respectively.
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2.9.1 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement is prepared as it provides information about cash flows of the Union Bank Limited which
is useful in providing users of financial statements with a basis to assess the ability of the Union Bank Limited
to generate cash and cash equivalents and the needs of the Union Bank Limited to utilize those cash flows.
Cash flows statement has been prepared under the direct method for the year, classified by operating,
investing and financing activities as prescribed in paragraph 10 and 18 (a) of IAS # 7.

2.9.2 Liquidity Statement
The liquidity statement of assets and liabilities as on the reporting date has been prepared on residual
maturity term as per the following basis.

e Balance with other Banks and financial institutions are on the basis of their maturity term;

e Investments are on the basis of their respective maturity;

e Investments are on the basis of their repayment schedule.

e Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful lives;

e Other assets are on the basis of their realization / amortization;

e Borrowing from other Banks, financial institutions and agents, etc. are as per their maturity / repayment
term;

e Deposits and other accounts are on the basis of their maturity term and past trend of withdrawal by
the depositors;

e Provisions and other liabilities are on the basis of their payment / adjustments schedule.

2.9.3 Comparative Information

As guided in paragraph 36 and 38 of IAS # 1 presentation of financial statements, comparative information
in respect of the previous year have been presented in all numerical information in the financial statements
and the narrative and descriptive information where, it is relevant for understanding of the current year's
financial statements.

2.9.4 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

2.9.4.1 Basic Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share have been calculated in accordance with IAS # 33 “Earnings Per Share” (EPS) which has
been shown on the face of profit and loss account. This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2.9.4.2 Diluted Earnings Per Share
No diluted earnings per share is required to calculate for the year as there was no scope for dilution during
the year under review.

2.9.5 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT).

2.10 Risk Management

In the ordinary course of business, the bank is exposed to a variety of risks the most important of which are
investments risk, liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk, legal risk, and profit rate risk. These risks should
be identified, measured and monitored through various control mechanisms across the bank in order to price
its products and services on a risk-adjusted basis and to prevent undesirable concentrations. The policies
and procedures for managing these risks are outlined in the notes below. The Bank has designed and
implemented a framework of controls to identify, monitor and manage these risks, which are as follows:

2.10.1 Investments Risk

Investments risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Concentration of investments risk arises when a number of
counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or
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have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. To manage investments risk, the bank applies
credit limits to its customers and obtains adequate collaterals. Investments risk in the Union Bank's portfolio
is monitored, reviewed and analyzed by the Investments Risk Management (IRM).

Union Bank Ltd. established Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) to screen out the
banks/financial institutions and determine the maximum risk exposure on each of them. ALCO also assesses
recommends and controls cross border/country risk. To manage the Non-Performing Investments (NPI),
Union Bank Ltd. has in place comprehensive remedial management policy, which includes a framework of
controls to identify weak investments and monitoring of these accounts.

2.10.2 Foreign Exchange Risk

Since Foreign Exchange Risk involves purchase and sale of any national currency against other national
currency, thus Foreign Exchange Risk is the chance of loss due to unexpected movement of market price of
the currencies of different countries or the price of the assets denominated by foreign currencies. The
Foreign Exchange Risk of the bank is minimal as all the transactions are carried out on behalf of the
customers against underlying Foreign Exchange transactions.

Treasury Division independently conducts the transactions and the Back Office of treasury is responsible for
verification of the deals and passing of their entries in the books of account. All foreign exchange
transactions are revalued at Market-to-Market rate as determined by Bangladesh Bank at the month end. All
Nostro accounts are reconciled on daily basis and outstanding entries beyond 30 days are reviewed by the
Management for their settlement.

2.10.3 Asset Liability Management

Asset Liability Management is the key success of any financial intermediary especially for Banks. Asset
Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Bank monitors Balance Sheet Risk and liquidity risks of the bank. The
Balance Sheet Risk encompasses most part of the Asset Liability risk and deal with change in earnings due
to change in rate of profit, foreign exchange rates which are not of trading nature on the other hand, liquidity
risk can be defined as the risk or chance of failure to meet up any withdrawal /disbursement request by a
counterparty/customer. Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) reviews Liquidity requirement of the bank, the
maturity of assets and liabilities, deposits and investments pricing strategy and the Liquidity contingency
plan. The primary objective of the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) is to monitor and avert significant
volatility in Net Investments Income (NII), investment value and exchange earnings for the purpose of taking
future action plan for better interest of the organization.

2.10.4 Prevention of Money Laundering

Money Laundering is the criminal practice of filtering ill-gotten gains or dirty money through a series of
transaction so as to give the money a clean look that it appears to have originated from legal activities. It is a
process of filtering money obtained through predicate offence such as corruption, fraud, drug trafficking etc.
through the financial system. Money Laundering now a days is one of the greatest challenges that the
Governments, Banks and Financial Institutions face in the globalize financial system.

Union Bank Limited identified the money laundering as one of its core risk areas and has been making all out
efforts to prevent money laundering. For mitigating the risk, the bank has a designated Chief Anti-Money
Laundering Compliance Officer (CAMLCQO) at Central Compliance Unit under Anti-Money Laundering
Division, Head Office, who has sufficient authority to implement and enforce corporate wide AML policy,
procedure & measure and who is reporting directly to the Senior Management and the Board of Directors.
Moreover, every branch of our bank has a designated Branch Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Officer
(BAMLCO) under Branch Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Unit, who independently reviews the
transaction of accounts, with verification of Know Your Customer (KYC) and Suspicious Transaction Report
(STR). They are also sending Cash Transaction Report (CTR) to the Central Compliance Unit, Head Office on
monthly basis by using FIU Reporting System Software provided by Bangladesh Bank and finally we send
the same to Anti-Money Laundering Department of Bangladesh Bank. The Central Compliance Unit has also
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arranged Training/Workshop for developing awareness and skill regarding AML activities of Executives and
Officers of the bank and conducting inspection regarding AML activities of our branch. Bank has established
a Manual for Prevention of Money Laundering and issues circulars time to time giving specific guidelines in
accordance with Bangladesh Bank guidelines, regulations, Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2009 & Anti
Terrorism Act, 2009. All the guidelines and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank from time to time are being
strictly complied with by Central Compliance Unit and branches of the Bank.

2.10.5 Internal Control and Compliance

Internal Control & Compliance is considered as an eye of an organization. It is a mirror of operations and
keeps record of the same. The primary objectives of internal control system are to help the bank to perform
in a better height through the use of its resources & under the guidance of Internal Control system; bank
identifies its weakness and takes appropriate measures to overcome the same. The main objectives of
Internal Control are to ascertain the efficiency and effectiveness of activities, reliability, completeness and
timeliness of financial and management information, compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Operational loss arises for the cause of errors and fraud due to lack of internal control and compliance.
Internal Control & Compliance Division undertakes periodical and special audit & inspection of its branches
and departments/divisions of Head Office for reviewing its operation and compliance of the statutory
requirement. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors plays a vital role in providing a bridge between
the Board and Management. The committee reviews the Financial Reporting process, Audit process and the
Bank’s process for compliance with laws, regulations and code of conduct.

2.10.6 Guideline on Information & Communication Technology

Banks are increasingly using sophisticated digital technology for banking activities with a view to achieving
more customer satisfaction with less cost. In addition, it increases the efficiency of the banking and payment
system, benefiting consumers and merchants leading to bring additional risks. These risks must be balanced
against benefits i.e. must be controlled. Under this advanced and highly technical ICT environment banks
must ensure that critical systems are not threatened by the risk exposures the banks take. For this purpose,
a risk management process consisting of assessing risks, controlling risk exposure, and monitoring risks
should be in place.

Information assets are critical to the services provided by the Bank to its customers. Protection and
maintenance of these assets are vital to its sustainability. In order to ensure protection of critical IT assets
from unauthorized access modification, disclosure and destruction, the Bank has already taken initiatives,
which safeguard the interest of customers.

In this context bank is implementing a core banking software (Ababil) ensuring adequate security. To protect
sensitive information of core banking software and other software in the event of any disaster, the bank
implementing a disaster recovery site. The Bank has already developed its own ICT policies for various
operation and services which are closely in line with the ICT guidelines of Bangladesh Bank.

The Bank has developed fault tolerance plan of human resources with detail job description for each IT
personnel, segregation of duties of IT tasks and system support in respect of severity. Training is a key
component of ICT Risk Management. The Bank has been continuously conducting training sessions on
sensitive IT tasks (i.e. operational procedure, Business Continuity Planning, Disaster Recovery Planning etc.)
for relevant employees. The Bank management has been putting continuous efforts to improve IT Operation
Management, Problem Management, Change Management, Asset Management and Request Management
to maintain maximum uptime of automated banking business. The Bank has been maintaining adequate
physical security inside its workplace to properly protect ICT resources. The Bank is strictly following the
Information Security Standard of Bangladesh Bank covering Password Control, User ID Maintenance, Input
Control, Network Security, Data Encryption, Virus Protection and Access Control to Internet and Emailing. The
bank is regularly conducting internal ICT audit to all its’ branches and Head Office divisions to ensure proper
implementation of the ICT policies.
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2.11 Risk Based Capital Adequacy

Basel Ill (or the Third Basel Accord) is a global, voluntary regulatory framework on bank capital adequacy,
stress testing and market risk. Basel Il has introduced to strengthen bank’s capital requirements by
increasing bank liquidity and decreasing bank leverage, to improve the banking sector’s ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and economic stress; reducing the risk of spillover from the financial sector to
the real economy; to improve risk management and governance as well as strengthen bank’s transparency
and disclosures. Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular no — 18 dated December 21, 2014, Bangladesh Bank
issued a roadmap for implementation Basel — Il in Bangladesh. From 2015 bank started it's reporting under
Basel — Ill. Each year bank has to maintain additional capital conservation buffer 0.625%, this way after 2019
bank has to maintain capital conservation buffer 2.50%. So, after 2019 every bank must maintain Capital to
Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 12.50%.

2.12 Stress Testing

Stress testing is one of the sophisticated risk management techniques that have been used to determine
the reactions of different financial institution under a set of exceptional, but plausible assumptions through
a series of test. At institutional level, stress testing techniques provide a way to quantity the impact of
change in a number of risk factors on the assets and liabilities portfolio of the institution. Presently stress
testing is being done by considering five different risk factors namely interest rate, sale value of collateral,
non-performing loans, stock price and foreign exchange rate.

UBL supplements their analysis of risk with stress testing. They perform stress tests because value-at-risk
calculations are based on relatively recent historical data and only purport to estimate risk up to a defined
confidence level. Therefore, they only reflect possible losses under relatively normal market conditions.

2.13 Reporting Period
The accounting year is 01 January to 31 December. The reporting year of 2015 from 01 January 2015 to 31
December 2015.

2.14 General
2.14.1 The figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

2.14.2 Wherever considered necessary, previous year’s figures have been rearranged for the
purpose of comparison.
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CASH

Cash in Hand

In Local Currency

In Foreign Currencies

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its Agent Bank
In Local Currency
In Foreign Currencies

Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)

S W e e 2

e R

2015 2014
Taka Taka

372,935,237 180,706,229
387,115 1,651,793
373,322,352 182,258,022
3,898,518,327 2,734,081,394
56,614,037 30,916,064
3,955,132,364 2,764,997,458
4,328,454,716 2,947,255,480

Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) have been calculated and maintained in
accordance with the Section 25 & 33 of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 and subsequent BCD Circular No.13
dated May 24,1992; BRPD Circular No. 12 dated September 06, 1998, BRPD Circular No.12, dated September
20, 1999, BRPD Circular No. 22 dated November 06, 2003, BRPD Circular No. 03 dated 17 February, 2005 and
BRPD Circular No. 11 & 12 dated 25 August 2005, Bangladesh Bank Letter # DOS (SR) 1153/120-A/2009-46
dated 22 March 2009, MPD circular # 01 dated 04 May 2010, MPD circular # 04 & 05 dated 01 December 2010

and MPD circular # 01 dated 23 June 2014.

Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR): 6.50% of Average Demand and Time Liabilities

Required Reserve
Actual Reserve maintained
Surplus/(Short)

3,110,319,277
3,895,326,446

1,825,553,440
2,485,702,553

785,007,169

660,149,113

Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR): 5.50% of Average Demand and Time Liabilities:

Required Reserve
Actual Reserve held
Surplus/(Short)

BALANCE WITH OTHER BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Inside Bangladesh

Al-Wadiah Current Accounts

Janata Bank Ltd.

Others Accounts:

Mudaraba Short Notice Deposits

First Security Islami Bank Ltd.

Prime Bank Ltd.

Sonali Bank Ltd.
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.

Mudaraba Term Deposits
Reliance Finance Limited
Phoenix Finance and Investments Ltd.

2,631,808,619
3,856,746,031

3,370,252,440
4,066,217,000

1,224,937,412 695,964,560
23,035 537,831
130,120,712 193,477,519
25,000 25,000
602,640 =
8,050,000 =
138,798,352 193,502,519
6,605,732,775 6,471,712,613
90,000,000 90,000,000
6,695,732,775 6,561,712,613
6,834,554,162 6,755,752,963
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C. Maturity-wise Grouping ( Inside and Outside Bangladesh)

Payable on Demand

Up to Three Months
Three Months to One Year
One Year to Five Years
Above Five Years

INVESTMENTS IN SHARES AND SECURITIES
Government Securities
Bangladesh Govt. Islamic Investment Bonds

Others
Quoted Shares (Note - 5.1)

Quoted Shares
Name of Companies

CVO Petrochemical Refinery Limited
Confidence Cement Ltd.
Grameenphone Ltd.

RAK Ceramics (Bangladesh) Ltd.
Heidelberg Cement Bangladesh
Lafarge Surma Cement Ltd.
Legacy Footwear Ltd.

Matin Spinning Mills Ltd.

National Bank Ltd.

Shahjibazar Power Co. Ltd.
Rahima Food Corporation Ltd.
Tallu Spinning Mills Ltd.

Market Value of Quoted Shares

Maturity Grouping of Investments in Shares and Securities
On Demand

One Month to three Months

Three Months to One Year

One Year to Five Years

More than Five Years

INVESTMENTS (All Inside Bangladesh)

General Investments (Bai-Murabah, Bai-Muajjal, HPSM etc.) (Note-6.A)
Bills Purchased and Discounted (Note - 6.B)

2015 2014
Taka Taka

394,134,479 218,410,537
6,695,732,775 4,036,300,000
= 2,525,412,613
7,089,867,254 6,780,123,150
2,700,000,000 1,400,000,000
406,187,398 40,040,651
3,106,187,398 1,440,040,651

Acquisition cost

Acquisition cost

18,693,911 18,048,657
= 673,845
2,392,092 -
1,895,371 -
617,460 =
14,297,535 16,175,946
= 5,820
= 369,030
365,696,892 =
488,213 -
1,446,907 4,051,341
659,017 716,012
406,187,398 40,040,651
359,200,980 53,423,855
606,187,398 40,040,651
500,000,000 =
2,000,000,000 300,000,000
- 1,100,000,000
3,106,187,398 1,440,040,651
37,548,628,509 22,097,263,399
8,044,240,754 6,180,523,835
45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234




6.A General Investment ( Bai-Murabaha, Bai-Muajjal, HPSM etc.)
Inside Bangladesh
Bai Murabaha (Hypo)
Bai Murabaha against MTDR
Bai Murabaha TR
Bai Murabaha (Post Import) TR
Bai Murabaha (TR) SME
Bai Murabaha Agriculture
Bai Murabaha (TR) Agriculture
Bai Murabaha (TR) Women Entrepreneur
Bai Murabaha General
Bai Muajjal
HPSM (Real Estate)
HPSM (Transport)
HPSM (SME)
HPSM House Building Staff
HPSM House Building General
HPSM Industrial Term
HPSM Machinery
HPSM Machinery Women Entrepreneur
Quard against MTDR
Car Leasing Scheme Staff
Murabaha EDF Investment
HPSM Consumer Durables (Scheme)

Outside Bangladesh

6.B Bills Purchased and Discounted
Payable in Bangladesh
Payable outside Bangladesh

6.1 Maturity Grouping of Investments
Payable on Demand
Up to Three Months
Three Months to One Year
One Year to Five Years
Above Five Years
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2015 2014
Taka Taka

1,544,427,878 1,449,227,826
3,324,237,489 3,821,189,619
13,457,181,155 2,498,324,223
418,271,296 5,066,470
795,267,157 214,786,050
464,004,392 431,972,381
4,474,802 18,858,679
2,404,717 -
14,814,863,298 11,110,528,036
81,118,686 52,516,500
583,407,285 943,760,428
16,146,564 7,647,929
967,158 580,465
74,889,113 17,244,382
31,399,557 21,955,783
837,726,946 692,474,413
358,102,803 118,969,887
1,384,000 -
636,644,075 633,387,530
49,887,826 28,543,735
13,148,175 -
38,674,137 30,229,063
37,548,628,509 22,097,263,399
37,548,628,509 22,097,263,399
8,044,240,754 6,180,523,835
8,044,240,754 6,180,523,835
45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234

1,922,600,000
5,621,800,000

2,101,200,000
5,451,600,000

34,494,600,000 13,000,320,000
3,653,869,263 7,724,667,234
45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234

6.2 Analysis to disclose the following Significant Concentration including Bills Purchased & Discounted

Investments to Directors of other Banks

Investments to Chief Executive and Other high Officials
Investments to Customers Group

Investments to Industry

Investment to staff

6.3 Investments to Customers amounting to 10% or more of UBL’s Total Regulatory Capital

Number of Clients

Amount of Outstanding Investments:
Funded

Non-funded

5,113,066,046

32,554,640,894

4,314,507,663

18,715,291,036

7,770,141,761 5,178,612,998
155,020,562 69,375,537
45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234
13 07
7,155,100,000 4,026,800,000
2,936,900,000 781,000,000
10,092,000,000 4,807,800,000
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Economic Sector wise Investments
Agriculture:

Fishing

Tea

Others

Textile and Readymade Garments:
Garments

Readymade Garments - Export
Textile and Textile Products- Import
Others -Export

Others -Import

Medicine - Import

Chemical - Import

Contractor Finance

Transport

Bricks

Cold Storage

Steel and Engineering

Internal Trade Finance:
Whole Sale Trading
Retail Trading

Others

House Building:
Commercial
Staff

Special Program:
Consumer Finance and Hire Purchase Scheme
Others

Geographical Location-wise Investments
Urban

Dhaka

Chittagong

Barisal

Rajshahi

Khulna

Rangpur

Sylhet

Rural
Dhaka
Chittagong
Khulna
Barisal
Rangpur
Sylhet

2015 2014
Taka Taka

497,074 -
467,982,120 450,831,059
468,479,194 450,831,059
602,513,279 520,398,649
2,839,554,412 6,169,713,199
133,085,223 -
8,228,917 -
13,080,304 6,006,667
3,596,462,135 6,696,118,515
25,518,041,616 14,222,916,780
2,869,318,340 577,763,513
7,954,454,075 -
36,341,814,031 14,800,680,293
2,809,656,533 2,598,760,796
74,889,113 69,375,537
2,884,545,646 2,668,136,333
178,931,282 136,782,479
2,122,636,975 3,525,238,555
2,301,568,257 3,662,021,034
45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234
26,827,872,319 17,350,475,754
16,239,175,952 9,991,895,842
32,131,508 4,151,926
14,329,157 2,340,155
31,291,881 4,344,408
43,144,800,817 27,353,208,085
84,942,327 118,447,816
2,318,205,225 791,731,362
36,254,643 13,051,558
8,666,251 1,348,413
2,448,068,446 924,579,149
45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234
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6.6 Classification of Investments as per Bangladesh Bank (BRPD) Circular

6.7

Unclassified
Standard
Special Mention Account

lassified:
Sub-standard
Doubtful
Bad & Loss

Particulars of Required Provision for Investments

lassification
Unclassified
Standard
Special Mention Account

Sub - Standard
Doubtful
Bad and Loss

Required Provision for Investments
Total Provision Maintained
Provision Excess/ (Shortfall)

* Details of provision may kindly be in note 2.7.2

45,586,497,608 28,277,787,234
5,484,518.00 -
45,591,982,126 28,277,787,234
396,938 -
490,199 -
887,137 -
45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234
514,996,197 313,018,462
81,845 -
515,078,042 313,018,462
76,323 -
225,672 -
301,995 -
515,380,037 313,018,462
515,380,037 313,018,462
529,500,000 320,000,000
14,119,963 6,981,538
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6.8 Particulars of Investments
i) Investments considered good in respect of which the Bank 32,633,107,990 21,746,747,439
Company is fully secured

i) Investments considered good for which the bank holds no Security 2,613,810,101 4,633,663,487
other than the debtors personal security

iii) Investment considered good and secured by the personal security
of one or more parties in addition to the personal security of the 10,345,951,172 1,897,376,308
debtors

iv) Investments adversely classified; provision not maintained there - -
against 45,592,869,263 28,277,787,234

v) Investments due by directors or executives of the banking company
or any of them taken either severally or jointly with any other person. - -

vi) Investments due by companies or firms in which the directors of the
bank company are interested as directors partners or managing
agents or in case of private companies, as members. - -

vii) Maximum total amount of investments, including temporary
advances made at any time during the year to directors or managers
or officers of the banking company or any of them either separately - .
or jointly with any other person.

viij) Maximum total amount of investments, including temporary
advances granted during the year to the companies or firms in which
the directors of the banking company are interested as directors,
partners or managing agents or in the case of private companies, as
members. s =

ix) Investment due from other banking companies - -
x) Total amount of classified Investments on which profit is not credited B -
to income

a. Movement of classified Investments =
Opening balance 887,137 =
Increase/ (Decrease) during the year 887,137 -

b. Amount of provision kept against investment classified as 'bad/loss'
on the reporting date of Balance Sheet - -

c. Profit credited to the profit/Rent/Compensation Suspense Account - -

xi) Amount of written off Investment:
Cumulative amount : -
Amount written off during the period = =
Total amount of written off (a+b) B -
Amount recovered against such written- off up to this year B .
Amount of investment written- off against which suit has been filled to Z -
recover the same.

poopTo
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6.9 Security against Investments including bills purchased & discounted:
Collateral of movable/immovable assets 22,239,920,341 11,111,646,445

6.10

8.1

Local banks & financial institutions guarantee
Government Guarantee
Foreign Banks guarantee
Export documents

Fixed deposits receipts:
Own MTDR

MTDR of other Banks
Government Bonds
Personal guarantee
Other security
Unsecured

Maturity Grouping of Bills Purchased and Discount

Payable within one month

Over one month but less than three months
Over three months but less than six months
Six Months and Above

FIXED ASSETS INCLUDING PREMISES, FURNITURE & FIXTURES
AT COST LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (ANNEXURE-A)

Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipment
Vehicles

Books

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

OTHER ASSETS

Inter - branch Transaction Account (*)

Accrued Income on MTDR

Advances, Deposits and Prepayment (Note - 8.1)
Advance Income Tax

Stock of Stationery

Suspense Account (Note - 8.2)

Stamps on Hand

Deferred tax asset (Note - 2.8.1.2)

(*) Inter-branch transaction account represents outstanding Inter-branch and Head Office transaction (net)
originated but yet to be responded at the balance sheet date. However, the status of non respondent entries on

31.12.2015. have been reconciled on 25.02.2016.

Advance, Deposits and Prepayment
Advance against Rent - Office
Prepayment

7,881,825,440

3,960,881,564

11,5610,241,918

6,180,523,845

4,454,577,149

6,531,039,795

45,592,869,263

28,277,787,234

432,415,314 1,236,104,767
1,764,125,440 927,078,575
5,847,700,000 4,017,340,493
8,044,240,754 6,180,523,835

412,535,627 174,174,691

328,953,739 226,873,557

91,486,719 71,601,822
40.470 3.926

833,016,555 472,653,996

153,818,475 61,373,314

679,198,080 411,280,682

42,188,869 20,822,214

142,150,582 463,867,266
1,565,231,726 270,468,916

384,755,231 162,075,093

5,814,921 4,620,541
111,665,302 172,546,487
378,225 194,180
11,199,512 447,573
2,263,384,368 1,095,042,270

299,896,894 269,964,499
1,265,334,832 504,417
1,565,231,726 270,468,916
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8.2 Suspense Account

Sundry Debtors
Advance against TA/DA
Advance against New Branch

9 PLACEMENT FROM BANK AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Inside Bangladesh
Bangladesh Bank

Outside Bangladesh

A. Security- wise grouping
Secured Placement
Unsecured Placement

B. Repayment Nature wise Grouping
Repayable on demand
Others

C. Maturity Analysis

Repayable on Demand

Repayable within One Month

One Month to Six Months

Six Month to One Year

One Year to Five Years

Five Years to Ten Years

Unclaimed Deposits Ten Years and Over

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Deposits received from Banks (Note A-1)

>3

Other than Bank
Payable on Demand (Note B-1)
Other Deposits (Note B-2)

C. Maturity wise Grouping of Deposits and Other Accounts
Repayable within One Month
One Month to Three Months
Three Months to One Year
One Year to Five Years
Repayable over Five Years

Deposits Received from Banks
AB Bank Limited

Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
Trust Bank Ltd.

Exim Bank Ltd.

Bank Asia Ltd.

Sonali Bank Ltd.

W e e

2015 2014
Taka Taka

108,381,342 122,383,252
60,300 20,500
3,223,660 50,142,735
111,665,302 172,546,487
2,000,000,000 4,601,000,000

2,540,484,768

51,027,942,379

1,177,921,051
28,988,388,749

53,568,427,147

30,166,309,800

55,568,427,147

34,767,309,800

3,183,400,000
17,782,200,000
26,919,400,000
7,683,427,147

2,309,200,000
15,701,800,000
14,636,200,000
2,120,109,800

55,568,427,147

34,767,309,800

= 450,000,000
1,850,000,000 3,500,000,000
= 200,000,000

= 200,000,000
150,000,000 250,000,000

- 1,000,000
2,000,000,000 4,601,000,000
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Maturity wise Grouping of Deposits Received from Banks

Repayable on Demand Z N
Repayable within One Month 400,000,000 1,550,000,000
Repayable over One Month but within Six Months 1,600,000,000 3,050,000,000
Repayable over Six Months but within one Year - 1,000,000
Repayable over One Year but within Five Years = =
Repayable over Five Years but within Ten Years - -
Unclaimed Deposits for Ten Years and above - -
2,000,000,000 4,601,000,000
B-1 Payable on Demand
Al-wadiah Current Deposits 1,993,573,378 908,481,252
Mudaraba Saving Deposits (9%) (Note-10.3) 83,118,217 25,506,120
Bills Payable (Note-10.2) 59,264,040 171,196,226
Sundry Deposits (Note-10.1.1) 404,529,133 72,737,453
2,540,484,768 1,177,921,051
B-2 Other Deposits
Mudaraba Saving Deposits (91%) (Note-10.3) 840,417,527 257,895,209
Mudaraba Term Deposits 43,296,112,256 25,562,305,765
Mudaraba Short Notice Deposits 462,126,562 642,995,381
Mudaraba Deposit under Schemes (Note-10.5) 6,429,286,034 2,525,192,394
51,027,942,379 28,988,388,749
101 Al-Wadiah Current Accounts & Other Deposit Accounts
Al-wadiah Current Deposits 1,993,573,378 908,481,252
Mudaraba Short Notice Deposits 462,126,562 642,995,381
Sundry Deposits (Note-10.1.1) 404,529,133 72,737,453
2,860,229,073 1,624,214,086
1041 Sundry Deposits
Security Deposit 120,020,540 30,128,283
Sundry Creditors 32,607,386 6,571,147
Income Tax Deduction at Source -Profit on Deposit 27,359,032 27,182,757
Income Tax on Local L/C 10,256 69,350
Income Tax on Export bill 1,017,592 179,887
Excise Duty on Deposit & Investment 33,047,997 5,651,488
VAT on Online Charge 1,120 1,036
VAT on Commission TT/DD/PO/LG 13,093 186
VAT on Service Charge and Others 834,982 463,820
VAT Deduction Bills Paid 1,090,005 405,118
VAT Deduction from advertisement Bill 115,898 401,877
VAT on Rent and Others 508,272 191,807
VAT on Directors Fee - 1,500
VAT on L/C 674,131 146,408
VAT on Postage 865 45
VAT on Security Service 23,397 55,199
VAT on Swift Charge 23,973 17,667
VAT on L/C Advising Charge 2,034 452
VAT on EXP Issue Charge 600 270
VAT on Acceptance Commission 215,608 41,634
VAT on Bank Guarantee Commission 386,278 -
VAT on ADD Confirmation charge 14,891 -
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VAT on FDD collection charge 116,032 =
VAT on commission on export bill 171,293 =
VAT on income from ATM 55,969 =
VAT in Misc. Earnings 3,227 -
Income Tax Deduction at Source - Office rent 282,166 106,760
Income Tax Deduction at Source - Bills 688,887 382,887
Income Tax Deduction at Source - Advertising Bill 30,906 64,112
Income Tax Deduction at Source-Employee's 890,743 773,763
Govt. Tax on Export (Garments) 5,348,284 =
Marginal Deposit Export 468,857 =
F.C. Held against B.B. L/c 106,899,842 -
F.C. Held against EDF L/c (Dollar) 12,990,443 =
Sundry Deposit - Swift charge 30,908 =
Sundry Deposit LAC (Export) 2,635,532 =
S/D/A/C ATM Charge collection Account 57,563 =
D&B Credit report collection fee 27,161 -
ATM Charge (NPSB) 14,580 =
S/D/A/C VAT on Polli Bidyut Samity 427,201 -
NR. USD A/C Wall street Finance 826,042 -
NR. Taka A/C Wall street Finance 680,055 -
Security Deposit A/C Wall Street 1,946,250 =
S/D Cash incentive against export 170,070 =
NR. Tk. A/C Transfast Remittance 49,849,172 =
SD. A/C Transfast Remittance 1,950,000 -
404,529,133 72,737,453
10.2 Bills Payable
Pay Order Issued 59,264,040 171,196,226
10.3 Mudaraba Savings Bank Deposits
As per BRPD Circular No. 06, dated 24 June 2007, total saving bank
deposits amount is bifurcated into:
9 % of total Mudaraba Savings Bank Deposits 83,118,217 25,506,120
91% of total Mudaraba Savings Bank Deposits 840,417,527 257,895,209
923,535,744 283,401,329
10.4 Mudaraba Term Deposits including other Banks - Maturity wise Grouping
Payable on Demand 102,300,000 156,300,000
Up to Three Months 19,784,345,831 15,743,592,009
From Three Months to Six Months 10,654,412,090 3,985,595,574
Above Six Months to One Year 14,741,084,335 10,272,618,182
Above One Year to Two Years 5,900,000 350,000
Above Two Years 8,070,000 4,850,000
45,296,112,256 30,163,305,765
10.5 Mudaraba Deposit under Schemes
Mudaraba Monthly Savings Scheme 248,308,530 62,513,660
Mudaraba Double Benefit Deposits Scheme 3,432,194,132 1,582,686,308
Mudaraba Monthly Profit Scheme 2,574,339,942 840,104,418
Mudaraba Millionaire Savings Scheme 139,864,258 33,318,204
Mudaraba Kotipoti Deposit Scheme 12,973,679 403,500
Mudaraba Marriage Scheme 2,593,228 703,832
Mudaraba Pension Scheme 205,644 86,605
Mudaraba Hajj Deposit Scheme 164,500 67,000
Mudaraba Pension Scheme 17,571,101 5,308,867
Mudaraba Muhor Savings Scheme 39,000 =
Mudaraba Corepoty Sanchaya Scheme 1,032,020 =
6,429,286,034 2,525,192,394
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11 OTHER LIABILITIES
Inter - branch Transaction Account
Provision for Taxation (Note-11.1)
Accumulated Provision against Investments (Note-11.2)
Accrued Profit and Expenses Payable (Note-11.3)
Provision for Gratuity
Provisions for diminution in value of Investments in share
Provision for Zakat
Provident Fund
Benevolent Fund
Provision for Incentive Bonus
Provision for Audit fee
Clearing adjustment account
Compensation Realized
ATM Adjustment (NPSB)
Settlement A/C Foreign Remittance
Profit Rent Suspense
Compensation Receivable
Others

111 Provision for Taxation during the year
Opening balance
Add : Provision made during the year
Less: Adjustment/settiement during the year
Closing balance

Assessment for the year 2013 and 2014, return have been submitted u/s 82BB of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 but

not yet completed and assessment for the year 2015 not yet due.

112 Accumulated Provision aginst Investments
Specific Provision for Classified Investments (Note -11.2.1)
General Provision including off-B/S exposure (Note -11.2.2)

1121 Movement in Specific Provision for Classified Investments
Provision held at the beginning of the year
Fully Provided Debts written off
Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Specific Provision for the year (Note-11.2.a)
Recoveries and Provisions no longer required
Net Charge to Profit and Loss Account
Provision held at the end of the year

1122 General Provision including off-balance sheet exposure
Provision held at the beginning of the year
Addition/transfer during the year (Note-11.2.a)

Provision held at the end of the year

112a Provision for Investments during the year
Specific Provision for Classified Investments
General Provision including off-B/S exposure
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491,199,512 180,447,573
529,500,000 320,000,000
1,194,981,670 787,978,411
16,060,000 4,060,000
50,850,000 3,850,000
6,025,000 7,625,000
188,695 125,677
868,504 1,329,446
50,000,000 5,979,386
200,000 200,000
18,391,607 248,068,439
930,308 =
4,620,260 =
3,199,632 -
54,179 -
8,145,442 -
4,361,265 911,576
2,379,576,074 1,560,575,508
180,447,573 80,000,000
310,751,939 100,447,573
491,199,512 180,447,573

1,000,000 =
528,500,000 320,000,000
529,500,000 320,000,000
1,000,000 =
1,000,000 o
320,000,000 75,100,000
208,500,000 244,900,000
528,500,000 320,000,000
1,000,000 =
208,500,000 244,900,000
209,500,000 244,900,000
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Accrued Profit and Expenses Payable
Mudaraba Term Deposit Receipt (MTDR)
Mudaraba Monthly Benefit Savings Scheme
Mudaraba Double Benefit Savings Scheme
Mudaraba Monthly Profit Scheme
Mudaraba Pension Prokolpa

Mudaraba Marriage Deposit Scheme
Mudaraba Hajj Deposit Scheme

Mudaraba Millionaire Savings Scheme
Mudaraba Kotipoti Deposit Scheme (MKDS)
Mudaraba Pension deposit Scheme
Mudaraba Mohor Saving Scheme
Mudaraba Corepoty Sanchaya Prokalpa

CAPITAL

AUTHORISED CAPITAL

1,000,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Taka 10 each.
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Capital
428,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Taka 10 each issued
Category of shareholding as at 31 December 2015
Name of

Sponsors/Directors

Financial Institutes

Non-Resident Bangladeshi

General Public

Classification of Shareholders by holding position
December 2015

Shareholding Range

Less than 500 Shares

501 to 5000 Shares

5001 to 10,000 Shares
10,001 to 20,000 Shares
20,001 to 30,000 Shares
30,001 to 40,000 Shares
40,001 to 50,000 Shares
50,001 to 100,000 Shares
100,001 to 1,000,000 Shares
Over 1,000,001 Shares

as at 31

2015 2014
Taka Taka

979,440,873 716,857,831
9,889,772 2,042,903
184,628,158 61,995,606
13,270,153 5,649,317
848,796 221,093
80,811 14,928

7,388 1,592
6,318,455 1,182,573
474,106 8,249
14,585 4,319

645 -
7,928 -

1,194,981,670 787,978,411
10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
4,280,000,000 4,280,000,000
Percentage(%) Percentage(%)
100.00 100.00

100.00 100.00

No. of Shares Percentage (%)
4,000,000 0.93
424,000,000 99.07
428,000,000 100.00
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124 Regulatory Capital Requirement in line with Basel-lll
l. Tier - 1 Capital
a. Common Equity Tier-1 Capital (CET-1)

Paid up Capital 4,280,000,000 4,280,000,000
Statutory Reserve 233,241,638 75,578,898
Other Reserve 145,749,665 145,749,665
Retained Earnings 452,966,555 122,315,596
5,111,957,858 4,623,644,159
b. Additional Tier -1 Capital (AT-1) - | | 2
Total Tier 1 Capital (a + b) 5,111,957,858 4,623,644,159
Il. Tier -2 Capital
General Provision 495,924,976 || 320,000,000
495,924,976 320,000,000
A. Total Regulatory Capital (1-+11) 5,607,882,834 4,943,644,159
B. Total Risk Weighted Assets 42,247,723,691 34,552,800,000
C. Minimum Capital Requirement 4,224,772,369 3,455,280,000
D. Surplus/(Deficiency)....(A - C) 1,383,110,465 1,488,364,159
Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 13.27% 14.31%
Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR): Held "Held
a. Common Equity Tier-1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 12.10% 13.38%
b. Tier - 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 12.10% 13.38%
c. Tier - 2 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets 1.17% 0.93%
Total (b+c) 13.27% 14.31%
13 STATUTORY RESERVE
Opening Balance 75,578,898 33,468,582
Transferred during the year from Profit & Loss A/C 157,662,740 42,110,316
Closing Balance 233,241,638 75,578,898
This has been done according to Sec. 24 of Bank Companies Act,
1991 and shall be maintained until it equals to Paid-up Capital.
14 OTHER RESERVE
This represents profit prior to incorporation i.e. 07 March 2013. 145,749,665 145,749,665
15 RETAINED EARNINGS
Opening Balance
Add: Net Profit after tax for the year 122,315,596 53,874,331
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve 488,313,699 110,551,581
Closing Balance 157,662,740 42,110,316
452,966,555 122,315,596
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16.1

17

18

Money for which the Bank is contingently liable in respect of
guarantees are given favoring:

Letters of Guarantee - Local
Letter of Guarantee - Foreign

Less: Margin Taken on Guarantees

Money for Which the Bank is Contingently Liable in respect of
Guarantees:

Directors

Government

Banks and Other Financial Institutions

Others

IRREVOCABLE LETTERS OF CREDIT

Letters of Credit - Cash

Letter of Credit - Cash Inland

Back to Back Letters of Credit - Local
Back to Back Letters of Credit - Foreign

BILLS FOR COLLECTION ISSUED BY THE BANK

Foreign Documentary Bills
Outward Bills
Inland Documentary Bills

612,755,013 606,973,300
612,755,013 606,973,300
612,755,013 606,973,300
61,255,013 606,973,300

61,255,013 606,973,300
1,458,229,907 420,984,086
210,896,290 1,335,932
116,199,000 23,852,000
1,785,325,197 446,172,018
223,786,000 394,000
8,486,000 147,354,000
232,272,000 147,748,000
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21

22
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INVESTMENT INCOME

Profit Received from:

Deposit with Other Banks

Bai Murabaha - General

Bai Murabaha Hypothecation
Bai Murabaha against MTDR
Bai Murabaha - TR

Bai Murabaha - Agriculture
Musharaka - Agriculture
Musharaka - MDB

Bai Muajjal General

Bai Muajjal Real Estate

Bai Muajjal Agriculture

Bai Murabaha Post Import Bill - TR
HPSM Transport

HPSM Industry

HPSM Real Estate

HPSM Machinery

HPSM Consumer Durables
HPSM SME

Quard against MTDR

Bill Purchased - Inland

Bill Purchased - Foreign

Bai Murabaha Post Import Bill
Bai Murabaha EDF Investment
Back to Back Bill

Bai Istisna

PROFIT PAID ON DEPOSITS

Profit Paid on:

Mudaraba Term Deposit

Mudaraba Double Benefit Deposits Scheme
Mudaraba Monthly Savings Scheme
Mudaraba Monthly Benefit Savings Scheme
Bangladesh Government Islami Bond
Mudaraba Savings Deposits

Mudaraba Short Notice Deposits

Mudaraba Marriage Scheme

Mudaraba Pension Deposit Scheme
Mudaraba Millionaire Deposit Scheme
Mudaraba Mohor Savings Scheme
Mudaraba Corepoty Savings Scheme
Mudaraba Kotipoti Deposit Scheme

INCOME FROM INVESTMENT IN SHARES AND SECURITIES
Bangladesh Govt. Islamic Investment Bond

Profit/(Loss) on sale of shares

Dividend Income

COMMISSION, EXCHANGE AND BROKERAGE
Commission

Exchange Gain

Exchange Earning

Less: Exchange Loss
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1,026,752,542 943,525,592
2,097,744,381 1,384,925,668
306,480,720 263,238,214
518,829,621 389,559,019
900,416,293 95,604,356
62,108,732 -
- 21,817,021
969,418,047 171,785,370
5,266,915 3,226,221
536,240 310,308
35,139 -
20,852,960 23,199,998
1,610,807 708,769
107,379,477 14,354,435
89,568,576 41,499,550
27,492,188 5,580,537
5,038,351 2,482,712
81,034 100,985
487,381 477,216
- 2,182,677
- 10,768
18,248,861 298,258
1,488,147 -
3,046,979 1,043,303
247,638 170.717
6,163,131,029 3,366,101,694
3,550,436,561 2,290,777,480
340,500,332 63,717,411
16,047,073 3,266,965
199,560,915 62,529,856
49,315,068 -
19,095,969 4,934,535
27,126,831 17,158,381
161,925 17,082
1,207,160 262,317
9,341,540 1,614,924
645 -
7,928 -
548,718 8,249
4,213,350,665 2,444,287,200
13,750,000 18,664,929
(1,091,730) 47,816
393,800 347,800
13,052,070 19,060,545
60,554,287 12,598,060
24,557,647 3,764,422
26,300,654 4,274,795
1,743,007 510,373
85,111,934 16,362,48;
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Account maintenance charge
Clearing cheque processing fee
Investment processing fee
Miscellaneous Earnings

SALARY AND ALLOWANCES

Basic Salary

Bonus

Bank's Contribution to Staff Provident Fund
Gratuity

House Rent

Conveyance Allowance

Leave Fare Allowance
Entertainment Allowance
Medical Allowance

Utility Services

House Maintenance Allowance
Other Allowances

RENT, TAXES, INSURANCE, LIGHTING ETC.

Rent

Insurance

Rates and Taxes
Water Charges
Gas Charges
Electric Bills

LEGAL EXPENSES

Law Charges
Stamp
Other Professional Charges

POSTAGE, STAMP AND TELECOMMUNICATION

Telephone - Office

Telegram, Telex, Internet, Fax and Email charge
Stamp

Telephone - Residence

Swift charge

Postage

STATIONERY, PRINTING AND ADVERTISEMENT

Publicity and Advertisement
Printing and Stationery

7,751,043 4,013,111
81,985 25,163
1,009,593 6,641,500
4,499,393 14,423,329
13,342,014 25,103,103
168,499,007 96,164,451
97,640,071 11,975,476
10,892,212 6,879,451
16,000,000 3,760,000
66,510,890 35,992,368
8,274,183 4,195,107
34,547,003 17,674,096
13,139,558 7,563,938
16,009,920 9,362,096
16,041,397 8,632,741
16,739,360 8,909,454
2,378,660 1,461,445
466,672,261 212,570,623
124,861,917 74,343,706
22,367,861 11,363,873
2,998,498 2,267,627
282,564 131,295
199,580 104,388
15,782,476 9,561,286
166,492,896 97,772,175
42,750 14,600
15,086 14,570
515,753 418,930
573,589 448,100
3,009,715 1,735,779
5,046,763 2,533,320
44,770 19,530
3,019 2,817
3,353,080 1,902,536
1,144,489 452,166
12,601,836 6,646,148
26,151,009 32,797,230
8,775,325 6,610,088
34,926,334 39,407,318
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29 MANAGING DIRECTORS’ SALARY AND FEES
Basic Pay 3,600,000 3,600,000
House Rent Allowances 1,200,000 1,200,000
Leave Fare Allowance 1,200,000 1,200,000
Bonus 1,600,000 1,600,000
House Maintenance Allowance 1,200,000 1,200,000
8,800,000 8,800,000
30 DIRECTORS’ FEES
Fees 1,454,750 1,477,750
Travel 4,066,400 2,571,309
5,521,150 4,049,059
31 SHARIA’H SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’S FEES AND EXPENSES
Fees 278,300 34,500
Travel - -
278,300 34,500
32 DEPRECIATION AND REPAIRS OF FIXED ASSETS
Depreciation on Fixed Assets (Annexure - A) 92,445,161 55,955,726
Repairs: 35,383,330 12,639,605
Office equipment 12,135,731 914,338
Renovation and Maintenance of Office Premises 30,720 2,600
Furniture and Fixtures 17,255 8,250
Repair & Maintenance of Vehicle 23,199,624 11,714,417
127,828,491 68,595,331
33 OTHER EXPENSES
Car Expense 20,882,978 11,476,380
Wages 50,162,053 27,033,301
Traveling 12,274,436 5,031,803
Donation and Subscription:
Donation 51,252,790 2,953,700
Subscription 1,534,000 622,000
Newspaper and Periodicals 292,749 183,191
Entertainment 8,574,339 4,019,768
Conveyance 2,593,323 2,139,649
Bank charges 2,864,344 1,013,971
Refreshment 1,063,843 810,253
Holiday Banking allowances 547,024 344,489
Parties and Dinner 1,177,426 378,663
Medical Expense 2,330,627 1,290,790
Training, Seminar and Workshop 2,126,569 2,259,167
Photocopy, Photograph & Toner 1,085,760 656,960
Generator Expenses 2,814,234 1,598,620
Washing and Cleaning 120,622 32,059
Upkeep Branches Premises 863,912 677,972
Online Expenses 1,976,610 1,269,099
Office Maintenance 4,866,922 3,096,210
Crockery Expense 188,808 173,258
Meeting Expenses 12,800,424 11,022,670
ATM Expenses 1,458,033 523,875
Recruitment Expense - 2,692,077
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,726,000 2,440,864
186,577,826 83,740,789
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

A. Net Profit after Tax
B. Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares
Earnings Per Share (A/B)

RECEIPTS FROM OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Account maintenance charge
Clearing cheque processing fee
Investment processing fee
Miscellaneous Earnings

PAYMENTS FOR OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Rent, Taxes, Insurances, Electricity etc.

Legal Expenses

Postage, Stamps, Telecommunications etc.

Directors' fees

Sharia'h Supervisory Committee's fees and expenses
Auditor's Fee

Repair of Fixed Assets

Zakat Expenses

Other Expenses

INCREASE / DECREASE OF OTHER ASSETS

Inter - branch Transaction Account
Advances, Deposits and Prepayment
Stock of Stationery

Suspense Account

Stamps on Hand

(Increase)/Decrease during the year

INCREASE / DECREASE OF OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for Zakat

Benevolent Fund

Clearing Adjustment Account

Others

Increase /(Decrease) during the year

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Executives and Officers
Members of Staff (Contractual)

488,313,699 110,551,581
428,000,000 428,000,000
1.14 0.26
7,751,043 4,013,111
81,985 25,163
1,009,593 6,641,500
4,499,393 14,423,329
13,342,014 25,103,103
166,492,896 97,772,175
573,589 448,100
12,601,836 6,646,148
5,621,150 4,049,059
278,300 34,500
200,000 200,000
35,383,330 12,639,605
6,000,000 4,625,000
186,577,826 83,740,789
413,628,927 210,155,376
42,188,869 20,822,214
1,665,231,726 270,468,916
5,814,921 4,620,541
111,665,302 172,546,487
378,225 194,180
1,725,279,043 468,652,338
(1,256,626,705) (86,436,481)
6,025,000 7,625,000
868,504 1,329,446
18,391,607 248,068,439
21,311,086 911,576
46,596,197 257,934,461
(211,338,264) 254,810,447
666 475

166 125

832 600
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Bank carried out some transaction with related party in the normal course of business and on an arm's
length basis. The name of this related party, nature of this transaction and total value has been set out in accordance with
provisions of International Accounting Standard # 24 (IAS# 24) Related Party disclosure and as defined in the BRPD
Circular no. 14 issued by the Bangladesh Bank on June 25, 20083. The significant related party transactions during the year
were as follows:

i) Significant Contracts where Bank is a Party and wherein Directors have Interest

Name of the Party Nature of Transaction Nature of Relationship Total Value (in Taka)
a. Reliance Finance Ltd. MTDR Common Director 6,605,732,775
i) Related Party Transactions Nil
iii) Shares issued to Directors and Executives without consideration or exercisable at discount Nil
iv) Lending to Related Parties is effected as per requirements of Section 27 (1) of the Bank Companies Act, 1991. Nil

v) Business other than banking business with any related concern of the Directors as per
Section 18(2) of the Bank Companies Act, 1991 Nil

vi) Investment in the Securities of Directors and their related concern Nil

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN DIFFERENT BUSINESSES OR ENTITIES

Names of firms/companies in which
Status with interested as proprietor, partner,

NETDES PTEH0 the Bank director, managing agent,

guarantor, employee, etc.

1 Shahidul Alam Chairman Managing Director
Galco Steel (Bangladesh) Ltd.
Prasad Paradise Resorts Ltd.
S. Alam Vegetable QOil Ltd.
Director
First Security Islami Capital & Investment Ltd.
Reliance Brokerage Services Ltd.
Proprietor
M/s. Tazin Enterprise
Sonali Traders

2 Ahsanul Alam Vice Chairman Managing Director
Genesis Textiles Accessories &
Apparels Ltd.
Western Designers Ltd.
Chairman
Hasan Abasan (Pvt) Ltd.
Proprietor
Genesis Enterprise
Chief Executive
S. Alam & Co.

3 Hussain Muhammad Ershad Director Chairman
Podagonj Cold Storage Ltd.

4 Ashik Ahmed Director Proprietor
Ashik Trading
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Names of firms/companies in which
Status with interested as proprietor, partner,
the Bank director, managing agent,
guarantor, employee, etc.

Name of the Directors

5 Ms. Marzina Sharmin Director Managing Director

Unique Investment & Securities Limited
Times Securities Limited

Director

Reliance Finance Limited

Proprietor
M/s. Marzina Trading

6 Mortuza Siddique Chowdhury Director Chairman
Tower Aviation Ltd.
Al- Sharaf Airways Ltd.
MRM Trading Ltd.
Marsa Fishing Ltd.
Managing Director
Mortuza Assets Ltd.
Director
Al- Sharaf Ltd.

7 Shahedul Huq Director Managing Partner
Crystal Bridge (Pvt) Ltd.
Director
Xebac Trading Service

Proprietor
S. Huq Properties Ltd.

8 Ms. Shahana Ferdous Director Director
Galco Steel (BD) Ltd.
S. Alam Super Edible Oil Ltd.

Proprietor
M/S Shahnaj Trading

9 Showkat Hossain, FCA Director Resident Partner
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Director
Chittagong WASA
Director (In ndent
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

10  Rashedul Alam Director Managing Director
Global Trading Corporation Ltd.
Director
S. Alam Steels Ltd.
Bangladesh Petro Chemical Ltd.
S. Alam Hatchery Ltd.
Ocean Resorts Ltd.
S. Alam Properties Ltd.
Fatehabad Farm Ltd.
Proprietor
Rafe Enterprise
Khurshed Poribohon Sangstha

11 Arif Ahmed Director Proprietor
M/s. Arif Traders

12 Mohammad Mostan Billah Adil Director Managing Director
Platinum Endeavors Ltd
Proprietor
M/s. Mostan Billah Adil
M/s. Adil Corporation

13 Ms. Farzana Begum Director Managing Director

Shah Amanat Prakritik Gas Co. Ltd.
Lion Securities & Investment Ltd.
Director

Global Trading Corporation Ltd

M/s. Farzana Trading Enterprise
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

a) Constitution

Status with Status with Educational
the Bank the Committee Qualification
Showkat Hossain, FCA Director Chairman B. Com, Fellow Chartered Accountants
Mortuza Siddique Chowdhury Director Member FAZIL
Shahedul Hug Director Member Bachelor of Business Administration
Arif Ahmed Director Member MS-CEM

b) During the year under review, the Audit Committee of the Board conducted 04 (four) meeting.
c) The following steps have been taken for implementation of an effective Internal Control Procedure of the Bank:
A strong powerful division formed for internal audit and inspection as well as compliance thereof.

The division is divided into three separate units i,e. Audit & Inspection , compliance and Monitoring to implement effective
internal control and compliances headed by highly experienced bankers.

Audit and Inspection unit is established with a view to carrying out comprehensive internal audit in the branch level and
ensure the transparency and accountability in the banking operations in light of the guidelines of the regulatory authorities
and policies set by the bank with regular intervals.

Monitoring Unit is established with a view to implementing proper banking practices in the branches. Day to day
operations is the focusing area to implement the rules and procedures of the regulatory bodies, bank’s policies and other
prudential guidelines.

Compliance unit is established to take effective measures for collection and timely submission of compliances of internal,
external and Bangladesh Bank Inspection Reports.

The committee is placing its report regularly to the Board of Directors of the bank mentioning its review and
recommendations on internal system, compliance of rules and regulations and establishment of good governance within
the organization.

The board has given the responsibility to implement internal control system in the bank as per requirement of core risk
management and framework provided by the Bangladesh Bank.

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
a) The Board of Directors of the Bank in it's 29th Board meeting held on 29 February 2016 approved the financial

tatements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2015 and recommended 10% Stock Dividend for shareholders for
the year 2015 to be approved in the next Annual General Meeting and authorized the same for issue.

b) There is no other significant event that has occurred between the balance Sheet date and the date when the financial
statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Director which require adjustment in the financial statements.

Managing Director Director Director Chairman

Place: Dhaka
Date: 29 February 2016
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Annexure B

UNION BANK LIMITED
Financial Highlights
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1 Paid-up Capital 4,280,000,000  4,280,000,000
2 Total Capital Fund 5,607,882,834  4,943,644,159
3 Capital Surplus/(deficit) 1,383,110,465  1,488,364,159
4 Total Assets 63,059,961,079 40,951,529,467
5  Total Deposits 55,568,427,147 34,767,309,800
6 Total Investments 45 592,869,263 28,277,787,234
7 Total Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 4,642,784,803  1,474,493,318 17
8 Investment Deposit Ratio (in %) 82.05% 81.33% E
9 Percentage of Classified Investments against total Investments (in %) 0.0019% 0.00% E
10  Profit before Provision and Tax 1,044,813,699 455,451,581 E
11 Amount of Classified Investments during the year 887,137 - l;J
12 Provision kept against Classified Investments 1,000,000 - g
13 Provision Surplus/(deficit) 14,119,963 6,981,538 ‘2’
14 Cost of Fund 11.82% 12.36% E
15  Profit Earning Assets 55,788,923,915 36,497,951,035 :
16 Non-profit Earning Assets 7,271,037,164 4,453,578,432 |:I—:
17 Return on Investment in Shares & securities (ROI)(in %) 0.42% 1.32% E
18  Return on Assets (ROA)(in %) 1.66% 1.11% ‘|f|
19 Income from Investment in Shares and Securities 13,052,070 19,060,545 §
20  Earnings Per Share (Tk.) 1.14 0.26
21 Net Income Per Share (Tk.) 1.14 0.26
22  Price Earnings Ratio (Times) N/A N/A
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SHARIAHBASED BANK

Q UNION BANK LIMITED

Revenue Stamp

Head Office
Bahela Tower, 72, Gulshan Avenue Taka 20/

Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh
E-mail : info@unionbank.com.bd
web : www.unionbank.com.bd
Telephone @ +88-02-9859313

Proxy Form

being a member of Union Bank Limited, do hereby appoint Mr./Ms.
of

as myj/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us, and on my/our behalf at the 3¢ Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Union Bank Limited will be held on December 29, 2016 at The Palace Luxary Resort, Bahubal, Habiganj at 4.00 pm.

Signed this day of , 2016

Notes:
No. of Share Held This proxy Form duly completed and stamped

S must be deposited at least 48 hours before the

meeting at the company’s Registered Office.
Proxy is invalid if not signed and stamp as
explained above.

(Signature of Shareholders)

Membership No.

Head Office

Bahela Tower, 72, Gulshan Avenue
UNlON BANK LlMlTED Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh
SHARIAHBASED BANK E-mail . info@unionbank.com.bd
web : www.unionbank.com.bd

Telephone  : +88-02-9859313

Attendance Slip

I/we hereby record my attendance at the 3¢ Annual General Meeting of the Members of Union Bank Limited will be held on
December 29, 2016 at The Palace Luxary Resort, Bahubal, Habiganj at 4.00 pm.

Name of the Member/Proxy

Membership No.

Signature of Member/Proxy and Date




